
 

 
 
 
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, January 22, 2018 

Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M. 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Administration Building 

5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA 94587 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

1. Call to Order. 
 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
  

 

3. Roll Call. 
 

 

Motion 4. Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 8, 2018. 
 

 

Information 5. December 2017 Monthly Operations Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance 
and Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
   

 6. Written Communications. 
 

 

7. Oral Communications. 
 

The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received 
at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working day prior to the meeting).  This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may address 
and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda.  If the subject relates to an agenda item, the 
speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum of 30 
minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion. 

 

 
 

 

Motion 8. Consider a Motion to Cancel the May 28, 2018, Board of Directors Meeting. 
 

 

Motion 9. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 with 
RMC Water and Environment for the Plant Master Plan (to be reviewed by the 
Engineering and Information Technology Committee). 
 

 

Motion 10. General District Election (to be reviewed by the Personnel Committee). 
a) Consider a Resolution Ordering, Calling, Providing For, and Giving Notice of a 

General Election to be Held in Union Sanitary District, Alameda County, California, 
on June 5, 2018, for the Purpose of Electing Two Directors. 

b) Consider a Resolution Ordering the Consolidation of the Union Sanitary District 
General Election on June 5, 2018 with the Direct Primary Election to be Held on 
June 5, 2018 and Requesting the Board of Supervisors of the County of Alameda 
to Consolidate said General District Election with said Direct Primary Election to 
be held on said date. 

 

 

1 of 122



Direction 11. Receive USD Branding Initiative Update and Provide Direction (to be reviewed by the 
Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
 

 

Information 12. Cal-Card Quarterly Activity Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance 
Committee). 
 

 

Information 13. Update on the Subsurface Investigation at the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant 
(to be reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee). 
 

 

Information 14. Solar and Cogeneration Facilities Operational Update (to be reviewed by the Budget & 
Finance Committee). 
 

 

Information 15. Report on the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) Meeting of December 21, 2017. 
 

 

Information 16. Check Register. 
 

 

Information 17. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):  
a. Personnel Committee – Wednesday, January 17, 2018, at 10:00 a.m. 

• Director Kite and Director Toy 
b. Engineering and Information Technology Committee – Thursday, January 18, 2018, at 9:15 a.m. 

• Director Fernandez and Director Kite 
c. Legal/Community Affairs Committee – Thursday, January 18, 2018, at 1:30 p.m. 

• Director Handley and Director Lathi 
d. Budget & Finance Committee – Friday, January 19, 2018, at 11:00 a.m. 

• Director Handley and Director Toy 
e. Audit Committee – will not meet. 
f. Legislative Committee – will not meet. 
 

 

Information  18.  General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board). 
 

 

 19.   Other Business: 
a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District 

business and are welcome to request information from staff. 
b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.  
 
 

 

20. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the Boardroom 
on Monday, February 12, 2018, at 7:00 p.m. 
 

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary 
District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 
If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda, 
the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is calendared.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  
Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.  THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

2 of 122



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

ENGINEERING & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Fernandez and Director Kite 

 

AGENDA 

Thursday, January 18, 2018 

9:15 A.M. 

 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

  THIS MEETING WILL BE TELECONFERENCED WITH DIRECTOR KITE FROM THE EXTERIOR OF 
35040 NEWARK BOULEVARD, NEWARK, CALIFORNIA.   

 
1.    Call to Order 

 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of January 22, 2018: 

 Authorize the General Manager to Execute Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 
with RMC Water and Environment for the Plant Master Plan 

 Update on the Subsurface Investigation at the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant 
 

 

5.  Adjournment 
 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  No action will be taken at committee meetings.  The Public may provide 

oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary District at least one working 

day prior to the meeting).If  the subject relates to an agenda  item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the  item is considered.    If  the subject  is within the Board’s 

jurisdiction but not on the agenda, the speaker will be heard at the time “Public Comment” is calendared.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum 

of 30 minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

 
The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

3 of 122



 

 

 

 
 

LEGAL/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Handley and Director Lathi 

 

AGENDA 

Thursday, January 18, 2018 

1:30 p.m. 

 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 

 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

 
1.    Call to Order 

 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of January 22, 2018: 

 December 2017 Monthly Operations Report – Odor Report and Work Group Reports 

 Receive USD Branding Initiative Update and Provide Direction 
 

 

5.  Adjournment 
 

 
 
 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

 

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary 

District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 

 

If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda, 

the speaker will be heard at the time “Public Comment”  is calendared.   Oral comments are  limited to three minutes per  individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  

Speaker’s cards will be available and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

 
The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

4 of 122



REVISED 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Kite and Director Toy 

 

AGENDA 

Wednesday, January 17, 2018 

Friday, January 19, 2018 

10:00 A.M. 

10:30 A.M. 

 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

   
 

1.    Call to Order 
 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of January 22, 2018: 

 General District Election: 
a) Consider  a  Resolution Ordering,  Calling,  Providing  For,  and Giving Notice  of  a 

General Election to be Held in Union Sanitary District, Alameda County, California, 
on June 5, 2018, for the Purpose of Electing Two Directors. 

b) Consider a Resolution Ordering the Consolidation of the Union Sanitary District 
General Election on June 5, 2018 with the Direct Primary Election to be Held on 
June 5, 2018 and Requesting the Board of Supervisors of the County of Alameda 
to Consolidate said General District Election with said Direct Primary Election to 
be held on said date. 

 

 

5.  Adjournment 
 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  No action will be taken at committee meetings.  The Public may provide 

oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary District at least one working 

day prior to the meeting).If  the subject relates to an agenda  item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the  item is considered.    If  the subject  is within the Board’s 

jurisdiction but not on the agenda, the speaker will be heard at the time “Public Comment” is calendared.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum 

of 30 minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

 
The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

5 of 122



 

 

 

 
 

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Handley and Director Toy 

 

AGENDA 

Friday, January 19, 2018 

11:00 a.m. 

 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

 
1.    Call to Order 

 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of January 22, 2018: 

 December 2017 Monthly Operations Report – Financial Reports 

 Cal‐Card Quarterly Activity Report 

 Solar and Cogeneration Facilities Operational Update 
 

 

5.  Adjournment 
 

 
 
 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

 

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary 

District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 

 

If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda, 

the speaker will be heard at the time “Public Comment”  is calendared.   Oral comments are  limited to three minutes per  individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  

Speaker’s cards will be available and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

 
The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

6 of 122



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

January 8, 2018 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
President Kite called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Pat Kite, President 
  Anjali Lathi, Vice President 
  Manny Fernandez, Secretary 
  Jennifer Toy, Director  

Tom Handley, Director 
 
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager 
  Leah Castella, District Counsel 
  James Schofield, Collection Services Manager 
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 
  Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Manager 
  Mitchell Costello, Treatment and Disposal Services Coach 

Laurie Brenner, Business Services Team Coach 
Curtis Bosick, Associate Engineer 
Danielle Lemos, Administrative Specialist 
Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF DECEMBER 12, 2017 
 
It was moved by Vice President Lathi, seconded by Secretary Fernandez, to approve the 
Minutes of the Special Meeting of December 12, 2017.  Motion carried with the following 
vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Kite, Lathi, Toy 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: Handley 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF DECEMBER 18, 2017 
 
It was moved by Vice President Lathi, seconded by Secretary Fernandez, to approve the 
Minutes of the Special Meeting of December 18, 2017.  Motion carried with the following 
vote: 

7 of 122



 
AYES:  Fernandez, Kite, Lathi, Toy 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: Handley 
 
NOVEMBER 2017 MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT 
 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs and Budget & Finance Committees.  
General Manager Eldredge stated the District received two odor complaints during November 
2017.  Business Services Coach Brenner provided an overview of the financial reports 
included in the Board meeting packet. 
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no written communications. 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no oral communications. 
 
CONSIDER A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE REVISED POLICY NO. 2760, 
STANDARDIZED EQUIPMENT 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated District staff have standardized certain 
equipment to single manufacturers for specific reasons.  Staff developed the Standardized 
Equipment Guidelines to provide selection criteria and a process for evaluating equipment 
for the Standardized Equipment List every three years.  Proposed edits to Standardized 
Equipment Policy No. 2760 were outlined in the Board meeting packet.  Staff recommended 
the Board adopt the proposed resolution to approve revisions to Policy No. 2760, 
Standardized Equipment, amending procedures for designating standardized equipment, 
approving the new Standardized Equipment List, and designating the General Manager (or 
his or her designee) to modify the Standardized Equipment List and approve standardized 
equipment for projects. 
 
It was moved by Secretary Fernandez, seconded by Vice President Lathi, to Adopt 
Resolution No. 2822 Approving Revised Policy No. 2760 – Standardized Equipment, 
Amending Procedures for Designating Standardized Equipment, Approving the New 
Standardized Equipment List, and Designating the General Manager (or his or her designee) 
to Modify the Standardized Equipment List and Approve Standardized Equipment for 
Projects.   Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 

8 of 122



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF UPDATED POLICY NO. 2080, PROJECT EXPENDITURES 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated the District’s Project Expenditures policy was 
updated by the Manager of Technical Services and reviewed by the Executive Team.  
Proposed edits to Policy No. 2080, Project Expenditures, were outlined in the Board meeting 
packet.  Staff recommended the Board approve updates to Policy No. 2080, Project 
Expenditures. 
 
It was moved by Director Handley, seconded by Vice President Lathi, to Approve Updates to 
Policy No. 2080, Project Expenditures.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSIDER A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE THICKENER 
CONTROL BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT FROM GSE CONSTRUCTION 
COMPANY, INC. AND AUTHORIZE RECORDATION OF A NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated the Board awarded the Thickener Control 
Building Improvements Project to GSE Construction Company on May 27, 2014.  Carollo 
Engineers completed design of the Project in January 2014, and The Covello Group provided 
construction management and general inspection services during construction.  GSE 
substantially completed all contract work March 3, 2017, and staff awaited completion of field 
punchlist items and contract change order negotiations before recommending project 
acceptance.  Staff recommended the Board consider a resolution to accept construction of 
the Thickener Control Building Improvements Project from GSE Construction Company, Inc., 
and authorize recordation of a Notice of Completion. 
 
It was moved by Director Handley, seconded by Secretary Fernandez, to Adopt Resolution 
No. 2823 Accepting Construction of the Thickener Control Building Improvements Project 
Located in the City of Union City, California, from GSE Construction Company, Inc. and 
Authorize Recordation of a Notice of Completion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT AND TASK 
ORDER NO. 1 WITH CAROLLO ENGINEERS FOR THE PLANT ASSET CONDITION 
ASSESSMENT UPDATE STUDY 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated District staff prepare for renewal and 
replacement of Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) facilities by conducting 
regular condition assessments and life cycle evaluations of the WWTP facilities.  The goal of 
the Condition Assessment Study is to update the long-term Capital Improvement Program 
for the WWTP to address maintenance, economic, and high-risk conditions in assets within 
the plant.  Staff prepared a Request for Proposal for the Plant Asset Condition Assessment 
Update Study, and it was published in September 2017.  Following a review of proposals 
received, Carollo Engineers was selected for the Study.  Staff estimate Carollo will complete 
the condition assessment task in Spring 2018, and submit the report by June 2018.  Staff 

9 of 122



recommended the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an Agreement and Task 
Order No. 1 in the amount of $118,881 with Carollo Engineers for the Plant Asset Condition 
Assessment Update Study. 
 
It was moved by Secretary Fernandez, seconded by Director Handley, to Authorize the 
General Manager to Execute an Agreement and Task Order No. 1 in the Amount of $118,881 
with Carollo Engineers for the Plant Asset Condition Assessment Update Study.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 
Check Register 
All questions were answered to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS: 
 
The Engineering and Information Technology, Legal/Community Affairs, and Budget & 
Finance Committees met. 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 
General Manager Eldredge reported the following: 
 Introduced Danielle Lemos as the new Capital Improvements Projects Team 

Administrative Specialist. 
 The deadline to register for the California Association of Sanitation Agencies Winter 

Conference is January 9, 2018.   
 The District will consider purchasing tote bags to distribute at the 2018 Centennial 

Open House.   
 Recruitment interviews for the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) General 

Manager will be held at USD on January 12, 2018. 
 General Manager Eldredge shared photos from the recent EBDA pipeline inspection.   

 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
There was no other business. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:30 p.m. to the next Board Meeting in the Boardroom on 
Monday, January 22, 2018, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
SUBMITTED:     ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
REGINA McEVOY     MANNY FERNANDEZ 
BOARD CLERK     SECRETARY 

10 of 122



 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
PAT KITE 
PRESIDENT 
 

Adopted this 22nd day of January 2018 

11 of 122



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

DATE: January 12, 2018 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 5 - Meeting of January 22, 2018 
 Information Item: Monthly Operations Report for December 2017  
 
Background 
 
Attached are Monthly Operations Reports for December 2017.  Staff is available to answer 
questions regarding information contained in the report. 
 
Work Group Managers 
 
General Manager/Administration   Paul Eldredge  GM   
Collection Services     James Schofield CS   
Technical Support     Sami Ghossain  TS   
Treatment and Disposal Services   Armando Lopez  T&D  
Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction  Robert Simonich FMC 
 
ODOR COMPLAINTS:   
During the month of December 2017, there was one odor complaint received by the Collection 
System.  Details regarding the odor complaint were included in the December 2017 Odor 
Report.   
 
STAFFING & PERSONNEL:   
 
Completed Recruitments Resulting in Promotions:  

• Treatment Plant Operator Trainer – Wade Coggins (Position offered and accepted in 
November; will transition in January 2018) 
 

Other Completed Recruitments:  
• Plant Operator Trainee III Trainee(s) – Recruitment completed in December; Sam Soth 

to start 1/22/18 and Austin Farsai to start 1/23/18 

12 of 122



• Receptionist – Recruitment completed in December; Brienne Estrada to start 1/29/18 
 

Recruitments Opened:  
• No new recruitments were opened. 

 
Continuing Recruitments:  

• Certified Financial Officer 
• Engineering Technician II/III 
• Organizational Performance Program Manager 
• Purchasing Agent 

 
Other Accomplishments: 

• Contract negotiations on-going 
 

G.M. ACTIVITIES:  For the month of December, the General Manager was involved in the 
following: 

 
• Attended the East Bay Dischargers Authority Managers Advisory Committee meeting 
• Attended the East Bay Dischargers Authority meeting 
• Attended the California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Federal Legislative 

Committee Planning Session 
• Attended the District’s Holiday Potluck 
• Participated in the Special Board Meeting Closed Session 
• Attended the Bay Area Consortium for Water and Wastewater Education Member’s 

Meeting 
 

Attachments: Odor Report and Map 
 Hours Worked and Leave Time by Work Group 
 Business Services 
 Technical Services 
 Collection Services 
 Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction 
 Treatment and Disposal Services 

13 of 122



 

  
 ODOR REPORT 
 December 2017 
 
 During the recording period from December 01, 2017 through December 31, 2017, there was one  
 odor related service request received by the District. 
 City:  Fremont 
 
 1. Complaint Details:  
 Date:  12/28/2017 Time:   4:55 pm 
 Location:   FELLOWS ST Reported By: Tatiana Bragmets 
 Wind (from): North East Wind Speed:  2 mph 
 Temperature:  60 Degrees F Weather: Clear 
  
 Response and Follow-up: 

 

 We inspected adjacent USD mains, storm drain inlet and flood control channel at rear of property on  
 Fellows Street. No noticeable odor detected at this time. We relayed our findings to the  
 Reporting party. It is possible that an odor occurred from the flood control channel during low tide. 
 We informed the customer to call us back should the odor occur again. 

14 of 122



#

#

!̂̂!###

#

#

^

!

^

!

#

#

#

#

!

!̂#

#

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Location of Odor Reports
January to December 2017 .0 1 2 3 4 50.5

Miles

Legend
Odor Complaints: December 2017

Odor Complaints: January to November 2017
No odor found (1)

Odor found, not related to USD (6)
Odor found, USD resolved (5)

No odor found (12)

#

!

^

#

! Odor found, not related to USD (0)
^ Odor found, USD resolved (0)

1. No odor found

15 of 122



NOTES

(1) Regular hours does not include hours worked by part-time or temporary employees.

(2) Overtime hours includes call outs. 

(3) Discretionary Leave includes Vacation, HEC, Holiday, MAL, FLEX, Funeral, Jury Duty, Military, OT Banked Use, 

     Paid Admin., SLIP, VRIP, Holiday Banked Use leaves.

(4) Sick Leave includes sick and catastrophic sick leaves as well as protected time off, of which the District has

     no discretion.

An employee using 15 vacation, 11 holiday, 2 HEC, and 5 sick days will work an average of 34. 9  hour s

per week over the course of a year; with 20 vacation days, 34. 2  hour s  per  week .

HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP

June 29, 2017 through December 22, 2017

Weeks to Date: 26 out of 52 (50.00%)

-

20.8 

32.0 

39.7 

21.0 
24.1 26.9 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

GM BS FMC TD TS CS All Groups

Average Annual Sick Leave Used Per Employee to Date 

Target is 47

36.6 
33.9 

36.2 34.2 35.5 35.8 35.2 

 -

 5.0

 10.0

 15.0

 20.0

 25.0

 30.0

 35.0

 40.0

GM BS FMC TD TS CS All Groups

At-Work Hours Per Employee Per Week

Target is 34

16 of 122



Regular                       

(1)

Overtime               

(2)

Discretionary 

(3)

Short Term 

Disability

Workers 

Comp 

Sick                     

(4)

Average 

Number of 

Employees

At-Work 

Hours Per 

Week Per 

Employee

Annual 

Sick Leave 

Used

GM 2 1,859.00           31.50              36.6 221.00            -              -             -                 0.0 2 35.7 34.6

BS 21 18,370.33         33.66              33.9 2,291.85         -              -             435.75           20.8 21 34.2 33.5

FMC 22 20,145.00         448.17            36.2 2,244.08         181.43       -             704.07           32.0 23 34.2 48.4

TD 26 22,145.91         823.35            34.2 3,079.57         789.05       -             1,031.47        39.7 27 34.7 39.1

TS 31 28,305.49         146.57            35.5 3,356.43         126.25       -             651.83           21.0 32 34.9 47.3

CS 30 26,414.16         1,335.50         35.8 4,098.57         5.93            -             723.82           24.1 31 34.1 77.6

All Groups 132 117,239.89       2,818.75         35.2 15,291.50      1,102.66    -             3,546.94       26.9 136 35.1 44.5

SICK LEAVE INCENTIVE PROGRAM TARGETS ≥34 ≤47

The Sick Leave Incentive Program target goals are 47 or less hours of sick leave per employee annually, and 34 or more hours of at-work time per week per employee. 

NOTES

(1) Regular hours does not include hours worked by part-time or temporary employees.

(2) Overtime hours includes call outs. 

(3) Discretionary Leave includes Vacation, HEC, Holiday, MAL, FLEX, Funeral, Jury Duty, Military, OT Banked Use, Paid Admin., SLIP, VRIP, Holiday Banked Use leaves.

(4) Sick Leave includes sick and catastrophic sick leaves, as well as protected time off, of which the District has no discretion.

An employee using 15 vacation, 11 holiday, 2 HEC, and 5 sick days will work an average of 34.9 hours per week over the course of a year;  

with 20 vacation days, 34.2 hours per week.

LEAVE HOURS FY17

HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP

June 29, 2017 through December 22, 2017

Weeks to Date: 26 out of 52 (50.00%)

Average Annual Sick 

Leave Used Per 

Employee To Date

AT-WORK HOURS At-Work Hours 

Per Employee 

Per Week

Group Average 

Number of 

Employees

17 of 122



 BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT

FY 2018       Year-to-date as of 12/31/17 50% of year elapsed
Audited

Revenues % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Rec'd Actuals 6/30/17

  Capacity Fees $7,910,000 $16,181,091 205% $12,595,637
  Sewer Service Charges 54,913,920 $27,259,020 50% 52,384,710
  Operating (Work Groups) 1,300,000 $643,681 50% 1,575,480
  Interest 625,000 $774,934 124% 482,342
  Misc. (LAVWMA pymnt, solar, Cogen rebates) 242,000 $95,657 40% 561,734

 Subtotal Revenues $64,990,920 $44,954,383 69% $67,599,903

  SRF Loan Proceeds (Thickener Proj.) 0 $103,241 #DIV/0! 3,433,448

Total Revenues + SRF Proceeds $64,990,920 $45,057,624 69% $71,033,351

Expenses % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

  Capital Improvement Program:
       Capacity Proj. $3,420,000 $995,170 29% $3,608,815
       Renewal & Repl. Proj. 6,660,000 $2,523,870 38% 10,185,023
  Operating 36,816,878 $16,152,579 44% 33,866,972
  Special Projects 1,873,523 $298,641 16% 945,496
  Retiree Medical (ARC) 602,009 $301,005 50% 585,832
  Vehicle & Equipment 1,139,555 $480,645 42% 116,986
  Information Systems 600,100 $105,099 18% 492,639
  Plant & Pump Stat. R&R 250,000 $124,978 50% 247,329
  Emerg. Fund 0 $0 0% 286
  Pretreatment Fund 5,000 $2,076 42% 11,611
  Cty Fee for SSC Admin. 107,000 $53,791 50% 106,643
  Debt Servicing:
     SRF Loans 3,880,441 $1,567,246 40% 3,127,110

Total Expenses $55,354,506 $22,605,098 41% $53,294,740

Total Revenue & Proceeds less Expenses $9,636,414 $22,452,525 $17,738,611

Operating (Work Group) Expenses % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Board of Directors $176,093 $62,505 35% $139,285
General Manager/Admin. 1,082,884 371,387 34% 786,134
Business Services 5,023,943 2,243,451 45% 5,091,870
Collection Services 6,551,768 2,836,925 43% 6,290,826
Technical Services 5,995,655 2,730,797 46% 5,840,942
Treatment & Disposal Services 11,122,285 5,031,874 45% 9,888,969
Fabrication, Maint. & Construction 6,277,170 2,700,363 43% 5,828,946
Non-Departmental 587,080 175,276 30%

Total $36,816,878 $16,152,579 44% $33,866,972

Operating (Work Group) Expenses by Type % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Personnel (incl D&E) $25,359,529 $11,531,906 45% $24,278,885
Repairs & Maintenance 2,147,050 799,073 37% 1,998,086
Supplies & Matls (chemicals, small tools) 2,622,250 1,027,356 39% 2,093,989
Outside Services (utilities, biosolids, legal) 6,353,189 2,782,106 44% 5,417,173
Fixed Assets 334,860 12,138 4% 78,839

Total $36,816,878 $16,152,579 44% $33,866,972

18 of 122



REVENUES AND EXPENSES REPORT
as of 12/31/17

       

7,910,000

54,913,920

1,300,000 625,000 242,000 0

16,181,091

$27,259,020

$643,681 $774,934 $95,657 $103,241
$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

  Capacity Fees   Sewer Service
Charges

  Operating (Work
Groups)

  Interest   Misc. (LAVWMA
pymnt, solar, Cogen

rebates)

  SRF Loan Proceeds
(Thickener Proj.)

Total Revenues
Budget Actual

3,420,000
6,660,000

36,816,878

1,873,523
602,009 1,139,555 600,100 250,000 0

5,000 107,000

3,880,441
995,170 2,523,870

16,152,579

298,641
301,005 480,645 105,099 124,978

0 2,076 53,791

1,567,246

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

$40,000,000

Total Expenses
Budget Actual

19 of 122



REVENUES AND EXPENSES REPORT
as of 12/31/17

176,093
1,082,884

5,023,943

6,551,768
5,995,655

11,122,285

6,277,170

587,080
62,505

371,387

2,243,451
2,836,925 2,730,797

5,031,874

2,700,363

175,276
$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

Operating Expenses by Work Group
Budget Actual

25,359,529

2,147,050 2,622,250

6,353,189

334,860

11,531,906

799,073 1,027,356
2,782,106

12,138
$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

Personnel (incl D&E) Repairs & Maintenance Supplies & Matls
(chemicals, small tools)

Outside Services (utilities,
biosolids, legal)

Fixed Assets

Operating Expenses by Type
Budget Actual

20 of 122



 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Performance Measures for the USD Investment Portfolio    
  

 

0.00%

0.25%

0.50%

0.75%

1.00%

1.25%

1.50%

1.75%

2.00%

Average Monthly Yield

LAIF 2 Year Treasury USD Yield

Business Services Group  
December 2017 

21 of 122



 

 

Maturity 

Range 

Face 

Amount/Shares 

YTM @ 

Cost 
Cost Value 

Days To 

Maturity 

% of 

Portfolio 
Market Value Book Value 

Duration To 

Maturity 

0-1 Month 59,284,454.69 1.039 59,286,014.69 1 55.29 59,284,184.69 59,284,479.09 0.00 

1-3 Months 1,000,000.00 0.911 999,620.00 31 0.93 999,720.00 999,969.56 0.08 

3-6 Months 2,000,000.00 1.255 1,999,070.00 96 1.86 1,997,000.00 1,999,711.38 0.26 

6-9 Months 2,000,000.00 1.264 2,001,190.00 210 1.87 1,994,060.00 2,000,042.96 0.57 

9-12 

Months 
2,000,000.00 1.285 2,000,000.00 354 1.87 1,987,100.00 2,000,000.00 0.97 

1-2 Years 16,484,000.00 1.392 16,501,986.57 553 15.39 16,355,525.43 16,493,919.22 1.50 

2-3 Years 5,746,000.00 2.013 5,947,787.56 971 5.55 5,826,057.10 5,875,127.85 2.56 

3-4 Years 14,244,000.00 2.060 14,228,150.00 1,292 13.27 14,051,952.49 14,232,098.58 3.43 

4-5 Years 4,236,000.00 2.414 4,259,279.67 1,543 3.97 4,230,126.78 4,256,159.55 4.02 

TOTAL / 

AVERAGE 
106,994,454.69 1.349 107,223,098.49 385 100 106,725,726.49 107,141,508.19 1.02 

 

 
22 of 122



Union Sanitary District
Board Report - Holdings
Report Format: By Transaction
Group By: Asset Class
Average By: Cost Value
Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios
As of 12/31/2017

Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

Agencies

FFCB 0.9 1/16/2018-16 3133ECCZ5 Moodys-
Aaa 12/23/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.900 999,850.00 0.900 1/16/2018 0.93

FFCB 1.17 5/16/2019-17 3133EF7L5 Moodys-
Aaa 5/16/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.170 989,040.00 1.170 5/16/2019 0.93

FFCB 1.3 11/25/2019-16 3133EGBK0 Moodys-
Aaa 5/25/2016 1,000,000.00 997,950.00 1.300 985,580.00 1.360 11/25/2019 0.93

FFCB 1.35 6/24/2019 3133EEZ60 Moodys-
Aaa 5/24/2017 1,000,000.00 1,003,480.00 1.350 994,870.00 1.180 6/24/2019 0.94

FFCB 1.37 12/27/2018-17 3133EGZ24 None 12/27/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.370 994,200.00 1.370 1/1/2018 12/27/2018 0.93

FFCB 1.59 3/23/2020-17 3133EFR25 Moodys-
Aaa 3/23/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.590 988,260.00 1.590 3/23/2020 0.93

FFCB 1.7 5/3/2021-17 3133EF5T0 Moodys-
Aaa 5/3/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.700 981,970.00 1.700 5/3/2021 0.93

FHLB 1.24 1/23/2019-18 3130AAN20 Moodys-
Aaa 2/2/2017 1,000,000.00 999,100.00 1.240 992,900.00 1.286 1/23/2018 1/23/2019 0.93

FHLB 1.375 2/28/2019-17 3130ABEH5 Moodys-
Aaa 5/30/2017 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.375 994,110.00 1.375 2/28/2019 0.93

FHLB 1.93 12/21/2020-17 3130AADQ8 None 12/21/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.930 991,040.00 1.930 12/21/2020 0.93

FHLB 2 10/26/2021-19 3130AB3D6 None 4/26/2017 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 2.000 988,730.00 2.000 4/26/2019 10/26/2021 0.93

FHLB 2.05 12/29/2021-17 3130AAET1 Moodys-
Aaa 12/29/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 2.050 984,800.00 2.050 3/29/2018 12/29/2021 0.93

FHLB 2.4 12/22/2021-17 3130AAHC5 None 12/22/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 2.400 998,400.00 2.400 12/22/2021 0.93

FHLB Step 4/28/2021-16 3130A7PR0 Moodys-
Aaa 4/28/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.250 991,870.00 2.114 1/28/2018 4/28/2021 0.93

FHLB Step 4/28/2021-16 3130A7QX6 Moodys-
Aaa 4/28/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.250 988,290.00 2.021 4/28/2021 0.93

FHLMC 1 8/15/2018-17 3134GABQ6 Moodys-
Aaa 1/31/2017 1,000,000.00 998,700.00 1.000 995,740.00 1.087 8/15/2018 0.93

FHLMC 1.2 12/14/2018-17 3134GAZU1 None 12/14/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.200 992,900.00 1.200 3/14/2018 12/14/2018 0.93

FHLMC 1.25 10/28/2019-17 3134G8XQ7 Moodys-
Aaa 4/28/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.250 987,500.00 1.250 10/28/2019 0.93

FHLMC 1.4 6/14/2019-17 3134GBRH7 6/14/2017 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.400 993,310.00 1.400 6/14/2019 0.93

Page 1 of 4

23 of 122



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

Moodys-
Aaa

FHLMC 1.41 4/26/2019-18 3134GBEG3 None 4/26/2017 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.410 993,490.00 1.410 4/26/2018 4/26/2019 0.93

FHLMC 1.5 12/30/2019-17 3134GAYY4 S&P-AA+ 12/30/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.500 989,520.00 1.500 3/30/2018 12/30/2019 0.93

FHLMC 1.5 9/9/2019-18 3134GA7A6 Moodys-
Aaa 5/10/2017 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.500 991,430.00 1.500 3/19/2018 9/9/2019 0.93

FHLMC 2 12/30/2021-17 3134GAYV0 None 12/30/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 2.000 985,110.00 2.000 3/30/2018 12/30/2021 0.93

FHLMC Step 4/28/2021-16 3134G8VZ9 Moodys-
Aaa 4/28/2016 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 1.375 2,457,300.00 2.116 4/28/2021 2.33

FHLMC Step 4/28/2021-16 3134G8Z28 Moodys-
Aaa 5/10/2016 1,000,000.00 999,500.00 1.125 986,430.00 2.044 1/28/2018 4/28/2021 0.93

FNMA 1.5 6/16/2021-16 3136G3QX6 Moodys-
Aaa 6/16/2016 1,000,000.00 995,000.00 1.500 973,190.00 1.604 3/16/2018 6/16/2021 0.93

Sub Total / Average 27,500,000.00 27,493,730.00 1.462 27,209,830.00 1.627 25.64

CAMP

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 None 5/31/2011 3,033,781.57 3,033,781.57 1.290 3,033,781.57 1.290 N/A N/A 2.83

Sub Total / Average 3,033,781.57 3,033,781.57 1.290 3,033,781.57 1.290 2.83

Certificates of Deposit

Ally Bank 1.35 10/28/2019 02006LQ48 None 10/27/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 1.350 244,658.30 1.350 10/28/2019 0.23

American Expr Centurion 
2.45 4/5/2022 02587DN38 None 4/5/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.450 249,100.64 2.450 4/5/2022 0.23

Belmont Savings Bank 2.15 
3/22/2022 080515BV0 None 3/20/2017 248,000.00 248,000.00 2.150 247,094.65 2.150 3/22/2022 0.23

BMW Bank 2.15 3/10/2022 05580AGR9 None 3/10/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.150 246,104.62 2.150 3/10/2022 0.23

Capital One Bank 1.5 
10/26/2020 140420L99 None 10/26/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 1.500 243,471.15 1.500 10/26/2020 0.23

Comenity Capital 1.25 
4/11/2019 20033ASR8 None 10/25/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 1.250 245,286.86 1.250 4/11/2019 0.23

Discover Bank 2.25 
12/29/2021 254672Y36 None 12/29/2016 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.250 247,133.36 2.250 12/29/2021 0.23

JP Morgan Chase Bank 1.1 
7/15/2019 48125Y5L4 None 7/15/2016 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.100 245,179.19 1.100 7/15/2019 0.23

Lakeside Bank 1.75 
5/29/2020 51210SMU8 None 5/30/2017 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.750 246,705.22 1.750 5/29/2020 0.23

Landmark Bank 2.1 
3/29/2021-17 51506VCA9 None 3/29/2017 248,000.00 248,000.00 2.100 247,221.13 2.100 3/27/2018 3/29/2021 0.23

Ponce De Leon Federal 
Bank 1.85 5/28/2021 732333AJ8 None 5/31/2017 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.850 246,063.00 1.850 5/28/2021 0.23

Page 2 of 4

24 of 122



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

State Bank of India 2.25 
1/26/2022

8562846A7 None 1/26/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.250 247,160.82 2.250 1/26/2022 0.23

Summit Community Bank 
1.65 5/29/2020 86604XLT1 None 5/31/2017 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.650 246,110.73 1.650 5/29/2020 0.23

Synchrony Bank 2.3 
2/24/2022 87165ELT2 None 2/28/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.300 247,626.05 2.300 2/24/2022 0.23

Wells Fargo Bank 1.15 
7/22/2019 9497486R3 None 7/20/2016 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.150 245,320.68 1.150 7/22/2019 0.23

Sub Total / Average 3,720,000.00 3,720,000.00 1.816 3,694,236.40 1.816 3.47

Corporate Issues

American Express Credit 
2.7 3/3/2022 0258M0EG0 Moodys-A2 5/15/2017 1,000,000.00 1,013,279.67 2.700 1,003,240.00 2.406 3/3/2022 0.95

Barclays Bank PLC Step 
4/26/2022-17 06741VR95 Moodys-A1 4/26/2017 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 2.250 992,960.00 3.093 4/26/2018 4/26/2022 0.93

Chevron Corp 2.1 
5/16/2021 166764BG4 Moodys-

Aa2 5/10/2017 1,000,000.00 999,500.00 2.100 991,810.00 2.113 5/16/2021 0.93

Chevron Corp 2.193 
11/15/2019 166764AN0 Moodys-

Aa2 2/26/2016 1,160,000.00 1,167,806.57 2.193 1,162,470.80 2.004 11/15/2019 1.09

GE Capital International 
2.04 11/15/2020 36164QMS4 S&P-AA 3/10/2017 1,000,000.00 1,010,642.28 2.040 995,390.00 1.738 11/15/2020 0.94

HSBC 4.875 8/24/2020 4042Q1AE7 Moodys-A1 5/17/2016 2,000,000.00 2,191,145.28 4.875 2,115,080.00 2.500 8/24/2020 2.04

Toyota Motor Credit 1.55 
7/13/2018 89236TCP8 Moodys-

Aa3 3/16/2016 1,000,000.00 1,002,490.00 1.550 998,320.00 1.440 7/13/2018 0.93

Toyota Motor Credit Corp 
1.2 4/6/2018 89236TCX1 Moodys-

Aa3 5/24/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,360.00 1.200 998,500.00 1.180 4/6/2018 0.93

Toyota Motor Credit Corp 
1.2 4/6/2018 89236TCX1 Moodys-

Aa3 4/6/2017 1,000,000.00 998,710.00 1.200 998,500.00 1.330 4/6/2018 0.93

Sub Total / Average 10,160,000.00 10,383,933.80 2.537 10,256,270.80 2.039 9.68

LAIF

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 None 4/30/2011 22,040,820.85 22,040,820.85 1.239 22,040,820.85 1.239 N/A N/A 20.56

Sub Total / Average 22,040,820.85 22,040,820.85 1.239 22,040,820.85 1.239 20.56

Municipal

City of Riverside CA 2.125 
6/1/2021 769036BA1 S&P-AA- 6/1/2017 500,000.00 500,000.00 2.125 492,010.00 2.125 6/1/2021 0.47

La Qunita Redev Agency 
2.034 9/1/2019 50420BCH3 S&P-AA- 12/22/2016 1,330,000.00 1,336,650.00 2.034 1,322,179.60 1.843 9/1/2019 1.25

State of California 2.152 
4/1/2022 13063DAD0 Moodys-

Aa3 4/27/2017 1,000,000.00 1,010,000.00 2.152 996,840.00 1.938 4/1/2022 0.94

Page 3 of 4

25 of 122



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

Victor Valley College 
General Obligation Bond 
2.35

92603PER9 Moodys-
Aa2

12/28/2016 500,000.00 490,150.00 2.350 491,625.00 2.811 8/1/2021 0.46

Sub Total / Average 3,330,000.00 3,336,800.00 2.130 3,302,654.60 2.056 3.11

None

Union Bank Cash LGIPUNIONBANK None 12/31/2016 32,209,852.27 32,209,852.27 0.890 32,209,852.27 0.890 N/A N/A 30.04

Sub Total / Average 32,209,852.27 32,209,852.27 0.890 32,209,852.27 0.890 30.04

Treasury

T-Note 0.875 1/15/2018 912828H37 Moodys-
Aaa 6/1/2015 1,000,000.00 1,001,560.00 0.875 999,880.00 0.815 1/15/2018 0.93

T-Note 0.875 1/31/2018 912828UJ7 None 1/9/2017 1,000,000.00 999,620.00 0.875 999,720.00 0.911 1/31/2018 0.93

T-Note 0.875 5/15/2019 912828R44 None 4/26/2017 1,000,000.00 993,080.00 0.875 986,840.00 1.217 5/15/2019 0.93

T-Note 1.283 3/31/2019 912828SN1 None 2/22/2017 1,000,000.00 1,004,480.00 1.283 995,820.00 1.067 3/31/2019 0.94

T-Note 1.5 2/28/2019 912828C24 None 1/9/2017 1,000,000.00 1,005,440.00 1.500 996,020.00 1.241 2/28/2019 0.94

Sub Total / Average 5,000,000.00 5,004,180.00 1.082 4,978,280.00 1.050 4.67

Total / Average 106,994,454.69 107,223,098.49 1.359 106,725,726.49 1.349 100

Page 4 of 4

All investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full compliance with the District’s Investment Policy. The District will meet its expenditure obligations for the next six months. 
Market value sources are the LAIF, CAMP, and BNY Mellon monthly statements. Broker/Dealers: BOSC, Inc.; Cantella & Co.; First Empire Securities; Ladenburg, Thalman
& Co, Inc.; UBS Financial Services; Wells Fargo Securities.

Reviewer: 

Approver: 

26 of 122



Description CUSIP/Ticker Coupon Rate YTM @ Cost Settlement Date Face Amount/Shares Principal Interest/Dividends Total Custodian Portfolio Name

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 N/A 0.000 12/29/2017 3,323.99 3,323.99 0.00 3,323.99 None Liquid Fund

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 N/A 0.000 12/14/2017 8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00 0.00 8,000,000.00 None Liquid Fund

Union Bank Cash LGIPUNIONBANK N/A 0.000 12/31/2017 32,209,852.27 32,209,852.27 0.00 32,209,852.27 None Liquid Fund

Sub Total / Average 40,213,176.26 40,213,176.26 0.00 40,213,176.26

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 N/A 0.000 12/29/2017 0.00 0.00 3,323.99 3,323.99 None Liquid Fund

City of Riverside CA 2.125 6/1/2021 769036BA1 2.125 0.000 12/01/2017 0.00 0.00 5,342.01 5,342.01 None Operating Fund

Comenity Capital 1.25 4/11/2019 20033ASR8 1.250 0.000 12/11/2017 0.00 0.00 254.79 254.79 None Operating Fund

Discover Bank 2.25 12/29/2021 254672Y36 2.250 0.000 12/29/2017 0.00 0.00 2,786.36 2,786.36 None Operating Fund

FFCB 1.35 6/24/2019 3133EEZ60 1.350 0.000 12/26/2017 0.00 0.00 7,600.00 7,600.00 None Operating Fund

FFCB 1.37 12/27/2018-17 3133EGZ24 1.370 0.000 12/27/2017 0.00 0.00 6,850.00 6,850.00 None Operating Fund

FHLB 1.93 12/21/2020-17 3130AADQ8 1.930 0.000 12/21/2017 0.00 0.00 9,650.00 9,650.00 None Operating Fund

FHLB 2.05 12/29/2021-17 3130AAET1 2.050 0.000 12/29/2017 0.00 0.00 10,250.00 10,250.00 None Operating Fund

FHLB 2.4 12/22/2021-17 3130AAHC5 2.400 0.000 12/22/2017 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 None Operating Fund

FHLMC 1.2 12/14/2018-17 3134GAZU1 1.200 0.000 12/14/2017 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 None Operating Fund

FHLMC 1.4 6/14/2019-17 3134GBRH7 1.400 0.000 12/14/2017 0.00 0.00 7,000.00 7,000.00 None Operating Fund

FNMA 1.5 6/16/2021-16 3136G3QX6 1.500 0.000 12/18/2017 0.00 0.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 None Operating Fund

Franklin Synergy Bank 0.85 12/11/2017 35471TCH3 0.850 0.000 12/11/2017 0.00 0.00 179.04 179.04 Bank of New York 7537 Operating Fund

Landmark Bank 2.1 3/29/2021-17 51506VCA9 2.100 0.000 12/29/2017 0.00 0.00 1,298.43 1,298.43 None Operating Fund

Pacific Premier Bank 0.9 12/5/2017 69478QDG2 0.900 0.000 12/05/2017 0.00 0.00 201.79 201.79 Bank of New York 7537 Operating Fund

Wells Fargo Bank 1.15 7/22/2019 9497486R3 1.150 0.000 12/20/2017 0.00 0.00 235.36 235.36 None Operating Fund

Sub Total / Average 0.00 0.00 80,471.77 80,471.77

Franklin Synergy Bank 0.85 12/11/2017 35471TCH3 0.850 0.000 12/11/2017 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.00 248,000.00 Bank of New York 7537 Operating Fund

Pacific Premier Bank 0.9 12/5/2017 69478QDG2 0.900 0.000 12/05/2017 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.00 248,000.00 Bank of New York 7537 Operating Fund

Sub Total / Average 496,000.00 496,000.00 0.00 496,000.00

Union Bank Cash LGIPUNIONBANK N/A 0.000 12/30/2017 13,451,419.61 13,451,419.61 0.00 13,451,419.61 None Liquid Fund

Sub Total / Average 13,451,419.61 13,451,419.61 0.00 13,451,419.61

Begin Date: 11/30/2017, End Date: 12/31/2017

Deposit

Interest

Matured

Withdraw

Union Sanitary District
Transactions Summary
Monthly Activity - by Action
Group By: Action
Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios

27 of 122



MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2017 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT WORK GROUP SUMMARY 

 
 
Capital Improvement Program 

 
Thickener Control Building Improvements Project – Project punchlist work has been completed.  Board 
acceptance to take place in January. 
 
Fremont and Paseo Padre Lift Stations Improvements Project –  Project closeout and punchlist work are in 
progress. 
 
Chemical Tanks and Piping Replacement Project – The contractor continued to work on the Corrective Work and 
Punch List items.  
 
Sludge Degritter System Project – The contractor will continue with performance tests on the new degritter in 
January. 
 
Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project Phase 1 – The project was accepted at the December 4th Board meeting. 
 
Newark Pump Station Wet Well Improvements – Contractor’s submittal reviews are in progress. Contractor 
anticipates removal of Wet Well 3 from service, installation of the modulating actuator, and modification of the 
boost pipeline in January. 
 
Cast Iron/Piping Lining Phase 6 –  CCTV inspection of installed CIPP liners has been completed and will be 
reviewed for acceptance. 

 
 
  

28 of 122



Customer Service 
 

Trouble Calls dispatched from the Front Desk during business hours: 
Month Fremont Newark Union City Total

December-17 9 0 1 10
November-17 9 0 1 10

October-17 8 2 3 13
September-17 9 2 2 13

August-17 8 2 1 11
July-17 8 2 1 11

December-16 7 3 1 11

6-Month Total 68

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Fremont

Newark

Union City

Total

 
 

Sewer Permits Issued 
 

Month Repairs Mains New Laterals Restaurants Other
December-17 29 3 6 1 1
November-17 28 3 101 4 0

October-17 30 1 72 1 2
New Laterals - New residential lateral connections
Other - Non-residential construction (except restaurants)

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

October-17 November-17 December-17

Repairs

Mains

New Laterals

Restaurants

Other

 
 
 

29 of 122



Communication 
 

• Potential branding vendors interviewed. 
• Participated in CASA Communications Workgroup January 2018 conference planning; prepared for 

facilitation of communication roundtable at January conference. 
• Participated in Chamber of Commerce Board activities as Director and Past-President; Washington 

Hospital Tree of Angels event. 
• Social Media Posts: Lego League winners; Gingerbread WWTP, USD Holiday Closures. 

 
 
Environmental Compliance 
 

Pollution Prevention/Stormwater Programs 
 
USD’s Environmental Compliance (EC) team conducts pollution prevention inspections at restaurants, car wash 
businesses, and other commercial facilities.  EC also conducts inspections and enforcement for the City of 
Fremont’s Environmental Services group.  We conduct over 600 Stormwater compliance inspections every year 
to ensure that commercial facilities, including restaurants and auto shops, comply with City Ordinance 
requirements, and do not discharge pollutants to the creeks and bay.  
 
During the past month, the EC team conducted 101 Stormwater (Urban Runoff), and 44 FOG (restaurant) 
inspections.  During this reporting period, Inspectors identified 32 Stormwater and 12 FOG enforcement actions.  
Ten (10) of the Stormwater enforcements resulted in administrative fines ranging from $100 to $500.  One (1) 
administrative fine was for illicit discharges and 9 were for repeated violations.   
 
Urban Runoff Inspections and Enforcements 

December 
2017 

No. of UR 
Inspections VW WL NOV AF LA 

Total 
Enforcements  

No. of Illicit 
Discharge/s 1 

101 6 0 16 10 0 32  % enforcement 32% 
 

FOG Inspections and Enforcements 

December 
2017 

No. of FOG 
Inspections VW WL NOV AF LA 

Total 
Enforcements  % Enforcement 27% 

44 4 8 0 0 0 12    
 

Enforcements: 
VW –Verbal Warning   WL – Warning Letter   NOV – Notices of Violation 
AF – Administrative Fine  LA – Legal Action   NOD – Notice of Deficiency 
AO – Administrative Order  C&D – Cease & Desist Order  SNC – Significant Non-Compliance 
 

    Dental Inspections, School Outreach, and Plant Tours 
# of Dental Inspections # of School Outreach Events including 

Sewer Science 
# of Plant Tours 

3 19 0 
 
 
Industrial Pretreatment  
 
The Industrial Pretreatment program has pending permits as shown in the table below.  USD inspectors are working 
with each of these companies to establish permitted industrial discharges. 
 

30 of 122



    Pending Permits 
New Industrial/Groundwater Permits Groundwater/Temporary 

  
 

Permits Issued  
Company Name Date Permit Issued 

Union Pacific Railroad (GW-0094) December 22, 2017 
 
    Industrial Closures  

Company Name Date of Closure 
Measurement Specialties, Inc. December 1, 2017 

 
Reports (Annual & Semi-Annual Pretreatment Report, Union City Report, etc.) 

Report Name Date Report Completed and Submitted 
None  

 
Enforcement Action 
IU Name & Nature of 

Business 
Comments City 

 
Parameters

Violated 
Discharge 
concen- 
tration 
(mg/L) 

USD/Fed 
Limit 

Violated
(mg/L) 

Enforce- 
ment 

(1) 

Great China Investment 
Group 
(for Pacific Sealing & Asphalt, 
an asphalt and paving 
contractor) 

Failure to terminate the 
current storm water 
surface yard drainage 
connection to USD 
sanitary sewer main. 

F N/A N/A N/A WL 

Kerry Ingredients and 
Flavours  
(food ingredients and flavour 
manufacturer) 
 

Failure to submit pH 
information in a timely 
manner per Ordinance No. 
36.03 and Discharge 
Permit #022. 

UC N/A N/A N/A WL 

Safety-Kleen  
(used oil collection, recycling, 
and re-refining) 

Independent sample using 
EPA method 625 was 
above the Local Limit of 
5.0 mg/L Phenols. 

N Phenols 5.2 mg/L 5.0 mg/L 
(USD 
Local 
Limit) 

WL 

Sanmina 
(painted metal enclosures) 

No comment F Zinc 4.3 mg/L 3 mg/L 
(USD 
Local 
Limit) 

NOV 

(1) WL   – Warning Letter NOV – Notices of Violation AO – Administrative Order 
 C&D – Cease and Desist Order  SNC – Significant Non-Compliance EM – Enforcement Meeting 
 

Other - Training, Special Meetings, Conferences, IAC (topics) 
 

Activity Date of Event Attendees 
BAPPG Steering and 
Committee Meeting 

12/06/17 Doug Dattawalker 
 

MEDs Coalition Meeting 12/18/17 Doug Dattawalker 
BACWA Luncheon Meeting 12/18/17 Doug Dattawalker 
 

31 of 122



 
Engineering/Construction 

 
No. of projects under construction: 8 
 

 Construction Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for  
Dec. 2017 Activities 

1.  Thickener Control Building 
Improvements Project – 
Curtis 

$9,990 03/17 100% 100% Project punchlist work has been 
completed.   

2.  Fremont and Paseo Padre 
LS Improvement - Derek 

$2,801 10/16 100% 100% Project closeout and punchlist 
work are in progress. 

3.  Chemical Tanks and Piping 
Replacement Project – 
Thomas 

$2,102 10/17 99% 100% Corrective work and punch list 
item work are in progress. 

4.  Sludge Degritter System 
Project – Kevin 

$1,436 11/17 95% 100% Degritter performance testing in 
progress. 

5.  Force Main Corrosion 
Repairs Phase 1 – Chris 

$839 10/17 100% 100% Project accepted at Dec. 4th 
Board meeting. 

6.  Newark Pump Station Wet 
Well Improvements - 
Thomas 

$674 03/18 10% 67% Equipment submittal reviews are 
in progress. 

7.  Cast Iron/Piping Lining 
Phase VI – Andrew 

$243 11/17 95% 100% CCTV inspection completed and 
will be reviewed for acceptance 

8.  Primary Digester No. 3 
Rehabilitation - Derek 

$1,956 08/18 5% 12% Preconstruction Meeting held on 
December 19th. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

32 of 122



Design/Study 
 

No. of projects in design/study phase: 13 
 

 Design/Study Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for 
Dec. 2017 Activities 

1.  Plant Solids System / 
Capacity Assessment Phase 2 
– Curtis 

$329 02/18 88% 87% Study is in progress.  
Additional Chapter 7 text 
was submitted on 
December 1st.  Finalized 
CIP TM was submitted on 
December 8th. 

2.  Local Limits Study – Chris $77 06/18 75% 56% Assistance with local 
limits implementation in 
progress. 

3.  Force Main Corrosion 
Repairs Phase 2 – Chris 

$62 02/18 95% 72% 100% design submittal 
completed and under 
review. 

4.  Cathodic Protection System 
Project - Chris 

$79 08/18 5% 9% Project kicked off.  Pre-
design work in progress. 

5.  Standby Power Generation 
System Upgrade Project – 
Raymond/Kevin 

$175 05/17 95% 100% Predesign report 
expected in January.  
Negotiation of design task 
order in progress. 

6.  Force Main Condition 
Assessment – Andrew 

$121 10/20 25% 30% Assessment on hold 
pending until next 
segment of Force Main 
can be taken out of 
service. 

7.  Emergency Outfall 
Improvements Project – 
Andrew  

$226 10/18 5% 14% Final design began in 
November.  Coordinating 
site survey and 
environmental 
assessment. 

8.  Primary Digester No. 7 
Project – Curtis 

$1,476 09/18 5% 6% Kickoff meeting for final 
design took place on 
December 13th. 

9.  Plant Master Plan – 
Raymond 

$304 11/17 65% 82% Continued with 
evaluation of the findings 
and recommendations 
from the Plant Solids 
System/Capacity 
Assessment Study.   
Workshop No. 3 
scheduled on January 
10th. 

10.  Effluent Management Study 
– Curtis 

$70 06/17 80% 100% Effluent management 
options analysis is in 
progress. 

33 of 122



 Design/Study Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for 
Dec. 2017 Activities 

11.  Odor Control Alternatives 
Study - Kevin 

$140 11/17 80% 100% Scheduling of collections 
system odor sampling in 
progress. 

12.  Headwork Screen No. 3 
Project - Thomas 

$50 01/18 50% 77% Evaluation of different 
screen equipment is in 
progress. 

13.  Alvarado Influent Pump 
Station Improvements 
Project - Thomas 

$54 01/18 40% 70% Evaluation of the pump 
type and configuration is 
in progress. 

 

34 of 122



COLLECTION SERVICES  
ACTIVITIES REPORT 

December 2017 
    

Progress/Accomplishments   
 

 No spills in December 
 Completed 24.9 miles of sewer main cleaning. 
 Completed 17.9 miles of sewer main inspection. 
 Responded to 15 service request calls. 
 Completed a total of zero sewer main repairs. 
 Trainings  

 Trench and excavation training 
 

   Reported Bay Area Spills 1/01/2017 thru 12/31/17 

 
 

 

 35 of 122



Performance Measures 
 
 

 

36 of 122



 
 

 

 

37 of 122



Other Collection Services Status Data: 
 

 

Support Team Work Order Status: 
 

  
 
     

C/S Maintenance Status: 
 

 

    

38 of 122



l

l

l

l

l

l

l

Future Planning
l

l

l

l

l

l

l

Performance Measurements

Installation of 4th Poly Skid at GBT

Other

Electrical and painting work for new office configuration in Collections

Fabrication, Maintenance and Construction

Activities Report

December 2017

Progress/Accomplishments

Completed  96% of preventive maintenance activities for the month of December

Completed 66 corrective maintenance work orders for the month of December

Cogen 1 10K service

RAS hypo injection piping for each pump

Centrifuge 2 Overhaul, including scroll base and cover repair by painters

Start up on Chopper Pump at IPS

Cogen #2 upper end o- ring and gasket replacement

Primary Clarifier 6 Annual

Installation of Chopper Pump at IPS (this is a trial pump)

MSB static loop fabrication

Pouring of concrete pad for fourth GBT Poly Unit

0

5

10

15

20

Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17

N
o

. o
f 

W
O

s

Priority A Repairs Required

Total Target

139 of 122



0

25

50

75

100

125

150
N

o
.  

o
f 

 W
O

s

Number of Work Orders Initiated & Completed Within Month

Initiated Completed

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

N
o

. o
f 

W
O

s

Number of Work Orders over 90 Days

# WO's Target

240 of 122



l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

Conducted operational testing of the RAS flow paced control system installed as part of the RAS 

Interim Improvements Project.

Conducted SCADA parallel testing in advance of the SCADA program update.

Continued monitoring results of the Membrane Acid Cleaning Project Phase II.

Negotiated a scope of work with DMJ consultants to review and recommend natural gas tariffs 

and alternatives for procuring natural gas. 

Conducted recruitment for a laboratory temporary employee to provide assistance for training 

new staff and to facilitate the Lab's participation in the ODMS project.

Met with CIP to discuss additional performance measurements for the Degritter 3 project 

acceptance testing. 

Begin training of two new Plant Operator III Trainees.

Cogen system produced 62% of power consumed for the month of December.

Other

Attend NELAC Implementation training session No. 2.

Attend BACWA annual meeting in January.

Provide comments on Chapter & of the CIP SSCAR project.

Attend Yorke Engineers webinar on Air Dispersion Modeling.

Review the BACWA Nutrient optimization  and upgrade project report for USD as required under 

the nutrient watershed permit.

Continue conducting operational testing of the RAS flow paced control system installed as part 

of the RAS Interim Improvements Project.

Attended Yorke Engineers webinar on the implementation of  BAAQMD Rule 11-18 and  AB 617.

Future Planning

Conduct operational testing of Degritter No. 3 and associated equipment for the 3rd Degritter 

Project.

Complete a study of natural gas alternatives with DMJ consultants.

Treatment & Disposal

Activities Report

December 2017

Progress/Accomplishments

Completed 100% preventive maintenance activities for the month of December.

Conducted hiring interviews for Plant Operator III and Plant Operator III Trainee recruitment.

Maintained 100% compliance with NPDES permits.

41 of 122



Performance Measurements

18

20

22

24

26

28

30

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

M
G

D

m
g/

l

Lab Results and Effluent Flow

EFF SS CBOD EFF SS Limit CBOD Limit Flow MGD

77% 74% 76% 76% 74% 75% 75% 75% 75% 73% 76% 74%
62%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

kW
h

 /
1

0
0

0
0

P
er

ce
n

t 
P

ro
d

u
ce

d
Cogen Power Produced

Percent Produced kWh /10000

Parameter EBDA Limit Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17

Copper, µg/l 78 5.2 5.6 3.7

Mercury, µg/l 0.066 0.00290 0.00280 0.00239

Cyanide, µg/l 42 < 3.9 < 2.5 < 2.5

Ammonia- N, mg/L (Range) 130 39.8 - 41.6 38.1 - 42.0 34.8 - 43.1

Fecal Coliform, MPN/100ml (Range)

• 5-Sample Geometric Mean 500 19 - 64 23 - 51 23 - 58

• 11-Sample 90th Percentile 1100 131 - 866 45 - 131 67 - 84

Enterococci

• 5-Sample Geometric Mean 242 10 - 18 10 - 11 13 - 17

USD's Final Effluent Monthly Monitoring Results

E = Estimated value, concentration outside calibration range.  For SIP, E = DNQ, estimated 

concentration.

42 of 122



 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
 
DATE: January 12, 2018 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 8 - Meeting of January 22, 2018 
 Consider a Motion to Cancel the May 28, 2018, Board of Directors Meeting  
 
Recommendation 
 
Consider a motion to cancel the May 28, 2018, Board of Directors meeting. 
 
Background 
 
The second regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors in May 2018 falls on 
Memorial Day, and District offices will be closed.  Staff recommends the Board consider the 
following options: 
 

1. Cancel the May 28, 2018, Board meeting. 
2. Cancel the May 28, 2018, Board meeting and schedule a special meeting for              

June 4, 2018. 
 

If the Board decides to schedule a special meeting for June 4, 2018, Committee meetings 
would be scheduled during the week of Memorial Day. 

43 of 122



 

 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: January 15, 2018 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 

Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
Curtis Bosick, Associate Engineer 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 9 – Meeting of January 22, 2018 

Authorize the General Manager to Execute Amendment No. 2 to Task Order 
No. 2 with RMC Water and Environment for the Plant Master Plan 

 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 2 to 
Task Order No. 2 with RMC Water and Environment in the amount of $74,518 for the Plant 
Master Plan. 
 
Background 
 
On December 14, 2016, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute an Agreement 
and Task Order No. 1 with RMC Water and Environment (RMC) in the amount of $265,217 for 
the Plant Master Plan.  The purpose of the Plant Master Plan is to review and assess the District’s 
near and long-term projects, evaluate the need to retrofit or replace existing facilities (e.g. 
Operations and Administration Buildings), recommend the sequence of design and construction 
implementation based on future regulatory changes, determine priorities and schedules of 
improvements, re-affirm previous recommendations, evaluate existing and future space and 
capacity needs, optimize process adjacencies, determine economic feasibility of options, and 
summarize what is intended to be a road map for the Waste Water Treatment Plant (WWTP) for 
the next 20 to 40 years. 
 

44 of 122



Agenda Item No. 9 
Meeting of January 22, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
On March 21, 2017, staff executed Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 1 in the amount of 
$39,700 with RMC for additional services related to the evaluation of the Administration Building.  
Under this amendment, RMC evaluated the capital and operation and maintenance costs of 
retrofitting the existing Plant Operation Control Building in conjunction with the costs of 
retrofitting the existing Administration Building.  Additionally, the costs of retrofitting both 
existing buildings will be compared to the cost of a new combined building. 
 
Task Order No. 2 
 
On March 27, 2017, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute Task Order No. 2 in 
the amount of $69,877 with RMC to conduct Phase 1 of the Effluent Management Study.  In 
Phase 1, RMC will evaluate the feasibility of alternatives for the management of effluent peak 
wet weather flows, such as: on-site and off-site equalization storage facilities; shallow water 
discharge to Old Alameda Creek; restoration of the Hayward Marsh; wet weather recycled water 
use; and influent flow reduction options such as site drainage flow reduction, conveyance system 
storage, and satellite treatment/disposal.  The feasibility assessment of potential alternatives 
included a life cycle cost analysis for up to four options. 
 
During the alternative screening process, staff became aware that the East Bay Dischargers 
Authority (EBDA) had hired a consultant to perform hydraulic modeling of their piping system.  
The results of this modeling effort would likely determine the District’s available discharge 
capacity in the EBDA Outfall during wet weather events, and better inform effluent management 
alternative development. 
 
Consequently, on January 11, 2018, staff executed Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 in the 
amount of $10,825 with RMC to provide a peer review of the EBDA Hydraulic Model Recalibration 
and Capacity Analysis, dated December 2017.  RMC will review the model configuration and 
inputs to identify potential issues that could impact the accuracy of the model results. 
 
The purpose of Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 is to evaluate strategies for early adoption 
of nutrient removal process at the Plant and at the Hayward Marsh.  Early adoption of nutrient 
removal could provide additional options to the overall effluent management strategies that 
involve shallow water discharge.  The early action nutrient removal tasks will provide the District 
with a preliminary estimate of how much nutrient removal can be achieved, impacts to the 
overall liquid process capacity, and planning level cost estimates.  
 
Early Action Nutrient Removal 
 
RMC will evaluate alternatives that are focused on process configurations and technologies that 
can be efficiently implemented with the existing treatment process structures or with moderate 

45 of 122



Agenda Item No. 9 
Meeting of January 22, 2018 
Page 3 
 
 
expansion.  RMC’s evaluation will also explore alternative technologies for early action nutrient 
removal implementation. 
 
Hayward Marsh Reconfiguration 
 
RMC will evaluate the feasibility of using Basin 1 and Basin 2A in the Hayward Marsh to provide 
dechlorination and ammonia removal from the District’s effluent.  The evaluation will include 
research into similar applications and process calculations to prove the concept. 
 
The scope of services for Amendment No. 2 and their respective fees are summarized as follows: 
 

Task 
No. Task Description Fee 

4 Project Management $5,676 
6 Early Action Nutrient Removal at Alvarado WWTP $58,710 

7 Feasibility of Hayward Marsh Reconfiguration for 
Ammonia Removal $10,132 

 Total Not-to-Exceed Fee $74,518 
 
Staff has reviewed the scope and fee and found the proposal to be reasonable.  All work under 
this amendment is expected to be completed by March 2018. 
 
The total amounts for the Project’s agreement with RMC are summarized in the table below: 
 

Description Fee 
Task Order No. 1 – Plant Master Plan $265,217 
Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 1 – Additional Services $39,700 
Task Order No. 2 – Effluent Management Study $69,877 
Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 – EBDA Model Review $10,825 
Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 – Early Action Nutrient 
Removal $74,518 

Total Not-to-Exceed Fee for this Agreement $460,137 
 

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 2 to 
Task Order No. 2 with RMC Water and Environment in the amount of $74,518 for the Plant 
Master Plan. 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/CB;dl 
 
Attachments: Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 

46 of 122



PLANT MASTER PLAN 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 
 

To  
 

TASK ORDER NO. 2 
 

To 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

AND 
 

RMC WATER AND ENVIRONMENT 
 

FOR 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

Dated December 14, 2016 
 
 

 
1. PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 is to evaluate 
strategies for early adoption of nutrient removal process at the District’s 
Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) and the Hayward Marsh.   
 
 

2.  PROJECT COORDINATION 
 
 All work related to this task order shall be coordinated through the District’s 

Project Manager, Curtis Bosick. 
 
 
3. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

The task numbers in this Scope of Services are associated with the cost 
data presented in Exhibit A and a continuation of the tasks included in 
Amendment No. 1 and the original Scope of Services for Task Order No. 2. 

47 of 122



Plant Master Plan 
Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 
Page 2 
 
 
 

 
Task 4: Project Management 

 
RMC shall coordinate with the District’s Project Manager and provide 
monthly reports to describe progress on the project. It is expected that 
regular progress meetings with District staff will be held to ensure the project 
stays on schedule. These meetings may be held in person or as a 
conference call. 
 
Task 6: Early Action Nutrient Removal at Alvarado WWTP 
 
This task includes evaluation of alternatives to implement early action 
nutrient removal at the WWTP.  Alternatives will be focused on process 
configurations and technologies that can be efficiently implemented with the 
existing treatment process structures or with moderate expansion (e.g. with 
new aeration basins 8 and 9).   
 
RMC will review existing process information (primarily the Solids System 
Capacity Assessment Report) which will be used to develop the nutrient 
removal processes.  RMC will develop a process configuration and 
estimated performance for analyzing four scenarios:  

1) Nitrogen removal capacity from a sidestream nutrient removal 
process (e.g.) on centrate.  

2) The level of total nitrogen removal (partial removal from full flow 
treatment) can be obtained by utilizing existing Aeration Basins 1-7 
and constructing Aeration Basin 8 and, possibly Basin 9. 

3) The de-rated WWTP flow capacity with a 15 mg/L and a 6 mg/L TN 
effluent limit utilizing existing Aeration Basins (AB) 1-7 and 
constructing Aeration Basins 8 and 9. 

4) Nitrogen removal capacity from conversion of AB 3 & 4 and new AB 
8 and 9 to an MBR process (on part of the WWTP flow). 

 
In addition, RMC will also explore alternative technologies (including 
granular activated sludge, MABR, IFAS/MBBR, BioMag, and post-aerobic 
digestion) for early action nutrient removal implementation.  These 
alternative technologies will be presented to and discussed with District’s 
staff during a single workshop.  For the purposes of this scope of work, it is 
assumed that two alternative technologies will be selected by the District for 
further evaluation under this task. 
 

48 of 122



Plant Master Plan 
Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 
Page 3 
 
 
 

Findings from the evaluation will include estimated impacts on total nitrogen 
in the WWTP effluent, planning-level estimates of process volumes, 
configuration, operational impacts (if any), and capital cost, and will be 
documented in the Effluent Management Study under Task Order No. 2. 

 
Task 7: Feasibility of Hayward Marsh Reconfiguration for Ammonia 
Removal 

 
If authorized by the District, RMC will evaluate the feasibility of using Basin 
1 and Basin 2A in the Hayward Marsh to provide dechlorination and 
ammonia removal from District’s effluent.  Work will include some research 
into similar applications and basic process calculations to prove the 
concept.  Results will be submitted to the District via email and will be 
documented in the Effluent Management Study under Task Order No. 2.   
 
 

4. DELIVERABLES 
 
 Project deliverables are listed below: 

 
Task 4: Project Management 

 
Deliverables: 

 Monthly invoices and progress reports. 
 

Task 6: Early Action Nutrient Removal at Alvarado WWTP 
 

Deliverables: 

 Findings from the evaluation will include estimated impacts on total 
nitrogen in the WWTP effluent, planning-level estimates of process 
volumes, configuration, and capital cost and will be documented in 
the Effluent Management Study under Task Order No. 2. 

 
Task 7: Feasibility of Hayward Marsh Reconfiguration for Ammonia 
Removal 

 
Deliverables: 

 Results will be submitted to the District via email and will be 
documented in the Effluent Management Study under Task Order 
No. 2. 

 
 

49 of 122



Plant Master Plan 
Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 
Page 4 
 
 
 
5. PAYMENT TO THE ENGINEER 
 
 Payment to the Engineer shall be as called for in Article 2 of the Agreement.  

The billing rate schedule is equivalent to an overall labor multiplier of 3.22, 
including profit. Subconsultants and outside services will be billed at actual 
cost plus 5%; other direct costs will be billed at actual cost; and mileage will 
be billed at prevailing IRS standard rate. 

 
 Total charges to the DISTRICT not-to-exceed amount shall be $74,518.  A 

summary of the anticipated distribution of cost and manpower between 
tasks is shown in Exhibit A. 

 
The following table summarizes the previously-executed and proposed task 
orders and amendments under the Agreement: 

 

Task Order / 
Amendment 

Not to 
Exceed 
Amount 

Board 
Authorization 

Required? 
District Staff 

Approval 

Task Order No. 1 – 
Plant Master Plan $265,217 Yes Paul Eldredge 

Amendment No. 1 to 
Task Order No. 1  $39,700 No Sami Ghossain

Task Order No. 2 – 
Effluent Management $69,877 Yes Paul Eldredge 

Amendment No. 1 to 
Task Order No. 2 – 
Effluent Management 
Study - EBDA Model 
Review  

$10,825 No Sami Ghossain

Amendment No. 2 to 
Task Order No. 2 – 
Effluent Management 
Study - Early Action 
Nutrient Removal 

$74,518 Yes Paul Eldredge 

Total $460,137  
 
6. TIME OF COMPLETION 
 
 All work defined in this Amendment shall be complete in 50 calendar days 

after the execution of this Amendment and subject to the conditions of 

50 of 122



Plant Master Plan 
Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 
Page 5 
 
 
 

Article 3 of this Agreement.  The anticipated milestones are approximately 
as follows: 

 Notice to Proceed: January 23, 2018 

 Hayward Marsh Ammonia Removal Findings: February 16, 2018 

 Early Action Nutrient Removal Findings: March 12, 2018 
 
 
7. KEY PERSONNEL 
 
 Engineering personnel assigned to this Amendment No. 2 to Task Order 

No. 2 are as follows: 
 
 Role Key Person to be Assigned 
 
 Principal-In-Charge Dave Richardson 
 Project Manager Dave Richardson 
 Project Engineer Mark Takemoto 
 
 Key personnel shall not be changed except in accordance with Article 8 of 

the Agreement. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this 
Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 as of January ____, 2018 and therewith 
incorporate it as part of the Agreement. 
 
DISTRICT ENGINEER 
 
Union Sanitary District RMC Water and Environment 
 
 
 
By: ________________________  By:     
 Paul R. Eldredge, P.E. Alyson Watson 
 General Manager/District Engineer SBU Leader 
 
 
Date:   Date:   

51 of 122



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

DATE: January 16, 2018 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager / District Engineer 
 Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager / Board Clerk 
 Karen Murphy, General Counsel 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 10 – Meeting of January 22, 2018 

GENERAL DISTRICT ELECTION:  
(A) CONSIDER A RESOLUTION ORDERING, CALLING, PROVIDING FOR, AND 
GIVING NOTICE OF A GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD IN UNION SANITARY 
DISTRICT, ALAMEDA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, ON TUESDAY, JUNE 5, 2018, FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF ELECTING TWO DIRECTORS; AND  
(B) CONSIDER A RESOLUTION ORDERING THE CONSOLIDATION OF THE 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT GENERAL ELECTION ON JUNE 5, 2018, WITH THE 
STATEWIDE DIRECT PRIMARY ELECTION TO BE HELD ON JUNE 5, 2018, AND 
REQUESTING THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA TO 
CONSOLIDATE THE GENERAL DISTRICT ELECTION WITH THE STATEWIDE 
DIRECT PRIMARY ELECTION TO BE HELD ON JUNE 5, 2018 

 
Recommendation 
 

(a) Adopt a Resolution ordering, calling, providing for, and giving notice of a general 
election to be held in Union Sanitary District, Alameda County, California, on Tuesday, 
June 5, 2018, for the purpose of electing two Directors; and 
 

(b) Adopt a Resolution ordering the consolidation of the Union Sanitary District general 
election on June 5, 2018, with the statewide direct primary election to be held on June 
5, 2018, and requesting the Board of Supervisors of the County of Alameda to 
consolidate the general District election with the statewide direct primary election to 
be held on said date; and 

 
(c) Authorize staff to notify the Registrar of Voters of the District's intention to consolidate 

election. 

52 of 122



Background 
 
Alameda County will conduct its statewide direct primary election on June 5, 2018.  It is 
customary to consolidate the District's general election with the primary election.  This year, 
the term of two seats from Ward 3 (Fremont) will expire. 
 
Once the resolutions are adopted, a notice of consolidation must be filed with the Registrar of 
Voters.  The filing period for candidates for the two District Board of Directors positions runs 
from February 12, 2018, to and including March 9, 2018. 
 
In accordance with previously established District policy, the candidates must pay for their own 
optional Statement of Qualifications. Advance payment is requested by the Registrar of Voters 
for this optional statement to be published. 
 
Per Senate Bill 568, operative on January 1, 2019, the Statewide direct primary will be held on 
the first Tuesday after the first Monday in March in each even-numbered year starting in 2020.  
We will be bringing an agenda item to the Board in the next few months to address how this 
will impact future elections and Board policies. 
 
 

53 of 122



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
RESOLUTION ORDERING, CALLING, PROVIDING FOR, AND GIVING 

NOTICE OF A GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD IN UNION SANITARY 
DISTRICT, ALAMEDA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, ON JUNE 5, 2018 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF ELECTING TWO DIRECTORS 

BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF UNION 
SANITARY DISTRICT, Alameda County, California, as follows: 

SECTION 1:  That an election be, is hereby ordered and called to be held; and, 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN 

that the election will be held in UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, Alameda County, California, on 
Tuesday, June 5, 2018, at the time for the holding of the Statewide Direct Primary Election provided 
for by Elections Code Sections 1000(c) and 1201, State of California, for the purpose of electing 

 
ONE DIRECTOR, WARD 3; FREMONT 
ONE DIRECTOR, WARD 3; FREMONT 

to hold office for the term prescribed by law and until the election and qualifications of their 
successors.  Term of office are for four years. 

SECTION 2:  The election hereby called and ordered to be held in the District, 
including the nomination of candidates and the election of Directors and all matters pertaining 
thereto shall be held and conducted and the results ascertained, determined, and declared in 
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Health and Safety Code and Elections Code and 
substantially as herein prescribed and in all other respects as nearly as practicable in conformity 
to the general election laws of the State of California. 

SECTION 3:  Two Directors shall be elected from Ward Three, as defined in Union 
Sanitary District Ordinance No. 33, at the election, for the term prescribed by law. The Directors shall 
be residents and registered voters of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT and from the geographical area 
of the respective Ward each candidate seeks to represent.  The ballot shall contain the names of the 
persons nominated for the office of Director of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT.  Candidates shall 
declare their candidacy; election returns shall be canvassed; the election shall be held and 
conducted; the results shall be declared; and the certificates of election shall be issued in the same 
manner as the Declaration of Candidacy, election, canvassing of returns, declaration of results, and 
issuance of Certificates of Election for County Officers are made, declared, held, conducted, and 
issued consistent with the provisions of the Elections Code of California and California Health and 
Safety Code Section 6580.1. 

SECTION 4:  The election provided for herein is ordered consolidated in accordance 
with law, with the Statewide Direct Primary Election provided for by Elections Code Sections 
1000(c) and 1201 to be held in the County of Alameda and in the territory of the UNION SANITARY 
DISTRICT on June 5, 2018; and the Board of Supervisors of Alameda County is authorized to cause 
the canvass of the returns of the District election and certify the results of the canvass to the Board of 
Directors of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT; and such election within the area of the District shall be 
held in all respects as if there were only one election; and only one form of ballot shall be used thereat; 
and the election precincts, polling places, and voting booths shall in every case be the same; and 

54 of 122



there shall be only one set of election officers in each of the precincts, and they shall be those selected 
and designated by the Board of Supervisors of Alameda County, California, for the Statewide Direct 
Primary Election. 

SECTION 5:  Official petitions for eligible candidates desiring to file for each office may 
be obtained from the office of the Registrar of Voters.  Appointment to each elective office will be 
made as prescribed by California Elections Code Section 10515 in the event there are no nominees 
for any specific seat or seats and a petition for an election is not filed within the time prescribed by 
Elections Code Section 10515.  In the event of a tie vote, the tie shall be resolved by lot. 

SECTION 6:  At the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors of UNION 
SANITARY DISTRICT held after the receipt of the returns of the canvass by the Board of 
Supervisors of Alameda County, California, the Board of Directors shall determine the results of 
the election and shall provide a statement of the results of the election as ascertained by the 
canvass, giving the total votes cast for each candidate for office of Director voted upon at the 
election. 

On motion duly made and seconded, this resolution was adopted by the following vote 
on January 22, 2018: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

PAT KITE 
President, Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District 

MANNY FERNANDEZ 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District 

 

 

55 of 122



RESOLUTION NO.  __  

RESOLUTION ORDERING THE CONSOLIDATION OF THE UNION SANITARY 
DISTRICT GENERAL ELECTION ON JUNE 5, 2018, WITH THE STATEWIDE DIRECT 

 PRIMARY ELECTION TO BE HELD ON JUNE 5, 2018, AND REQUESTING THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA TO 
CONSOLIDATE THE GENERAL DISTRICT ELECTION WITH THE 

STATEWIDE DIRECT PRIMARY ELECTION TO BE HELD ON JUNE 5, 2018 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT of 
Alameda County, State of California, has called a General District Election to be held in 
said District on June 5, 2018, for the purpose of electing a successor for each of the two (2) 
members whose terms are about to expire; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT has 
declared its intention that all General District Elections for the election of Directors be 
consolidated with and held on the same date as the Statewide Direct Primary Election is to 
be held in accordance with §6580.1 of the Health and Safety Code of the State of 
California. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Union 
Sanitary District as follows: 

1. That the General District Election to be held on June 5, 2018, in the UNION 
SANITARY DISTRICT, of Alameda County, shall be and the same hereby is consolidated 
with the Statewide Direct Primary Election to be held on that date. 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Elections Code Section 10400 et seq. of the 
State of California, the Board of Directors of the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT hereby 
requests the Board of Supervisors of Alameda County, California, to consolidate, in 
accordance with the law, the General District Election ordered and called to be held on 
June 5, 2018, with the Statewide Direct Primary Election to be held on June 5, 2018, as 
provided by Elections Code, Sections 1000(c) and 1201 and §6580.1 of the Health and 
Safety Code of California. 

3. Any candidate filing a candidate's statement of qualifications pursuant to 
California Elections Code Section 13307 shall pay the actual prorated costs of printing and 
handling said candidate's statement as provided therein. Such payment is to be made in 
advance to the Registrar of Voters.  The candidate's statement shall contain no more than 
200 words.  Candidates will not be permitted to submit other materials to be sent with the 
sample ballot and voter's pamphlet. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

56 of 122



On motion duly made and seconded, this resolution was adopted by the 
following vote on January 22, 2018: 
   

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

PAT KITE 
President, Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District 

MANNY FERNANDEZ 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District 

 

 

57 of 122



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: January 12, 2018 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Michelle Powell, Communications and Intergovernmental Relations 

Coordinator 
Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk  

  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11 – Meeting of January 22, 2018 
 Receive Update and Provide Direction on USD’s Branding Initiative 
  
Recommendation 
 
Receive an update on USD’s Branding Initiative and consultant selection, and provide direction 
as necessary. 
 
Background 
 
At its meeting of March 13, 2017, the Board directed Staff to pursue a Branding Initiative, 
focusing on freshening the District’s logo and color palette, possibly including use of a 
shortened name, and addition of a tagline. Subsequently, Staff developed a Request for 
Proposals (RFP) for a District Branding Initiative. Five bids were received by the RFP’s 
November 3, 2017 deadline. Two firms receiving the highest preliminary scores were 
interviewed in person. 
 
After finalist interviews were completed, staff agreed that Pier 2 Marketing would be the best 
fit for USD’s project requirements and organizational culture. Pier 2 Marketing was founded 10 
years ago in San Francisco, and has worked with many clients in Northern California, including 
several public institutions, and companies/agencies in Alameda County. The Pier 2 team has 
over 35 years of combined experience working in the region. 
 

58 of 122



Staff worked with Pier 2 Marketing to develop a project scope and preliminary timeline, which 
will be adjusted if necessary after initial kickoff activities are completed. The initial meetings 
are tentatively scheduled to be held in late January/February 2018. 
 
The preliminary timeline includes consultant review of wastewater branding research, 
assessment of the District’s current branding activities, and several internal brainstorming and 
concept refinement meetings. A Brand Strategy, potential names/taglines, and logo concepts 
are scheduled for presentation to the Board at various milestones during the process. 
 
It is currently planned for the Board to determine whether it desires feedback from external 
stakeholders, including the stakeholders and level of involvement once branding concepts are 
developed. The current scope and fee includes these efforts should this be desired. 
 
After the Board’s review of the Branding Strategy and draft concepts, they will be introduced 
to USD’s teams, and if the Board desires, the external stakeholder focus group(s). In addition to 
meeting with the individual Teams, the establishment of an internal Branding working group 
will also be evaluated. The concept would include one representative from each Team to work 
on this initiative. The need and desire for the establishment of the working group will be done 
jointly with District staff and Management.  
 
Concepts will go through additional refinement rounds before a final Board workshop or 
meeting is scheduled to consider adoption. After adoption of the new brand, the consultant 
will develop and present an implementation plan, including estimated costs of implementing 
any changes. 
 
Pier 2 Marketing estimates that fulfillment of this project over the potential timeline of 18 to 
24 months will require 724 to 976 hours of their time, depending on the number of options 
considered and refinements requested. Based upon consultant hours, the project cost ranges 
between $69,100 to $91,480. Pier 2 has included the ten percent discount they provide to 
public institutions in this total. 
 
 
 
Attachments:  Pier 2 preliminary project timeline 
  Pier 2 past project samples 

59 of 122



Pier 2 Preliminary Project Timeline 
(To be further refined and developed in consultation w/ Pier 2) 

 
Phase 1 – Project Kick off and Discovery 

 Kickoff/Discovery meeting 

o Participate in orientation meeting with key 

stakeholders to understand USD’s services to the 

community, reputation, and current logo design and 

uses, as well as industry trends. 

 Pier2 analyzes and refines USD’s estimated timeline for 

delivery of consultant services. 

End January/early February 

Phase 2 – Review research and assess current branding 
 Pier 2 reviews existing research provided by USD  

 Pier2 to review and assess the current branding strategy, logo 

uses, outreach efforts and other communications/materials – 

gather key messaging, voice and graphic elements used. (USD 

team to share these materials with the Pier2 team). 

 

February 2018 

2-3 weeks 

Phase 3 – Brainstorming sessions. Branding input 
 Brainstorming session with USD team to gather input and 

branding direction. 

 Participate in internal focus group/groups to gather employee 

input regarding what USD’s branding should illustrate. 

o Two brown bags plus one possible internal meeting  

 

February 2018 

2-3 weeks 

Phase 4 – Branding strategy and Exploration of name change, 
nickname and tagline. 

 Pier2 develops USD Brand Strategy 

 Pier2 conducts name/nickname exploration and tagline 

 Meeting to present brand strategy and name exploration to 

USD team 

 Board Workshop #1 to present Brand Strategy, name 

exploration and taglines. 

 Confirm w/board whether they want external feedback; if so, 

who do they want as focus group participants 

March 2018/ 

April 2018 

4-6 weeks  

Phase 5 – Create new branding concepts 
 Pier2 develops three initial concepts for USD brand 

identity/exploration of name change  

 Present initial concepts at Board Workshop #2; obtain 

feedback 

 Pier2 incorporates Board feedback into concepts 

 

May/June 2018 

4-8 weeks 

 

60 of 122



Phase 6 – Test branding concepts with internal and external 
stakeholders. 

 Introduce concepts to internal and external stakeholder focus 

groups; obtain feedback 

o Present to teams (USD staff can do this) 

o Pier 2 could assist with presentation to selected 

external community members (focus group) 

 

Up to 12 months  

Phase 7 – Changes to branding concepts based on feedback 
 Possible Pier2 changes to three concepts based on stakeholder 

feedback  

 Board workshop #3 to present the results from these insights 

and the revised concepts. 

 

Summer 2019 

4-8 weeks 

Phase 8 – Test refined concepts and branding approval 
 Return w/ final drafts to stakeholder focus groups for review 

and input.  

 Pier 2 further refines concepts (3), incorporating input (if 

necessary).  

 Board workshop #4 or meeting to consider adoption 

 

Complete by Fall 2019 

Fall 2019 or Winter 

2019/2020 

10-15 weeks 

 

Phase 9 – Delivery of final branding concept and branding 
guidelines 

 Prepare brand guidelines and complete style guide.  

 Deliver logo (logotype and logo mark) in the formats and 

variations required by USD (beginning of project). 

 

Winter 2020 

2-4 weeks 

Phase 10 – Training and implementation plan 
 Pier 2 develops and presents “training and implementation 

plan” 

 

Winter 2020 

3-5 weeks 

 

61 of 122



your marketing partners

past projects.

62 of 122



your marketing partners

past projects.

Original  
logo

63 of 122



your marketing partners

past projects.

64 of 122



past projects.

your marketing partners

Campaign to promote big data.

65 of 122



past projects.
Campaign to promote world leading production supercomputing.

66 of 122



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE:  January 11, 2018 
 
MEMO TO:  Board of Directors ‐ Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

Laurie Brenner, Business Services Coach 
Nina Narvaez, Administrative Specialist  
 

   
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item No. 12 ‐ Meeting of January 22, 2018 
  Information Item:    CAL‐Card Quarterly Merchant Activity Report 
   
Background 
 
The attached CAL‐Card Merchant Spend Analysis details the CAL‐Card activity for the second 
quarter of FY 2018. This covers transactions from the CAL‐Card billing period October 23, 2017 
through December 22, 2017. During this quarter, we had 253 transactions totaling $71,534.34 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:  Merchant Spend Analysis Report 

     

67 of 122



State of California

Report Date: 01/10/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

289779 COMPUTER 4816 DRI*FLIR SYSTEMS ORDERFIND.COM MN $ 7,980.00 1 $ 7,980.00 $ 0.00 0 $ 7,980.00 11.16% 1 $ 0.00

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 PENN DETROIT 215-335-0500 PA 6,667.21 3 2,222.40 0.00 0 6,667.21 9.32% 3 475.01

TRADE DIESE

137510 Rialto 9399 CITY OF FREMONT FREMONT CA 4,822.00 4 1,205.50 0.00 0 4,822.00 6.74% 4 0.00

DEV SVCS

217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 CALIFORNIA 510-3827800 CA 4,511.00 27 167.07 0.00 0 4,511.00 6.31% 27 0.00

WATER ENVIRONM

47979 WHOLESALE 5039 OWEN EQUIPMENT 503-2559055 OR 3,702.74 2 1,851.37 0.00 0 3,702.74 5.18% 2 318.61

TRADE COMPANY

47978 VEHICLE 7531 SCELZI 559-2375541 CA 3,516.11 1 3,516.11 0.00 0 3,516.11 4.92% 1 0.00

EXPENSE ENTERPRISES INC

47961 AUTO/RV 5511 HUMMEL'S 317-294-9858 IN 3,000.00 1 3,000.00 0.00 0 3,000.00 4.19% 1 0.00

DEALERS

281845 Food Exceptions 5411 ARTEAGA'S NEWARK CA 2,251.89 1 2,251.89 0.00 0 2,251.89 3.15% 1 200.06

CATERING

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 VALIN 408-730-9850 CA 1,780.47 1 1,780.47 0.00 0 1,780.47 2.49% 1 157.04

TRADE CORPORATION

47971 OFFICE 5942 AMAZON AMZN.COM/BILL WA 1,170.75 10 117.08 0.00 0 1,170.75 1.64% 10 11.42

SUPPLIES MKTPLACE PMTS

281845 Food Exceptions 5814 MR PICKLES 325 - UNION CITY CA 1,120.20 18 62.23 0.00 0 1,120.20 1.57% 18 0.00

UNION

217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 GOVERNMENT 312-977-9700 IL 1,030.00 6 171.67 0.00 0 1,030.00 1.44% 6 0.00

FINANCE

141822 Hardware Supply 5200 THE HOME DEPOT UNION CITY CA 890.02 2 445.01 0.00 0 890.02 1.24% 2 79.07

#0635

47979 WHOLESALE 5045 DMI* DELL BUS 800-456-3355 TX 873.35 1 873.35 0.00 0 873.35 1.22% 1 76.36

TRADE ONLINE

217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 AMERICAN 210-226-4600 TX 855.00 2 427.50 0.00 0 855.00 1.20% 2 0.00

PAYROLL ASSOC

47970 OFFICE 7311 IN *TRI-CITY VOICE 510-4941999 CA 830.00 1 830.00 0.00 0 830.00 1.16% 1 0.00

SERVICES NEWSPA

47979 WHOLESALE 5300 COSTCO WHSE HAYWARD CA 806.10 9 89.57 0.00 0 806.10 1.13% 9 0.00

TRADE #1061

47971 OFFICE 5943 OFFICEMAX/OFFIC UNION CITY CA 748.74 2 374.37 0.00 0 748.74 1.05% 2 66.52

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 01/10/2018 16:29:24  Page     1

68 of 122

https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=154539317&MCC=4816&MST=MN&MCITY=ORDERFIND.COM&MNM=DRI*FLIR%20SYSTEMS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=126076618&MCC=5085&MST=PA&MCITY=215-335-0500&MNM=PENN%20DETROIT%20DIESE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=126076618&MCC=5085&MST=PA&MCITY=215-335-0500&MNM=PENN%20DETROIT%20DIESE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137553455&MCC=9399&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=CITY%20OF%20FREMONT%20DEV%20SVCS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137553455&MCC=9399&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=CITY%20OF%20FREMONT%20DEV%20SVCS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=126086712&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=510-3827800&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20WATER%20ENVIRONM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=126086712&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=510-3827800&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20WATER%20ENVIRONM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=134332780&MCC=5039&MST=OR&MCITY=503-2559055&MNM=OWEN%20EQUIPMENT%20COMPANY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=134332780&MCC=5039&MST=OR&MCITY=503-2559055&MNM=OWEN%20EQUIPMENT%20COMPANY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=157134003&MCC=7531&MST=CA&MCITY=559-2375541&MNM=SCELZI%20ENTERPRISES%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=157134003&MCC=7531&MST=CA&MCITY=559-2375541&MNM=SCELZI%20ENTERPRISES%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=231161695&MCC=5511&MST=IN&MCITY=317-294-9858&MNM=HUMMEL%27%27S
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=179168722&MCC=5411&MST=CA&MCITY=NEWARK&MNM=ARTEAGA%27%27S%20CATERING
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=179168722&MCC=5411&MST=CA&MCITY=NEWARK&MNM=ARTEAGA%27%27S%20CATERING
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=160090753&MCC=5085&MST=CA&MCITY=408-730-9850&MNM=VALIN%20CORPORATION
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=160090753&MCC=5085&MST=CA&MCITY=408-730-9850&MNM=VALIN%20CORPORATION
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=226345797&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON%20MKTPLACE%20PMTS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=226345797&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON%20MKTPLACE%20PMTS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=123472685&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=MR%20PICKLES%20325%20-%20UNION
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=123472685&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=MR%20PICKLES%20325%20-%20UNION
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=148992923&MCC=8699&MST=IL&MCITY=312-977-9700&MNM=GOVERNMENT%20FINANCE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=148992923&MCC=8699&MST=IL&MCITY=312-977-9700&MNM=GOVERNMENT%20FINANCE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165965521&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20%230635
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165965521&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20%230635
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=207606066&MCC=5045&MST=TX&MCITY=800-456-3355&MNM=DMI*%20DELL%20BUS%20ONLINE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=207606066&MCC=5045&MST=TX&MCITY=800-456-3355&MNM=DMI*%20DELL%20BUS%20ONLINE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137162010&MCC=8699&MST=TX&MCITY=210-226-4600&MNM=AMERICAN%20PAYROLL%20ASSOC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137162010&MCC=8699&MST=TX&MCITY=210-226-4600&MNM=AMERICAN%20PAYROLL%20ASSOC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198058927&MCC=7311&MST=CA&MCITY=510-4941999&MNM=IN%20*TRI-CITY%20VOICE%20NEWSPA
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198058927&MCC=7311&MST=CA&MCITY=510-4941999&MNM=IN%20*TRI-CITY%20VOICE%20NEWSPA
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=126138663&MCC=5300&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=COSTCO%20WHSE%20%231061
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=126138663&MCC=5300&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=COSTCO%20WHSE%20%231061
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=177099191&MCC=5943&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=OFFICEMAX/OFFICEDEPOT6177


State of California

Report Date: 01/10/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47971 SUPPLIES EDEPOT6177

47970 OFFICE 7399 ZIPRECRUITER, 855-747-5493 CA 747.00 3 249.00 0.00 0 747.00 1.04% 3 0.00

SERVICES INC.

47970 OFFICE 7399 HWEX-WORLDOFC 972-536-6323 TX 650.00 1 650.00 0.00 0 650.00 0.91% 1 0.00

SERVICES ONCRETE REG

47979 WHOLESALE 5251 D & F LIQUIDATORS 510-785-9600 CA 649.72 2 324.86 0.00 0 649.72 0.91% 2 0.00

TRADE

47965 HOTELS 3504 HILTON PALM PALM SPRINGS CA 627.93 3 209.31 0.00 0 627.93 0.88% 3 0.00

SPRINGS

47970 OFFICE 8911 BROWN AND 925-2102277 CO 600.00 3 200.00 0.00 0 600.00 0.84% 3 0.00

SERVICES CALDWELL

47979 WHOLESALE 5072 THE LIGHTHOUSE HAYWARD CA 594.05 2 297.03 0.00 0 594.05 0.83% 2 0.00

TRADE

320956 Dues/Education 8398 PAYPAL *CWEA 402-935-7733 CA 570.00 2 285.00 0.00 0 570.00 0.80% 2 0.00

217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 CASA 916-2470245 CA 550.00 1 550.00 0.00 0 550.00 0.77% 1 0.00

320956 Dues/Education 8299 WWW.LORMAN.CO 800-678-3940 WI 537.01 1 537.01 0.00 0 537.01 0.75% 1 0.00

M

284298 VTA Catering 5812 VINCES CAFE 510-6573287 CA 494.00 1 494.00 0.00 0 494.00 0.69% 1 0.00

212656 SCCLD AUTO 7538 BAYCOUNTIESDIES 510-490-5665 CA 490.49 1 490.49 0.00 0 490.49 0.69% 1 0.01

ELSERVINC

47979 WHOLESALE 5051 HOWARD WIRE 800-9693559 CA 488.57 2 244.29 0.00 0 488.57 0.68% 2 41.37

TRADE CLOTH CO

320956 Dues/Education 8398 ASSOCIATION OF 844-4222294 MN 471.75 1 471.75 0.00 0 471.75 0.66% 1 0.00

WORKPLACE

47962 BUILDING 1799 NAYLOR STEEL HAYWARD CA 468.63 1 468.63 0.00 0 468.63 0.66% 1 41.63

SERVIC

47972 OTHER 5818 PRIME VIDEO 888-802-3080 WA 449.00 1 449.00 0.00 0 449.00 0.63% 1 0.00

5818 AMAZON DIGITAL 888-482-7820 WA 449.00 1 449.00 0.00 0 449.00 0.63% 1 0.00

SVCS

289498 IT SOFTWARE 5734 SOURCEGEAR DBA ZUMERO.COM IL 420.00 1 420.00 0.00 0 420.00 0.59% 1 0.00

ZUMERO

141822 Hardware Supply 5200 THE HOME DEPOT NEWARK CA 408.27 1 408.27 0.00 0 408.27 0.57% 1 36.27

#6964

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 SP SCIENTIFIC - 856-6973000 NJ 401.70 1 401.70 0.00 0 401.70 0.56% 1 0.00

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 01/10/2018 16:29:24  Page     2

69 of 122

https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=177099191&MCC=5943&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=OFFICEMAX/OFFICEDEPOT6177
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137378788&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=855-747-5493&MNM=ZIPRECRUITER,%20INC.
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137378788&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=855-747-5493&MNM=ZIPRECRUITER,%20INC.
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=188015664&MCC=7399&MST=TX&MCITY=972-536-6323&MNM=HWEX-WORLDOFCONCRETE%20REG
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=188015664&MCC=7399&MST=TX&MCITY=972-536-6323&MNM=HWEX-WORLDOFCONCRETE%20REG
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=162919808&MCC=5251&MST=CA&MCITY=510-785-9600&MNM=D%20%26%20F%20LIQUIDATORS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175608346&MCC=3504&MST=CA&MCITY=PALM%20SPRINGS&MNM=HILTON%20PALM%20SPRINGS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175608346&MCC=3504&MST=CA&MCITY=PALM%20SPRINGS&MNM=HILTON%20PALM%20SPRINGS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=231954757&MCC=8911&MST=CO&MCITY=925-2102277&MNM=BROWN%20AND%20CALDWELL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=231954757&MCC=8911&MST=CO&MCITY=925-2102277&MNM=BROWN%20AND%20CALDWELL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=142879842&MCC=5072&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=THE%20LIGHTHOUSE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=177256121&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*CWEA
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=154391946&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=916-2470245&MNM=CASA
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=213251525&MCC=8299&MST=WI&MCITY=800-678-3940&MNM=WWW.LORMAN.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=213251525&MCC=8299&MST=WI&MCITY=800-678-3940&MNM=WWW.LORMAN.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=134330575&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=510-6573287&MNM=VINCES%20CAFE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=140621988&MCC=7538&MST=CA&MCITY=510-490-5665&MNM=BAYCOUNTIESDIESELSERVINC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=140621988&MCC=7538&MST=CA&MCITY=510-490-5665&MNM=BAYCOUNTIESDIESELSERVINC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=162940852&MCC=5051&MST=CA&MCITY=800-9693559&MNM=HOWARD%20WIRE%20CLOTH%20CO
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=162940852&MCC=5051&MST=CA&MCITY=800-9693559&MNM=HOWARD%20WIRE%20CLOTH%20CO
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=234766710&MCC=8398&MST=MN&MCITY=844-4222294&MNM=ASSOCIATION%20OF%20WORKPLACE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=234766710&MCC=8398&MST=MN&MCITY=844-4222294&MNM=ASSOCIATION%20OF%20WORKPLACE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=128807568&MCC=1799&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=NAYLOR%20STEEL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5818&MST=WA&MCITY=888-802-3080&MNM=PRIME%20VIDEO
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=209837821&MCC=5818&MST=WA&MCITY=888-482-7820&MNM=AMAZON%20DIGITAL%20SVCS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=209837821&MCC=5818&MST=WA&MCITY=888-482-7820&MNM=AMAZON%20DIGITAL%20SVCS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=128743932&MCC=5734&MST=IL&MCITY=ZUMERO.COM&MNM=SOURCEGEAR%20DBA%20ZUMERO
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=128743932&MCC=5734&MST=IL&MCITY=ZUMERO.COM&MNM=SOURCEGEAR%20DBA%20ZUMERO
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166229126&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=NEWARK&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20%236964
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166229126&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=NEWARK&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20%236964
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=156864938&MCC=5085&MST=NJ&MCITY=856-6973000&MNM=SP%20SCIENTIFIC%20-%20WILMAD


State of California

Report Date: 01/10/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47979 TRADE WILMAD

47972 OTHER 5999 CAL OSHA RE 916-774-4000 CA 395.00 1 395.00 0.00 0 395.00 0.55% 1 0.00

217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 CAPPO SOUTHERN 530-822-5009 CA 395.00 1 395.00 0.00 0 395.00 0.55% 1 0.00

CONFERENCE

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 ZORO TOOLS INC 855-2899676 IL 372.06 1 372.06 0.00 0 372.06 0.52% 1 0.00

TRADE

217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 NATIONAL 703-7368900 VA 356.00 1 356.00 0.00 0 356.00 0.50% 1 0.00

INSITUTE OF GOVE

47979 WHOLESALE 5072 BURLINGTON 925-8661412 CA 352.71 1 352.71 0.00 0 352.71 0.49% 1 0.00

TRADE SAFETY LABORAT

320956 Dues/Education 8641 CALIFORNIA 916-2312137 CA 500.00 3 166.67 150.00 1 350.00 0.49% 4 0.00

SOCIETY OF MUN

47979 WHOLESALE 5192 BNI BOOKS 760-734-1113 CA 342.90 1 342.90 0.00 0 342.90 0.48% 1 0.00

TRADE

47971 OFFICE 5943 PRINT TO MAIL BY 866-6672861 CA 341.96 1 341.96 0.00 0 341.96 0.48% 1 0.00

SUPPLIES DELUXE

47960 AIRLINE 3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 328.97 1 328.97 0.00 0 328.97 0.46% 1 0.00

5268771332007

150085 MCC5969 5969 4IMPRINT 877-4467746 WI 323.55 1 323.55 0.00 0 323.55 0.45% 1 26.72

47979 WHOLESALE 5021 OFFICEREPLA 347-561-7587 NY 320.40 1 320.40 0.00 0 320.40 0.45% 1 0.00

TRADE

217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 WEF MAIN 703-684-2400 VA 320.00 1 320.00 0.00 0 320.00 0.45% 1 0.00

284298 VTA Catering 5812 DOORDASH-DRAG DOORDASH.COM CA 310.94 2 155.47 0.00 0 310.94 0.43% 2 0.00

ON HOUSE

320956 Dues/Education 8398 THE NELAC 817-5981624 TX 300.00 1 300.00 0.00 0 300.00 0.42% 1 0.00

INSTITUTE

150085 MCC5969 5969 AMERICAN PUBLIC 8164726100 MO 295.00 1 295.00 0.00 0 295.00 0.41% 1 0.00

WORKS

217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 AMER SOC CIVIL 800-548-2723 VA 295.00 1 295.00 0.00 0 295.00 0.41% 1 0.00

ENGINEERS

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 RS HUGHES CO INC 408-7393183 CA 276.57 1 276.57 0.00 0 276.57 0.39% 1 24.57

TRADE

47972 OTHER 5999 CELEBRATION 510-8870727 CA 275.00 1 275.00 0.00 0 275.00 0.38% 1 0.00

PARTY EQUI

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 01/10/2018 16:29:24  Page     3

70 of 122

https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=156864938&MCC=5085&MST=NJ&MCITY=856-6973000&MNM=SP%20SCIENTIFIC%20-%20WILMAD
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=239953048&MCC=5999&MST=CA&MCITY=916-774-4000&MNM=CAL%20OSHA%20RE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=218458704&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=530-822-5009&MNM=CAPPO%20SOUTHERN%20CONFERENCE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=218458704&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=530-822-5009&MNM=CAPPO%20SOUTHERN%20CONFERENCE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=220299688&MCC=5085&MST=IL&MCITY=855-2899676&MNM=ZORO%20TOOLS%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=217107317&MCC=8699&MST=VA&MCITY=703-7368900&MNM=NATIONAL%20INSITUTE%20OF%20GOVE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=217107317&MCC=8699&MST=VA&MCITY=703-7368900&MNM=NATIONAL%20INSITUTE%20OF%20GOVE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=143462669&MCC=5072&MST=CA&MCITY=925-8661412&MNM=BURLINGTON%20SAFETY%20LABORAT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=143462669&MCC=5072&MST=CA&MCITY=925-8661412&MNM=BURLINGTON%20SAFETY%20LABORAT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=227717986&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=916-2312137&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20SOCIETY%20OF%20MUN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=227717986&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=916-2312137&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20SOCIETY%20OF%20MUN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=189229912&MCC=5192&MST=CA&MCITY=760-734-1113&MNM=BNI%20BOOKS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5943&MST=CA&MCITY=866-6672861&MNM=PRINT%20TO%20MAIL%20BY%20DELUXE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5943&MST=CA&MCITY=866-6672861&MNM=PRINT%20TO%20MAIL%20BY%20DELUXE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175444381&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205268771332007
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175444381&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205268771332007
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=120052470&MCC=5969&MST=WI&MCITY=877-4467746&MNM=4IMPRINT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=234575377&MCC=5021&MST=NY&MCITY=347-561-7587&MNM=OFFICEREPLA
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=163193326&MCC=8699&MST=VA&MCITY=703-684-2400&MNM=WEF%20MAIN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=216941215&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=DOORDASH.COM&MNM=DOORDASH-DRAGON%20HOUSE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=216941215&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=DOORDASH.COM&MNM=DOORDASH-DRAGON%20HOUSE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=131459571&MCC=8398&MST=TX&MCITY=817-5981624&MNM=THE%20NELAC%20INSTITUTE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=131459571&MCC=8398&MST=TX&MCITY=817-5981624&MNM=THE%20NELAC%20INSTITUTE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=215374619&MCC=5969&MST=MO&MCITY=8164726100&MNM=AMERICAN%20PUBLIC%20WORKS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=215374619&MCC=5969&MST=MO&MCITY=8164726100&MNM=AMERICAN%20PUBLIC%20WORKS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=157070954&MCC=8699&MST=VA&MCITY=800-548-2723&MNM=AMER%20SOC%20CIVIL%20ENGINEERS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=157070954&MCC=8699&MST=VA&MCITY=800-548-2723&MNM=AMER%20SOC%20CIVIL%20ENGINEERS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=142967651&MCC=5085&MST=CA&MCITY=408-7393183&MNM=RS%20HUGHES%20CO%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=180095868&MCC=5999&MST=CA&MCITY=510-8870727&MNM=CELEBRATION%20PARTY%20EQUI
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=180095868&MCC=5999&MST=CA&MCITY=510-8870727&MNM=CELEBRATION%20PARTY%20EQUI


State of California

Report Date: 01/10/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 EPASALES 866-448-5547 TN $ 269.40 1 $ 269.40 $ 0.00 0 $ 269.40 0.38% 1 $ 0.00

TRADE

141822 Hardware Supply 5200 LOWES #01132* UNION CITY CA 262.60 4 65.65 0.00 0 262.60 0.37% 4 23.33

281845 Food Exceptions 5814 TOGOS - UNION 510-475-8641 CA 255.15 1 255.15 0.00 0 255.15 0.36% 1 0.00

CITY

47971 OFFICE 5942 AMAZON AMZN.COM/BILL WA 252.33 4 63.08 0.00 0 252.33 0.35% 4 12.81

SUPPLIES MKTPLACE PMTS

47970 OFFICE 7399 HTTP://WEBEX.COM 916-861-3174 CA 251.40 2 125.70 0.00 0 251.40 0.35% 2 0.00

SERVICES

47970 OFFICE 7399 WESTERN CITY 916-658-8223 CA 250.00 1 250.00 0.00 0 250.00 0.35% 1 0.00

SERVICES MAGAZINE

217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 WEF MAIN 703-684-2400 VA 247.00 1 247.00 0.00 0 247.00 0.35% 1 0.00

320956 Dues/Education 8299 LYNDA.COM, INC. 888-3359632 CA 239.88 1 239.88 0.00 0 239.88 0.34% 1 0.00

284298 VTA Catering 5812 TOMATINA UNION UNION CITY CA 238.16 1 238.16 0.00 0 238.16 0.33% 1 0.00

CITY

47970 OFFICE 7311 CAREERS IN 818-991-9653 CA 225.00 1 225.00 0.00 0 225.00 0.31% 1 0.00

SERVICES GOVERNMENT

217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 CAPIO - CA 530-9245444 CA 225.00 1 225.00 0.00 0 225.00 0.31% 1 0.00

ASSOCIATION OF

284298 VTA Catering 5812 BUCKHORN GRILL UNION CITY CA 217.37 1 217.37 0.00 0 217.37 0.30% 1 0.00

UNION CITY

284298 VTA Catering 5812 DOORDASH-KABILA STRIPE.COM CA 214.58 1 214.58 0.00 0 214.58 0.30% 1 0.00

CUISIN

284298 VTA Catering 5812 DOORDASH-NAAN STRIPE.COM CA 210.16 1 210.16 0.00 0 210.16 0.29% 1 0.00

N CURRY

47965 HOTELS 7011 SO PT HOTEL AND LAS VEGAS NV 203.40 1 203.40 0.00 0 203.40 0.28% 1 0.00

CASINO

284298 VTA Catering 5812 THAI BBQ UNION CITY CA 202.49 1 202.49 0.00 0 202.49 0.28% 1 0.00

47970 OFFICE 8911 BROWN AND 925-2102277 CO 200.00 1 200.00 0.00 0 200.00 0.28% 1 0.00

SERVICES CALDWELL

320956 Dues/Education 8299 SKILLPATH 913-3623900 KS 199.00 1 199.00 0.00 0 199.00 0.28% 1 0.00

NATIONAL

8999 ASSOC CAREER WEBSCRIBBLE.C NY 199.00 1 199.00 0.00 0 199.00 0.28% 1 0.00

CENTER

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 01/10/2018 16:29:24  Page     4

71 of 122

https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=121014885&MCC=5085&MST=TN&MCITY=866-448-5547&MNM=EPASALES
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=207476732&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=LOWES%20%2301132*
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=510-475-8641&MNM=TOGOS%20-%20UNION%20CITY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=510-475-8641&MNM=TOGOS%20-%20UNION%20CITY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=207431156&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON%20MKTPLACE%20PMTS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=207431156&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON%20MKTPLACE%20PMTS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165471378&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=916-861-3174&MNM=HTTP%3A//WEBEX.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=162941496&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=916-658-8223&MNM=WESTERN%20CITY%20MAGAZINE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=162941496&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=916-658-8223&MNM=WESTERN%20CITY%20MAGAZINE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=218483630&MCC=8699&MST=VA&MCITY=703-684-2400&MNM=WEF%20MAIN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=140115663&MCC=8299&MST=CA&MCITY=888-3359632&MNM=LYNDA.COM,%20INC.
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=82512776&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=TOMATINA%20UNION%20CITY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=82512776&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=TOMATINA%20UNION%20CITY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165963873&MCC=7311&MST=CA&MCITY=818-991-9653&MNM=CAREERS%20IN%20GOVERNMENT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165963873&MCC=7311&MST=CA&MCITY=818-991-9653&MNM=CAREERS%20IN%20GOVERNMENT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=146372040&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=530-9245444&MNM=CAPIO%20-%20CA%20ASSOCIATION%20OF
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=146372040&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=530-9245444&MNM=CAPIO%20-%20CA%20ASSOCIATION%20OF
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206225269&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=BUCKHORN%20GRILL%20UNION%20CITY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206225269&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=BUCKHORN%20GRILL%20UNION%20CITY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=234915625&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=STRIPE.COM&MNM=DOORDASH-KABILA%20CUISIN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=234915625&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=STRIPE.COM&MNM=DOORDASH-KABILA%20CUISIN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=216830841&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=STRIPE.COM&MNM=DOORDASH-NAAN%20N%20CURRY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=216830841&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=STRIPE.COM&MNM=DOORDASH-NAAN%20N%20CURRY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165608503&MCC=7011&MST=NV&MCITY=LAS%20VEGAS&MNM=SO%20PT%20HOTEL%20AND%20CASINO
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165608503&MCC=7011&MST=NV&MCITY=LAS%20VEGAS&MNM=SO%20PT%20HOTEL%20AND%20CASINO
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=128630771&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=THAI%20BBQ
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166621250&MCC=8911&MST=CO&MCITY=925-2102277&MNM=BROWN%20AND%20CALDWELL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166621250&MCC=8911&MST=CO&MCITY=925-2102277&MNM=BROWN%20AND%20CALDWELL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=134671084&MCC=8299&MST=KS&MCITY=913-3623900&MNM=SKILLPATH%20NATIONAL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=134671084&MCC=8299&MST=KS&MCITY=913-3623900&MNM=SKILLPATH%20NATIONAL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208855670&MCC=8999&MST=NY&MCITY=WEBSCRIBBLE.C&MNM=ASSOC%20CAREER%20CENTER
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208855670&MCC=8999&MST=NY&MCITY=WEBSCRIBBLE.C&MNM=ASSOC%20CAREER%20CENTER


State of California

Report Date: 01/10/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

320956 Dues/Education 8299 AMERICAN MGMT 877-5669441 NY $ 199.00 1 $ 199.00 $ 0.00 0 $ 199.00 0.28% 1 $ 0.00

ASSOC

47960 AIRLINE 3256 ALASKA AIR  SEATTLE WA 191.40 1 191.40 0.00 0 191.40 0.27% 1 0.00

0272158489013

3256 ALASKA AIR  SEATTLE WA 191.40 1 191.40 0.00 0 191.40 0.27% 1 0.00

0272158650080

47960 AIRLINE 3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 189.95 1 189.95 0.00 0 189.95 0.27% 1 0.00

5268773384451

3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 189.95 1 189.95 0.00 0 189.95 0.27% 1 0.00

5268773384452

3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 189.95 1 189.95 0.00 0 189.95 0.27% 1 0.00

5268773384453

3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 189.95 1 189.95 0.00 0 189.95 0.27% 1 0.00

5268773384454

284298 VTA Catering 5812 BRONCO BILLY'S UNION CITY CA 167.99 2 84.00 0.00 0 167.99 0.23% 2 0.00

PIZZA

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 GEMPLER'S 800-3828473 WI 163.65 1 163.65 0.00 0 163.65 0.23% 1 0.00

TRADE

47970 OFFICE 7399 BOXWOOD 888-4918833 MD 160.00 1 160.00 0.00 0 160.00 0.22% 1 0.00

SERVICES TECHNOLOGY

47971 OFFICE 5942 AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BILL WA 156.43 3 52.14 0.00 0 156.43 0.22% 3 0.60

SUPPLIES AMZN.COM/BILL

303856 Dept stores 5310 WAL-MART #2031 UNION CITY CA 154.88 2 77.44 0.00 0 154.88 0.22% 2 13.56

289498 IT SOFTWARE 5734 LSOFT MISSISSAUGA ON 153.72 1 153.72 0.00 0 153.72 0.21% 1 0.00

TECHNOLOGIES 

INC

281845 Food Exceptions 5814 TOGOS - UNION UNION CITY CA 152.39 1 152.39 0.00 0 152.39 0.21% 1 0.00

CITY

281845 Food Exceptions 5814 TOGOS - UNION 510-475-8641 CA 149.20 2 74.60 0.00 0 149.20 0.21% 2 0.00

CITY

303856 Dept stores 5311 SEARS.COM 9300 800-349-4358 TX 141.40 2 70.70 0.00 0 141.40 0.20% 2 12.45

47979 WHOLESALE 5045 DMI* DELL 800-274-1550 TX 139.92 1 139.92 0.00 0 139.92 0.20% 1 12.43

TRADE HLTHCR/PTR

47971 OFFICE 5942 AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BILL WA 136.23 3 45.41 0.00 0 136.23 0.19% 3 12.10

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 01/10/2018 16:29:24  Page     5

72 of 122

https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=234557032&MCC=8299&MST=NY&MCITY=877-5669441&MNM=AMERICAN%20MGMT%20ASSOC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=234557032&MCC=8299&MST=NY&MCITY=877-5669441&MNM=AMERICAN%20MGMT%20ASSOC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=170210871&MCC=3256&MST=WA&MCITY=SEATTLE&MNM=ALASKA%20AIR%20%200272158489013
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=170210871&MCC=3256&MST=WA&MCITY=SEATTLE&MNM=ALASKA%20AIR%20%200272158489013
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=170210871&MCC=3256&MST=WA&MCITY=SEATTLE&MNM=ALASKA%20AIR%20%200272158650080
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=170210871&MCC=3256&MST=WA&MCITY=SEATTLE&MNM=ALASKA%20AIR%20%200272158650080
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175444381&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205268773384451
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175444381&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205268773384451
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175444381&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205268773384452
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175444381&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205268773384452
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175444381&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205268773384453
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175444381&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205268773384453
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175444381&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205268773384454
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175444381&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205268773384454
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=162830978&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=BRONCO%20BILLY%27%27S%20PIZZA
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=162830978&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=BRONCO%20BILLY%27%27S%20PIZZA
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=163419750&MCC=5085&MST=WI&MCITY=800-3828473&MNM=GEMPLER%27%27S
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=154867665&MCC=7399&MST=MD&MCITY=888-4918833&MNM=BOXWOOD%20TECHNOLOGY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=154867665&MCC=7399&MST=MD&MCITY=888-4918833&MNM=BOXWOOD%20TECHNOLOGY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=226345797&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM%20AMZN.COM/BILL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=226345797&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM%20AMZN.COM/BILL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=177527048&MCC=5310&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=WAL-MART%20%232031
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=120857418&MCC=5734&MST=ON&MCITY=MISSISSAUGA&MNM=LSOFT%20TECHNOLOGIES%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=120857418&MCC=5734&MST=ON&MCITY=MISSISSAUGA&MNM=LSOFT%20TECHNOLOGIES%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=120857418&MCC=5734&MST=ON&MCITY=MISSISSAUGA&MNM=LSOFT%20TECHNOLOGIES%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206319252&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=TOGOS%20-%20UNION%20CITY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206319252&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=TOGOS%20-%20UNION%20CITY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206319252&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=510-475-8641&MNM=TOGOS%20-%20UNION%20CITY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206319252&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=510-475-8641&MNM=TOGOS%20-%20UNION%20CITY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=189042122&MCC=5311&MST=TX&MCITY=800-349-4358&MNM=SEARS.COM%209300
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206098354&MCC=5045&MST=TX&MCITY=800-274-1550&MNM=DMI*%20DELL%20HLTHCR/PTR
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206098354&MCC=5045&MST=TX&MCITY=800-274-1550&MNM=DMI*%20DELL%20HLTHCR/PTR
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=226345797&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM


State of California

Report Date: 01/10/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47971 SUPPLIES

289498 IT SOFTWARE 5734 DRI*NUANCE 952-9084089 MN 129.99 1 129.99 0.00 0 129.99 0.18% 1 0.00

47970 OFFICE 2741 PLANBAGS COM 415-9297777 CA 129.37 1 129.37 0.00 0 129.37 0.18% 1 9.46

SERVICES

284298 VTA Catering 5812 CHICAGOS PIZZA STRIPE.COM CA 125.24 1 125.24 0.00 0 125.24 0.18% 1 0.00

WITH A

47972 OTHER 5998 CAREFREE OF BROOMFIELD CO 116.41 1 116.41 0.00 0 116.41 0.16% 1 0.00

COLORADO

47960 AIRLINE 3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 111.98 1 111.98 0.00 0 111.98 0.16% 1 0.00

5268792745123

281845 Food Exceptions 5814 CHICAGOS PIZZA UNION CITY CA 107.85 1 107.85 0.00 0 107.85 0.15% 1 0.00

W A TWIS

47962 BUILDING 7342 DOMYOWN.COM 770-840-8831 GA 104.91 1 104.91 0.00 0 104.91 0.15% 1 0.00

SERVIC

47978 VEHICLE 5533 TRAILER PARTS 4U 864-263-3391 SC 104.00 1 104.00 0.00 0 104.00 0.15% 1 0.00

EXPENSE

284298 VTA Catering 5812 DOORDASH-BUCKH STRIPE.COM CA 103.40 1 103.40 0.00 0 103.40 0.14% 1 0.00

ORN GRIL

47962 BUILDING 7342 DOMYOWN.COM 770-840-8831 GA 100.00 1 100.00 0.00 0 100.00 0.14% 1 0.00

SERVIC

289779 COMPUTER 4816 DRI*TECHSMITH ORDERFIND.COM MN 99.90 2 49.95 0.00 0 99.90 0.14% 2 0.00

217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 RETIREJOBS781890 781-890-5050 MA 99.00 1 99.00 0.00 0 99.00 0.14% 1 0.00

5050

217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 NATIONAL 702-989-8095 NV 90.00 1 90.00 0.00 0 90.00 0.13% 1 0.00

PROCUREMENT 

INST

47972 OTHER 5999 PARTY CITY UNION CITY CA 89.85 2 44.93 0.00 0 89.85 0.13% 2 7.89

281845 Food Exceptions 5411 LUCKY #782 UNION UNION CITY CA 84.69 2 42.35 0.00 0 84.69 0.12% 2 0.00

CI

290002 Machine Parts 5013 VANDER HAAGS HTTPS://WWW.V IA 76.00 1 76.00 0.00 0 76.00 0.11% 1 0.00

INC

217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 CALIFORNIA 916-2312144 CA 75.00 1 75.00 0.00 0 75.00 0.10% 1 0.00

MUNICIPAL TREA

47979 WHOLESALE 5065 MONSTER FUSES 888-444-4335 OR 70.28 1 70.28 0.00 0 70.28 0.10% 1 0.00

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 01/10/2018 16:29:24  Page     6

73 of 122

https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=154539317&MCC=5734&MST=MN&MCITY=952-9084089&MNM=DRI*NUANCE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=148887490&MCC=2741&MST=CA&MCITY=415-9297777&MNM=PLANBAGS%20COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=178951692&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=STRIPE.COM&MNM=CHICAGOS%20PIZZA%20WITH%20A
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=178951692&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=STRIPE.COM&MNM=CHICAGOS%20PIZZA%20WITH%20A
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166028519&MCC=5998&MST=CO&MCITY=BROOMFIELD&MNM=CAREFREE%20OF%20COLORADO
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166028519&MCC=5998&MST=CO&MCITY=BROOMFIELD&MNM=CAREFREE%20OF%20COLORADO
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175444381&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205268792745123
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175444381&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205268792745123
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=CHICAGOS%20PIZZA%20W%20A%20TWIS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=CHICAGOS%20PIZZA%20W%20A%20TWIS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=231163226&MCC=7342&MST=GA&MCITY=770-840-8831&MNM=DOMYOWN.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=231228847&MCC=5533&MST=SC&MCITY=864-263-3391&MNM=TRAILER%20PARTS%204U
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=234915625&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=STRIPE.COM&MNM=DOORDASH-BUCKHORN%20GRIL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=234915625&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=STRIPE.COM&MNM=DOORDASH-BUCKHORN%20GRIL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=7342&MST=GA&MCITY=770-840-8831&MNM=DOMYOWN.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=154539317&MCC=4816&MST=MN&MCITY=ORDERFIND.COM&MNM=DRI*TECHSMITH
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=122853698&MCC=8699&MST=MA&MCITY=781-890-5050&MNM=RETIREJOBS7818905050
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=122853698&MCC=8699&MST=MA&MCITY=781-890-5050&MNM=RETIREJOBS7818905050
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198014205&MCC=8699&MST=NV&MCITY=702-989-8095&MNM=NATIONAL%20PROCUREMENT%20INST
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198014205&MCC=8699&MST=NV&MCITY=702-989-8095&MNM=NATIONAL%20PROCUREMENT%20INST
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198014205&MCC=8699&MST=NV&MCITY=702-989-8095&MNM=NATIONAL%20PROCUREMENT%20INST
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=236205965&MCC=5999&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=PARTY%20CITY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166294979&MCC=5411&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=LUCKY%20%23782%20UNION%20CI
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166294979&MCC=5411&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=LUCKY%20%23782%20UNION%20CI
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165762878&MCC=5013&MST=IA&MCITY=HTTPS%3A//WWW.V&MNM=VANDER%20HAAGS%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165762878&MCC=5013&MST=IA&MCITY=HTTPS%3A//WWW.V&MNM=VANDER%20HAAGS%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=128830777&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=916-2312144&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20MUNICIPAL%20TREA
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=128830777&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=916-2312144&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20MUNICIPAL%20TREA
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=123417708&MCC=5065&MST=OR&MCITY=888-444-4335&MNM=MONSTER%20FUSES


State of California

Report Date: 01/10/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47979 TRADE

47966 MAIL/TELEPHON 5964 ALLIED 800-433-5700 TX 69.60 1 69.60 0.00 0 69.60 0.10% 1 6.18

E ELECTRONICS INC

281845 Food Exceptions 5814 CHIPOTLE ONLINE 303-595-4000 CO 68.76 1 68.76 0.00 0 68.76 0.10% 1 0.00

47971 OFFICE 5942 AMAZON WWW.AMAZON.C WA 65.97 1 65.97 0.00 0 65.97 0.09% 1 0.00

SUPPLIES MKTPLACE PMTS O

WWW.

47972 OTHER 5732 FRY'S FREMONT CA 160.57 2 80.28 97.23 1 63.34 0.09% 3 13.59

ELECTRONICS #21

217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 UNION CITY WWW.UNIONCITY MN 60.00 1 60.00 0.00 0 60.00 0.08% 1 0.00

CHAMBER OF

47966 MAIL/TELEPHON 5965 SUMMIT RACING 800-230-3030 OH 59.93 1 59.93 0.00 0 59.93 0.08% 1 0.00

E MAIL ORDER

284298 VTA Catering 5812 DRAGON HOUSE UNION CITY CA 58.55 1 58.55 0.00 0 58.55 0.08% 1 0.00

CHINESE RES

47979 WHOLESALE 5399 CHEMETRICS.COM 540-7889026 VA 56.25 1 56.25 0.00 0 56.25 0.08% 1 0.00

TRADE

47971 OFFICE 4812 GMESUPPLY COM 718-210-3913 MO 55.35 1 55.35 0.00 0 55.35 0.08% 1 0.00

SUPPLIES

47970 OFFICE 7399 ACT*MSA SAN 877-551-5560 TX 55.00 2 27.50 0.00 0 55.00 0.08% 2 0.00

SERVICES FRANCISCO

47979 WHOLESALE 5331 TUESDAY UNION CITY CA 51.52 1 51.52 0.00 0 51.52 0.07% 1 0.00

TRADE MORNING # 0297

47970 OFFICE 7333 STK*BIGSTOCKPH 855-272-5125 NY 49.00 1 49.00 0.00 0 49.00 0.07% 1 0.00

SERVICES OTO.COM

47979 WHOLESALE 5331 DOLLAR TREE HAYWARD CA 45.22 1 45.22 0.00 0 45.22 0.06% 1 3.02

TRADE

47970 OFFICE 7399 NEWARK 510-744-1000 CA 45.00 1 45.00 0.00 0 45.00 0.06% 1 0.00

SERVICES CHAMBER OF 

COMMERC

47978 VEHICLE 5533 PAYPAL *GUANJIE 402-935-7733 CA 38.50 1 38.50 0.00 0 38.50 0.05% 1 0.00

EXPENSE

47972 OTHER 5999 BATTERY 860-581-4540 CT 38.15 1 38.15 0.00 0 38.15 0.05% 1 0.00

JUNCTION

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 01/10/2018 16:29:24  Page     7

74 of 122

https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=154261399&MCC=5964&MST=TX&MCITY=800-433-5700&MNM=ALLIED%20ELECTRONICS%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=154261399&MCC=5964&MST=TX&MCITY=800-433-5700&MNM=ALLIED%20ELECTRONICS%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=160346387&MCC=5814&MST=CO&MCITY=303-595-4000&MNM=CHIPOTLE%20ONLINE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=WWW.AMAZON.CO&MNM=AMAZON%20MKTPLACE%20PMTS%20WWW.
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=WWW.AMAZON.CO&MNM=AMAZON%20MKTPLACE%20PMTS%20WWW.
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=WWW.AMAZON.CO&MNM=AMAZON%20MKTPLACE%20PMTS%20WWW.
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=197984659&MCC=5732&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=FRY%27%27S%20ELECTRONICS%20%2321
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=197984659&MCC=5732&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=FRY%27%27S%20ELECTRONICS%20%2321
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=217066287&MCC=8699&MST=MN&MCITY=WWW.UNIONCITY&MNM=UNION%20CITY%20CHAMBER%20OF
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=217066287&MCC=8699&MST=MN&MCITY=WWW.UNIONCITY&MNM=UNION%20CITY%20CHAMBER%20OF
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=120039298&MCC=5965&MST=OH&MCITY=800-230-3030&MNM=SUMMIT%20RACING%20MAIL%20ORDER
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=120039298&MCC=5965&MST=OH&MCITY=800-230-3030&MNM=SUMMIT%20RACING%20MAIL%20ORDER
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=145817230&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=DRAGON%20HOUSE%20CHINESE%20RES
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=145817230&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=DRAGON%20HOUSE%20CHINESE%20RES
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=157071954&MCC=5399&MST=VA&MCITY=540-7889026&MNM=CHEMETRICS.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=231973759&MCC=4812&MST=MO&MCITY=718-210-3913&MNM=GMESUPPLY%20COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=220445001&MCC=7399&MST=TX&MCITY=877-551-5560&MNM=ACT*MSA%20SAN%20FRANCISCO
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=220445001&MCC=7399&MST=TX&MCITY=877-551-5560&MNM=ACT*MSA%20SAN%20FRANCISCO
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=129056019&MCC=5331&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=TUESDAY%20MORNING%20%23%200297
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=129056019&MCC=5331&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=TUESDAY%20MORNING%20%23%200297
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175273433&MCC=7333&MST=NY&MCITY=855-272-5125&MNM=STK*BIGSTOCKPHOTO.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175273433&MCC=7333&MST=NY&MCITY=855-272-5125&MNM=STK*BIGSTOCKPHOTO.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=177099826&MCC=5331&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=DOLLAR%20TREE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166228995&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=510-744-1000&MNM=NEWARK%20CHAMBER%20OF%20COMMERC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166228995&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=510-744-1000&MNM=NEWARK%20CHAMBER%20OF%20COMMERC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166228995&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=510-744-1000&MNM=NEWARK%20CHAMBER%20OF%20COMMERC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=80010424109&MCC=5533&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*GUANJIE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=151872621&MCC=5999&MST=CT&MCITY=860-581-4540&MNM=BATTERY%20JUNCTION
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=151872621&MCC=5999&MST=CT&MCITY=860-581-4540&MNM=BATTERY%20JUNCTION


State of California

Report Date: 01/10/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

217413 Prohibited Tran 7216 GREEN LEAF FREMONT CA $ 30.00 1 $ 30.00 $ 0.00 0 $ 30.00 0.04% 1 $ 0.00

CLEANERS

47962 BUILDING 1799 MORSE FREMONT CA 28.46 1 28.46 0.00 0 28.46 0.04% 1 2.41

SERVIC HYDRAULICS USA 

LLC

47978 VEHICLE 5533 OREILLY AUTO FREMONT CA 28.39 1 28.39 0.00 0 28.39 0.04% 1 2.40

EXPENSE #2780

47970 OFFICE 7399 YAHOO SMALL 866-438-1582 CA 27.88 2 13.94 0.00 0 27.88 0.04% 2 0.00

SERVICES BUSINESS

281845 Food Exceptions 5411 SMARTNFINAL5231 UNION CITY CA 25.16 1 25.16 0.00 0 25.16 0.04% 1 0.00

1005238

212656 SCCLD AUTO 5599 PETERSON 510-357-6200 CA 23.82 1 23.82 0.00 0 23.82 0.03% 1 0.00

TRUCKS SL

47979 WHOLESALE 5099 PAYPAL *DOUG 402-935-7733 CA 22.95 1 22.95 0.00 0 22.95 0.03% 1 0.00

TRADE MELVEN

47979 WHOLESALE 5111 IN *ADVANCED 651-4818827 MN 21.98 1 21.98 0.00 0 21.98 0.03% 1 0.00

TRADE FILING CONCE

47970 OFFICE 6300 TRAVEL 800-729-6021 VA 21.00 1 21.00 0.00 0 21.00 0.03% 1 0.00

SERVICES INSURANCE POLICY

47970 OFFICE 7399 YAHOO SMALL 866-438-1582 CA 13.94 1 13.94 0.00 0 13.94 0.02% 1 0.00

SERVICES BUSINESS

303856 Dept stores 5310 WAL-MART #2031 UNION CITY CA 11.50 1 11.50 0.00 0 11.50 0.02% 1 1.02

150085 MCC5969 5969 INDEED 203-564-2400 CT 3.00 1 3.00 0.00 0 3.00 0.00% 1 0.00

150085 MCC5969 5969 INDEED 203-564-2400 CT 2.00 1 2.00 0.00 0 2.00 0.00% 1 0.00

47978 VEHICLE 4784 FASTRAK 415-486-8655 CA 1.00 1 1.00 0.00 0 1.00 0.00% 1 0.00

EXPENSE VIOLATION CENT

284298 VTA Catering 5812 DOORDASH-DRAG 6506819470 CA 0.00 0 0.00 154.87 1 (154.87) 0.00% 1 0.00

ON HOUSE

47970 OFFICE 6300 STATE FARM 800-956-6310 IL 0.00 0 0.00 218.98 1 (218.98) 0.00% 1 0.00

SERVICES INSURANCE

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 01/10/2018 16:29:24  Page     8

75 of 122

https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=209808478&MCC=7216&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=GREEN%20LEAF%20CLEANERS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=209808478&MCC=7216&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=GREEN%20LEAF%20CLEANERS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=134446741&MCC=1799&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=MORSE%20HYDRAULICS%20USA%20LLC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=134446741&MCC=1799&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=MORSE%20HYDRAULICS%20USA%20LLC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=134446741&MCC=1799&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=MORSE%20HYDRAULICS%20USA%20LLC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=190452302&MCC=5533&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=OREILLY%20AUTO%20%232780
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=190452302&MCC=5533&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=OREILLY%20AUTO%20%232780
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=219900047&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=866-438-1582&MNM=YAHOO%20SMALL%20BUSINESS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=219900047&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=866-438-1582&MNM=YAHOO%20SMALL%20BUSINESS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=227038431&MCC=5411&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=SMARTNFINAL52311005238
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=227038431&MCC=5411&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=SMARTNFINAL52311005238
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166228790&MCC=5599&MST=CA&MCITY=510-357-6200&MNM=PETERSON%20TRUCKS%20SL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166228790&MCC=5599&MST=CA&MCITY=510-357-6200&MNM=PETERSON%20TRUCKS%20SL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=177256121&MCC=5099&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*DOUG%20MELVEN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=177256121&MCC=5099&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*DOUG%20MELVEN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198058927&MCC=5111&MST=MN&MCITY=651-4818827&MNM=IN%20*ADVANCED%20FILING%20CONCE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198058927&MCC=5111&MST=MN&MCITY=651-4818827&MNM=IN%20*ADVANCED%20FILING%20CONCE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208292465&MCC=6300&MST=VA&MCITY=800-729-6021&MNM=TRAVEL%20INSURANCE%20POLICY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208292465&MCC=6300&MST=VA&MCITY=800-729-6021&MNM=TRAVEL%20INSURANCE%20POLICY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=218669080&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=866-438-1582&MNM=YAHOO%20SMALL%20BUSINESS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=218669080&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=866-438-1582&MNM=YAHOO%20SMALL%20BUSINESS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=189015403&MCC=5310&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=WAL-MART%20%232031
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=181737885&MCC=5969&MST=CT&MCITY=203-564-2400&MNM=INDEED
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=131905330&MCC=5969&MST=CT&MCITY=203-564-2400&MNM=INDEED
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208468198&MCC=4784&MST=CA&MCITY=415-486-8655&MNM=FASTRAK%20VIOLATION%20CENT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208468198&MCC=4784&MST=CA&MCITY=415-486-8655&MNM=FASTRAK%20VIOLATION%20CENT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=6506819470&MNM=DOORDASH-DRAGON%20HOUSE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=6506819470&MNM=DOORDASH-DRAGON%20HOUSE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166132049&MCC=6300&MST=IL&MCITY=800-956-6310&MNM=STATE%20FARM%20INSURANCE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166132049&MCC=6300&MST=IL&MCITY=800-956-6310&MNM=STATE%20FARM%20INSURANCE


State of California

Report Date: 01/10/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47979 WHOLESALE 5046 SP * 5044194308 LA $ 0.00 0 $ 0.00 $1,003.99 1 $ (1,003.99) (1.40%) 1 $ 0.00

TRADE HYDROTECHNOLO

GYSY

Total $73,159.41 $1,625.07 $71,534.34 253 $ 1,687.91

Total Number of Records:         143

End of Report

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 01/10/2018 16:29:24  Page     9

76 of 122

https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=123220366&MCC=5046&MST=LA&MCITY=5044194308&MNM=SP%20*%20HYDROTECHNOLOGYSY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=123220366&MCC=5046&MST=LA&MCITY=5044194308&MNM=SP%20*%20HYDROTECHNOLOGYSY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=123220366&MCC=5046&MST=LA&MCITY=5044194308&MNM=SP%20*%20HYDROTECHNOLOGYSY


State of California
Report Date: 01/10/2018            

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail Output Parameter Page

Cycle Close Date Range: 10/2017 to 12/2017
Report Type: Detail

Merchant Profile Source: Association
Merchant Names: All

Merchant Category Code Group: All
Merchant States: All

Sort Report By: (1) Total Spend, (2) No Sort, (3) No Sort, (4) No Sort
Break/Subtotal Level: No Break/Subtotal

 Processing Hierarchy Position: Bank Agent Company Division Department

1425 3135 51756 All All

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 01/10/2018 16:29:24 / MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1515623361512_25980_5212405139053216  Page    10

77 of 122



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: January 16, 2018 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 

Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
Derek Chiu, Assistant Engineer 
 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 13 - Meeting of January 22, 2018 
 Information Item:  Update on the Subsurface Investigation at the Alvarado 

Wastewater Treatment Plant 
  
Recommendation 
 
Information only. 
 
Background 
 
The Alameda County Water District (ACWD) is responsible for regulating the groundwater 
supply within our service area, most of which is underlain by aquifers that provide drinking 
water for the three cities.  In 1999, pursuant to ACWD’s request to investigate potential 
releases of petroleum hydrocarbons into soil and groundwater beneath the treatment plant 
property, the District initiated environmental investigation activities in three areas of the plant.  
These areas are shown in Figure 1 and are summarized as follows: 
 

• Former Boneyard Area – The District conducted an environmental investigation and 
remediation in this area (Figure 2), which was previously used for equipment storage 
and maintenance.  The investigation indicated a subsurface petroleum impact of 
primarily diesel-range hydrocarbons.  In the summer of 1999, a source removal 
operation was conducted with approximately 5,000 cubic yards of impacted soil 
excavated and disposed offsite.  Upon completing the soil removal, the District 

78 of 122



Agenda Item No. 13 
Meeting of January 22, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 

backfilled the excavation with clean fill, installed three groundwater monitoring wells 
(MW-1 through MW-3) and initiated monitoring these wells. 
 

• Former 550-Gallon Gasoline Underground Storage Tank (UST) Area – In August 1999, a 
subsurface investigation was initiated in this area (Figure 3) after the observation of 
hydrocarbon odors emanating from an excavation performed during construction at the 
facility.  In September 2000, the District removed this UST under the oversight of the 
Union City Environmental Program Department (UCEPD) and the ACWD.  Observations 
made during the UST removal indicated that the subsurface petroleum hydrocarbons 
likely originated from a leak in an underground fuel line beneath a fuel dispenser.  The 
District over-excavated impacted soil in the suspected source area. 
 
In 2000, another subsurface investigation was conducted at the Site to assess whether 
petroleum hydrocarbons were present in soil near a 10,000-gallon diesel UST and a 
1,000-gallon waste oil UST.  This investigation was conducted at the request of the 
UCEPD after pressure testing indicated potential failures of the secondary containment 
systems of these USTs.  The investigation included collecting soil and grab groundwater 
samples from borings advanced throughout the area.  The laboratory results indicated 
the presence of hydrocarbons associated with gasoline, primarily methyl tertiary butyl 
ether (MTBE), and not diesel or waste oil.  It was concluded that these hydrocarbons 
were likely from the former 550-gallon gasoline UST. 
 
In 2003, the District installed and initiated monitoring of five groundwater monitoring 
wells (MW-5 through MW-9) in this area.  Well MW-4 was an existing well in the area 
and was included in the groundwater monitoring program. 
 

• Closed-in-place 6,000-gallon Diesel UST Area – The subsequent investigation conducted 
in 2000 also included sampling the subsurface in the vicinity of a 6,000-gallon diesel UST 
located in the southwest corner of the plant (Figure 4).  The soil and grab groundwater 
samples collected adjacent to this UST contained detectable concentrations of 
petroleum hydrocarbons in the diesel range.  The 6,000-gallon diesel UST was closed-in-
place by the District in June 2005 under oversight from UCEPD and the ACWD. 
 
In 2003, the District installed and initiated monitoring of one groundwater well (MW-
10) in this area. 

 
Groundwater Monitoring Program 
 
The purpose of the Plant’s groundwater monitoring program is to document groundwater 
conditions in the areas of concern.  The monitoring is performed to evaluate changes in water 
levels and groundwater flow direction and gradient, establish water quality conditions, and 

79 of 122



Agenda Item No. 13 
Meeting of January 22, 2018 
Page 3 
 
 
assess hydrocarbon concentration trends.  The ten groundwater monitoring wells were initially 
monitored quarterly but upon approval of the ACWD, the frequency was reduced to semi-
annual or annual in subsequent years.  Due to the analytical results at wells MW-4, MW-9, and 
MW-10, the ACWD approved the removal of these wells from the monitoring program and the 
District closed the wells in 2008. 
 
The current sampling schedule of the remaining seven wells is summarized in Table 1 below: 
 

Table 1 – Summary of Sampling Schedule 

Well Sampling 
Frequency Sampling Constituents 

MW-1 Annual TPH-D, TPH-MO, Monthly Purging 
MW-2 Annual TPH-D, TPH-MO 
MW-3 Annual TPH-D, TPH-MO 
MW-5 Annual MTBE, TBA 

MW-6 Removed from 
Sampling 

Groundwater Level Measurement 
Only 

MW-7 Removed from 
Sampling 

Groundwater Level Measurement 
Only 

MW-8 Annual MTBE, TBA 
 
Legend 
TBA = tertiary-butyl alcohol 
MTBE = methyl tertiary-butyl ether 
TPH-D = total petroleum hydrocarbons as diesel 
TPH-MO = total petroleum hydrocarbons as motor oil 

 
Since 2007, staff has conducted monthly purging of the light, non-aqueous phase liquid 
(LNAPL) present in well MW-1.  The objective of this purging is to eliminate the LNAPL layer 
observed in this monitoring well and mitigate the elevated dissolved petroleum hydrocarbons 
present in the groundwater in its vicinity. 
 
Following the 2015 annual monitoring event, and in consultation with ACWD, staff switched to 
placing a hydrocarbon absorbent sock in MW-1 to remove LNAPL in place of the monthly 
purging.  It was expected to be more efficient in removing the hydrocarbons than the monthly 
purging.  However, the results of the 2016 annual monitoring event indicated otherwise.  Staff 
has discontinued the use of the hydrocarbon absorbent sock and resumed monthly purging of 
MW-1.  
 

80 of 122



Agenda Item No. 13 
Meeting of January 22, 2018 
Page 4 
 
 
Annual 2017 Groundwater Monitoring Event 
 
In October 2017, staff procured the services of Brown and Caldwell to sample the groundwater 
from the wells, analyze the test results, and prepare a report.  The conclusions from the annual 
2017 groundwater monitoring event are as follows: 
 

1. Groundwater elevations in the Former Boneyard Area and the Former 550-Gallon UST 
Area have remained consistent throughout the year with previous years, with the 
groundwater flow direction corresponding with the results from the previous 
monitoring events. 

 
2. Two of four monitoring wells (MW-2 and MW-5) measured groundwater with an 

electrical conductivity that exceeded the State Water Resources Control Board’s 
(SWRCB’s) acceptable limits for a groundwater source to be considered suitable, or 
potentially suitable, for domestic or municipal drinking water supply.  Electrical 
conductivity in water is a measurement to determine the concentration of total 
dissolved solids. 

 
3. A less than 0.1-foot thick layer of LNAPL was encountered in well MW-1 during the 

Annual 2017 event.  This layer of LNAPL decreased slightly from 2016. 
 

4. From August 2007 to September 2015 and November 2016 to October 2017, the 
District has conducted 103 monthly purging events on MW-1 removing a total of 601 
gallons of groundwater/LNAPL mixture and removing approximately 4.7 gallons of 
LNAPL. 
 

5. From October 2015 to September 2016, the District installed hydrocarbon absorbent 
socks to remove LNAPL from MW-1.  Socks were replaced every other month and 
inverted in between replacements.  The sampling results of the Annual 2016 event 
indicated the hydrocarbon absorbent sock may not be effective in removing the LNAPL 
from MW-1 and staff resumed monthly purging of MW-1 in November 2016. 
 

6. Drinking water environmental screen levels (ESLs) were exceeded in the groundwater 
samples collected from monitoring wells MW-5 and MW-8 for MTBE and from wells 
MW-1, MW-2, and MW-3 for TPH-D and TPH-MO.  Non-drinking water ESLs were not 
exceeded in the monitoring wells for any constituent of concern, with the exception of 
MW-1, MW-2, and MW-3 for TPH-D and TPH-MO. 
 
The sampling results of wells MW-1, MW-2, and MW-3 did not improve from 2016’s 
results and were significantly worse.  The significant increases in the levels of TPH-D and 

81 of 122



Agenda Item No. 13 
Meeting of January 22, 2018 
Page 5 
 
 

TPH-MO recorded in the three wells could be anomalous and caused by seasonal 
fluctuations as the 2016/2017 winter season experienced heavy precipitation events. 

 
The analytical test results are included in Table 2. 
 
Next Steps 
 
The last requirement in the Path to Closure Plan is to remove free product to the maximum 
extent practicable.  The sampling results from the 2017 groundwater monitoring event does 
not support the District’s case for closure.  Staff will continue the monthly purging of MW-1 
and will perform the next sampling during the 2018 groundwater monitoring event. 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/DC;dl 
 
Attachments: Figures 1 through 4 
 Table 2 

82 of 122



Figure 1
Alvarado WWTP SIte Plan

NO SCALE
January 16th, 2018

COVERED VEHICLE
STORAGE

FIELD OPERATIONS
BLDG. ADMINISTRATION

BLDG.

FACILITIES MAINT.
BLDG

GENERATOR
5 & 6 BLDG.

CENTRIFUGE
BLDG.

FIGURE 2 - FORMER 
BONEYARD AREA

FIGURE 3 - FORMER 
VEHICLE FUELING AREA

FIGURE 4 - FORMER 
6,000 GALLON DIESEL UST p

83 of 122



Figure 2
Former Boneyard Area

NO SCALE

MW-3

FUEL PUMP ISLAND
GASOLINE AND
DIESEL UST

p

VEASY STREET

MW-2

COVERED VEHICLE STORAGE 

LEGEND
             EXISTING UNDERGROUND 

                 MONITORING WELL

MW-1

January 16, 2018

84 of 122



Figure 3
Former Vehicle Fueling Area

NO SCALE

FUEL PUMP ISLAND
EXISTING 1,000 GALLON
WASTE OIL TANK

p

Primary 
Digester #6

MW-7

Cogeneration Building

LEGEND
             EXISTING UNDERGROUND 

                 MONITORING WELL
             DESTRUCTED GROUNDWATER 

                 MONITORING WELL

January 16, 2018

Generator Building

MW-4

FORMER 550 GALLON GASOLINE
UST AND FUEL PUMPSMW-6

Maintenance Building

MW-9

MW-8

EXISTING 10,000 
GALLON DIESEL UST

MW-5

85 of 122



q/

CENTRIFUGE
BUILDING

LEGEND

/

Figure 4
Closed-in-Place 6,000 Gallon Diesel UST

ODOR CONTROL
BUILDING

GENERATOR
BUILDING NO. 2

CLOSED-IN-PLACE 6,000
GALLON DIESEL UST

MW-10DESTRUCTED GROUNDWATER
MONITORING WELL

86 of 122



Table 2.  Analytical Results - Petroleum Hydrocarbons

Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant

Well ID Sample Date

Benzene

(ug/L)

Toluene

(ug/L)

Ethylbenzene

(ug/L)

Xylenes

(ug/L)

tBA

(ug/L)

DIPE

(ug/L)

EtBE

(ug/L)

tAME

(ug/L)

MtBE

(ug/L)

TPH-G

(ug/L)

TPH-D

(ug/L)

TPH-MO

(ug/L)

PNAs          

(ug/L)

MW-1 11/8/1999 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 61
a

150
b

<250 ND

6/8/2000
NF

---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ----

9/18/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <1.0 <50 570
ndp

700 ND

12/21/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 51
ndp

<500 ND

2/27/2001 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 <50 <500 ND

12/15/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <50 1,500
h

1,300
l

----

3/21/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.50 <50 960
h

1,000
l

----

3/21/2006 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 3,100
h

3,600
l

----

6/28/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 160
hy

19,000
h

16,000
l

----

6/28/2006 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 18,000
h

14,000
l

----

9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 <50 17,000
h

13,000
l

----

9/11/2006 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 13,000
h

10,000
l

----

4/10/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 1,600
h,y

1,200
h,l

----

4/10/2007 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 4,700
h,y

3,800
h,l

----

9/24/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 390
h

340
h,l

----

3/7/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 450 <300 ----

9/9/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 300
y

<300 ----

3/17/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 540
y

<300 ----

9/30/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 120 
y

<300 ----

4/21/2010 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 890 
y

550 ----

4/21/2010 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 210 
y

<300 ----

9/17/2010 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 350 
y

<300 ----

10/28/2011 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 510 360 ----

10/28/2011 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 320 150 ----

9/14/2012 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <55 <110 ----

9/14/2012 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 210 140 ----

9/24/2013 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 1300 1300 ----

9/24/2013 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 320 330 ----

9/29/2014 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 1300 1400 ----

9/23/2015 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 86 <100 ----

10/4/2016 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 6100 5500 ----

10/10/2017 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 6700 6300 ----

MW-2 ** 11/8/1999 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 <50 <250 ND

11/8/99 Dup <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 ---- ---- ----

6/8/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 170
ndp

<500 ND

6/8/2000 Dup <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 <50 <500 ND

9/18/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 2.0 <50 <50 <500 ND

9/18/2000 Dup <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 2.1 <50 <50 <500 ND

12/21/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 240
ndp

3,700 ----

12/21/2000 Dup <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 200
ndp

4,000 ----

2/27/2001 <0.50 <0.50 (0.86*) <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 56
ldr

1,100 ----

2/27/2001 Dup <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 71
ldr

1,400 ----

12/13/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 2.2 <50 61
ldr

<300 ----

3/20/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 2.2 <50 65
h

650 ----

6/27/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 2.2 <50 <50 <300 ----

9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 2.0 <50 <50 <300 ----

4/10/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

9/24/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 430
h

----

9/24/2007 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

3/7/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

3/7/2008 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

9/8/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

3/17/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 350 ----

3/17/2009 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

9/29/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

9/29/2009 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

9/17/2010 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

9/17/2010 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

10/28/2011 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 69 430 ----

9/14/2012 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <53 <110 ----

9/24/2013 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <54 370 ----

9/29/2014 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <52 <100 ----

9/29/2014 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <53 <110 ----

9/23/2015 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <52 <100 ----

10/4/2016 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 140 230 ----

10/10/2017 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 680 2700 ----

P:\49000\149969 -USD Groundwater Monitoring\2017 Annual Report\Tables\Annual Report 2017 Tables 1-2 11162017 Page 4 of 7

87 of 122



Table 2.  Analytical Results - Petroleum Hydrocarbons

Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant

Well ID Sample Date

Benzene

(ug/L)

Toluene

(ug/L)

Ethylbenzene

(ug/L)

Xylenes

(ug/L)

tBA

(ug/L)

DIPE

(ug/L)

EtBE

(ug/L)

tAME

(ug/L)

MtBE

(ug/L)

TPH-G

(ug/L)

TPH-D

(ug/L)

TPH-MO

(ug/L)

PNAs          

(ug/L)

MW-3 ** 11/8/1999 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 110
c

<250 ND

6/8/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 <50 <500 ND

9/18/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 2.1 <50 <50 <500 ND

12/21/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 (0.97*) <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 <50 <500 ----

2/27/2001 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 <50 <500 ----

12/13/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 1.9 <50 <50 <300 ----

3/21/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 <50 <50 <300 ----

6/28/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.50 <50 <50 <300 ----

9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 <50 <50 <300 ----

4/11/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

9/25/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

3/8/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 72
y

<300 ----

9/9/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

3/17/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

9/30/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

9/17/2010 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

10/28/2011 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

9/14/2012 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <54 <110 ----

9/24/2013 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <55 <110 ----

9/29/2014 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <51 <100 ----

9/25/2015 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <100 ----

10/4/2016 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 160 270

10/10/2017 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 790 1100 ----

MW-4* 9/3/1999 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.5 <50 100 ---- ----

6/8/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 80
g

<50 <500 5.2
bp

9/18/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <1.0 <50 <50 <500 ND

12/21/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 <50 <500 ----

2/27/2001 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 <50 <500 ----

12/14/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <50 <50 ---- ----

3/21/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.50 <50 <50 <300 ----

6/27/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 <50 <50 ---- ----

9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.5 <50 <50 ---- ----

4/11/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/24/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- --- ---- ---- ---- ----

MW-5
**

12/14/2005 <0.83 <0.83 <0.83 <0.83 <17 <0.83 <0.83 <0.83 180 <83 <50 ---- ----

12/14/2005 Dup <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 0.52 180 <50 <50 ---- ----

3/21/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 910 <50 78 <300 ----

3/21/2006 Dup <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 870 <50 ---- ---- ----

6/27/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 320 <50 210
hy

---- ----

6/27/2006 Dup <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 690 <50 ---- ---- ----

9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 430 <50 <50 ---- ----

9/11/2006 Dup <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 510 <50 ---- ---- ----

4/11/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 110 ---- ---- ---- ----

4/11/2007 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 100 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/25/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- <14 ---- ---- ---- 200 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/25/2007 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- <14 ---- ---- ---- 130 ---- ---- ---- ----

3/7/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- 32 ---- ---- ---- 460 ---- ---- ---- ----

3/7/2008 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- <170 ---- ---- ---- 960 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/8/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- <25 ---- ---- ---- 290 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/8/2008 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- <25 ---- ---- ---- 390 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/30/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- <25 ---- ---- ---- 130 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/30/09 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- <33 ---- ---- ---- 200 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/17/2010 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <83 ---- ---- ---- 470 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/17/2010 Dup <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <100 ---- ---- ---- 680 ---- ---- ---- ----

10/28/2011 ---- ---- ---- ---- <100 ---- ---- ---- 130 ---- ---- ---- ----

10/28/2011 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- <100 ---- ---- ---- 40 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/14/2012 ---- ---- ---- ---- 63 ---- ---- ---- 570 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/14/2012 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- 44 ---- ---- ---- 460 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/24/2013 ---- ---- ---- ---- <100 ---- ---- ---- 230 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/24/2013 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- <100 ---- ---- ---- 230 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/29/2014 ---- ---- ---- ---- <200 ---- ---- ---- 720 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/29/2014 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- <200 ---- ---- ---- 750 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/23/2015 ---- ---- ---- ---- <20 ---- ---- ---- 600 ---- ---- ---- ----

10/4/2016 ---- ---- ---- ---- <400 D ---- ---- ---- 710 ---- ---- ---- ----

10/10/2017 ---- ---- ---- ---- <20 ---- ---- ---- 170 ---- ---- ---- ----

P:\49000\149969 -USD Groundwater Monitoring\2017 Annual Report\Tables\Annual Report 2017 Tables 1-2 11162017 Page 5 of 7

88 of 122



Table 2.  Analytical Results - Petroleum Hydrocarbons

Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant

Well ID Sample Date

Benzene

(ug/L)

Toluene

(ug/L)

Ethylbenzene

(ug/L)

Xylenes

(ug/L)

tBA

(ug/L)

DIPE

(ug/L)

EtBE

(ug/L)

tAME

(ug/L)

MtBE

(ug/L)

TPH-G

(ug/L)

TPH-D

(ug/L)

TPH-MO

(ug/L)

PNAs          

(ug/L)

MW-6* 12/14/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <50 <50 ---- ----

3/20/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.50 <50 <50 <300 ----

6/27/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 0.7 <50 <50 ---- ----

9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 0.6 <50 <50 ---- ----

4/11/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 0.7 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/25/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- 0.6 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/9/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- 0.6 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/30/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- < 0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

MW-7* 12/15/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 0.59 <50 <50 ---- ----

3/20/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 <50 <50 <300 ----

6/27/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 1.0 <50 <50 ---- ----

9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 1.2 <50 <50 ---- ----

4/11/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 1.0 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/25/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- 0.8 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/9/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- 0.8 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/30/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- < 0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

MW-8** 12/15/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 58 <50 <50 ---- ----

3/20/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 37 <50 78 <300 ----

6/28/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 16 <50 61
y

---- ----

9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 33 <50 55
y

---- ----

4/11/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 61 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/25/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- 32 ---- ---- ---- ----

3/7/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- 48 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/9/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- 69 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/29/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- < 10 ---- ---- ---- 51 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/17/2010 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 ---- ---- ---- 78 ---- ---- ---- ----

10/28/2011 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- 36 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/14/2012 ---- ---- ---- ---- 7.2 ---- ---- ---- 24 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/24/2013 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- 65 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/29/2014 ---- ---- ---- ---- <20 ---- ---- ---- 9.7 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/23/2015 ---- ---- ---- ---- <20 ---- ---- ---- 16 ---- ---- ---- ----

10/4/2016 ---- ---- ---- ---- <20 ---- ---- ---- 22 ---- ---- ---- ----

10/10/2017 ---- ---- ---- ---- <20 ---- ---- ---- 160 ---- ---- ---- ----

MW-9* 12/14/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <50 <50 ---- ----

3/21/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.50 <50 52 <300 ----

6/28/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 <50 <50 ---- ----

9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.5 <50 <50 ---- ----

4/11/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/24/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- --- ---- ---- ---- ----

MW-10* 12/14/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <50 <50 ---- ----

3/21/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.50 <50 83 <300 ----

3/21/2006 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 120 <300 ----

6/27/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 <50 68
y

---- ----

6/27/2006 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 62
y

---- ----

9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.5 <50 76
y z

---- ----

9/11/2006 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 ---- ----

4/10/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 55
y

---- ----

9/24/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- --- ---- ----

6/8/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 ---- ---- ----

9/18/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <1.0 <50 ---- ---- ----

12/21/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 ---- ---- ----

2/27/2001 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 ---- ---- ----

3/20/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.50 <50 <50 <300 ----

4/11/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.5 <50 <300 ---- ----

9/24/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- --- ---- ---- ---- --- ---- <50 <300 ----

9/25/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

3/7/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/8/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/9/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

3/17/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

9/17/2010 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/14/2012 ---- ---- ---- ---- <4 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/24/2013 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/29/2014 ---- ---- ---- ---- <20 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

Field 

Equipment 

Blank

P:\49000\149969 -USD Groundwater Monitoring\2017 Annual Report\Tables\Annual Report 2017 Tables 1-2 11162017 Page 6 of 7

89 of 122



Table 2.  Analytical Results - Petroleum Hydrocarbons

Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant

Well ID Sample Date

Benzene

(ug/L)

Toluene

(ug/L)

Ethylbenzene

(ug/L)

Xylenes

(ug/L)

tBA

(ug/L)

DIPE

(ug/L)

EtBE

(ug/L)

tAME

(ug/L)

MtBE

(ug/L)

TPH-G

(ug/L)

TPH-D

(ug/L)

TPH-MO

(ug/L)

PNAs          

(ug/L)

Trip Blank 11/8/1999 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 ---- ---- ----

6/8/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 ---- ---- ----

9/18/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <1.0 <50 ---- ---- ----

12/21/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 ---- ---- ----

2/27/2001 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 ---- ---- ----

12/14/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <50 ---- ---- ----

3/20/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.50 <50 ---- ---- ----

6/27/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 <50 ---- ---- ----

9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 <50 ---- ---- ----

4/11/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/25/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/8/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/30/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/17/2010 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

10/28/2011 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/14/2012 ---- ---- ---- ---- <4 ---- ---- --- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/24/2013 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- --- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/29/2014 ---- ---- ---- ---- <20 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/23/2015 ---- ---- ---- ---- <20 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

10/4/2016 ---- ---- ---- ---- --- ---- ---- ---- --- ---- ---- ---- ----

10/10/2017 ---- ---- ---- ---- --- ---- ---- ---- --- ---- ---- ---- ----

ESL - DW 1.0 40 30 20 12 NE NE NE 5.0 100 100 100
46 130 43 100 18,000 NE NE NE 1,800 500 640 640

Notes:

ug/L = micrograms per liter

D = Dilution factor on sample increased reporting limit.

Benzene analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8020, 8021B or 8260B

Toluene analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8020, 8021B or 8260B

Ethylbenzene analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8020, 8021B or 8260B

Xylenes analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8020, 8021B or 8260B (concentration reported is total of m,p- and o-xylenes).

tBA = tert-Butyl Alcohol analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8260B

DIPE = Isopropyl Ether analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8260B

EtBE = Ethyl tert-Butyl Ether analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8260B

tAME = Methyl tert-Amyl Ether analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8260B

MtBE = Methyl tert-Butyl Ether analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8260A or 8260B

TPH-G = Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons as Gasoline analyzed following modified EPA Method 8015

TPH-D = Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons as Diesel analyzed following modified EPA Method 8015 and prepared with silica gel clean-up

TPH-MO = Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons as Motor Oil analyzed following modified EPA Method 8015 and prepared with silica gel clean-up

PNAs = Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8270A

ESL-DW = San Francisco Regional Water Quality Control Board Environmental Screening Level for sites where groundwater is a current or potential drinking water source, Table F-1a, May 2008

ESL-NDW = San Francisco Regional Water Quality Control Board Environmental Screening Level for sites where groundwater is not a current or potential drinking water source, Table F-1b, May 2008

Dup = Duplicate sample

<n  = Not detected above the laboratory reporting limit of n  ug/L

ND = Not detected above laboratory reporting limits for respective individual compounds

NF = Well not found

NE = Not established

---- = Not analyzed
a
 = Heavier gasoline range compounds are significant, chromatogram possibly shows aged gasoline pattern.

b
 = Medium boiling point pattern that does not match diesel, chromatogram possibly shows aged kerosene pattern.

c
 = Diesel range compounds are significant; no recognizable pattern.

h
 = Heavier hydrocarbons contributed to the quantitation.

l
 = Lighter hydrocarbons contributed to the quantitation.
y
 = Sample exhibits chromotagraphic pattern which does not resemble standard

z = Sample analyzed outside EPA Method's holding time

bp = bis (2-Ethylhexyl) phthalate concentration reported
g
 = Hydrocarbon reported in the gasoline range does not match laboratory's gasoline standard

ndp = Hydrocarbon reported does not match the pattern of laboratory's diesel standard

ldr = Hydrocarbon reported is in the late diesel range, and does not match laboratory's diesel standard

* = Analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8260A

Bold = Current groundwater monitoring event

Italicized  = Concentration exceeds the respective ESL-DW

Underline = Concentration exceeds the respective ESL-NDW
* 
= Discontinued sampling groundwater monitoring well per approval from Alameda County Water District; MW-4, MW-9 and MW-10 were destructed on May 2, 2008

**
 = Well sampled annually per approval from Alameda County Water District.

ESL - NDW

P:\49000\149969 -USD Groundwater Monitoring\2017 Annual Report\Tables\Annual Report 2017 Tables 1-2 11162017 Page 7 of 7

90 of 122



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

DATE: 

MEMO TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

January 15, 2018 

Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
Curtis Bosick, Associate Engineer 

Agenda Item No. 14 - Meeting of January 22, 2018 
Information Item:  Solar and Cogeneration Facilities Operational Update 

Recommendation 

Information only. 

Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant Solar Carport 

The District completed construction of the Solar Carport Facility located at the 
Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant at a cost of $884,000 and began operation in 
September 2011. The system consists of 637 solar panels and is rated at 125 kilowatt (kW).  
The system rating is based on the California Energy Commission’s calculation that takes into 
account the number of panels, the rating of each panel, and the inverter efficiency. 

The District applied for the California Solar Initiative (CSI) incentive that would rebate $0.2568 
per kilowatt-hour (kWh) of power generated by the system for a period of five years from 
September 2011 through August 2016.  PG&E, the administrator of the CSI program, approved 
an estimated incentive amount of $252,850.  In September 2016, the District received its final 
CSI incentive disbursement. 

Through December 31, 2017, the Solar Carport Facility has generated a total of 1,503,187 
kWh of power, which equates to $264,765 in energy savings at the Plant.  Additionally, the 
District has received $276,030 or approximately 109% of the estimated CSI incentive 
rebate from 

91 of 122



Agenda Item No. 14 
Meeting of January 22, 2018 
Page 2 

PG&E.  The total benefit of the Solar Carport is $540,795, which represents 61.1% of 
simple payback for the initial construction and maintenance costs of the facility. 

Irvington Pump Station Solar Facility 

The District completed construction of the Solar Facility located at the Irvington Pump 
Station at a cost of $2.85 million and began operation in April 2012.  The system consists of 
1,680 solar panels and is rated at 408 kW. 

The District applied for the CSI incentive that would rebate $0.15 per kWh of power generated 
by the system for a period of five years from June 2012 through May 2017.  PG&E approved an 
estimated incentive amount of $623,370.  In February 2017, the District received its final CSI 
incentive disbursement.   

Through January 2, 2018, the Solar Facility has generated a total of 5,135,239 kWh of 
power, which equates to $1,665,682 in energy savings at the Irvington Pump Station.  
Additionally, the District has received $680,632 or 109% of the estimated CSI incentive rebate 
from PG&E.  The total benefit of the Solar Facility is $2,346,314, which represents 82.3% of 
simple payback for the initial construction and maintenance costs of the facility. 

Cogeneration Facility 

The District completed construction of the Cogeneration Facility located at the 
Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant at a construction cost of $11.8 million and the 
facility was fully operational in late November 2014.  The facility consists of two 850-kW 
biogas-fueled engine generators and a packaged biogas conditioning system. 

The District applied for the Self-Generation Incentive Program (SGIP) that provides financial 
incentives for the installation of new, qualifying self-generation equipment installed to meet all 
or a portion of the electric energy needs of a facility.  PG&E, the administrator of the SGIP in 
Northern California, approved the District’s application for a maximum rebate of $3.38 million. 
The District received half of the total rebate from PG&E in 2015 upon successful operational 
testing of the facility.  The other half will be paid to the District annually over the next five 
years and will depend on the actual electric energy generated by the facility and the actual 
amount of engine and exhaust heat recovered and utilized to heat the biosolids in the primary 
digesters. 

Through December 31, 2017, the facility has generated a total of 35,575,234 kWh of power, 
which equates to approximately $3,378,359 in energy savings at the plant.  Additionally, the 
District has received $2,280,471 or 67% of the SGIP incentive rebate from PG&E.  The 
total benefit of the Cogeneration Facility is $5,658,830, which represents 46.4% of simple 
payback for the initial construction and maintenance costs of the facility. 

92 of 122



Agenda Item No. 14 
Meeting of January 22, 2018 
Page 3 

USD labor and equipment costs have not been factored into the maintenance costs of these 
facilities.  The rationale is that no personnel or equipment has been acquired specifically for 
the maintenance and the work has been accommodated to date with existing resources. 

Staff will provide the Board with an operational update of the solar and cogeneration facilities 
on a semi-annual basis.  The attached Table 1 summarizes the operational data that was 
discussed in this update. 

PRE/SEG/RC/CB;dl 

Attachment: Table 1 – Solar and Cogeneration Facilities Operational Data 

93 of 122



Union Sanitary District
Table 1 - Solar and Cogeneration Facilities Operational Data

Facility
System 
Rating1 

(kW)

Energy 
Generated 

This 
Period2

(kWh)

Total 
Energy 

Generated 
To Date 
(kWh)

Value of 
Energy 

Generated 
To Date 

($)

Rebates 
Received 
To Date

($)

Total 
Received 

or 
Generated 

($)

Construction 
Cost
($)

Maintenance 
Costs 

To Date4

($)

Total Costs
Incurred 
To Date

($)

Simple 
Payback 
To Date 

(%)

Simple 
Payback

Term
(Years)

Original 
Payback

Term5

(Years)

Comments

Alvarado WWTP Solar 
Carport 125 98,439 1,503,187 264,765 276,030 540,795 884,000 1,000 885,000 61.1% 14.8

System began operation in             
September 2011.  Values are current 

through December 31, 2017.

Irvington Pump Station 
Solar Facility 408 381,641 5,135,239 1,665,682 680,632 2,346,314 2,850,000 1,300 2,851,300 82.3% 7.8 10.0

System began operation in April 2012.  
Values are current through 

January 2, 2018.

Cogeneration Facility3 1,700 6,493,703 35,575,234 3,378,359 2,280,471 5,658,830 11,800,000 384,538 12,184,538 46.4% 9.0 8.9
System began operation in late 

November 2014.  Values are current 
through December 31, 2017.

   1) System Rating for the solar facilities is based on the number of panels, the rating of each panel, and the inverter efficiency.
   2) Period is from July 2017 through December 2017.
   3) The cogeneration equipment consists of two 850-kW engine generators.
   4) Maintenance costs do not include USD labor or equipment costs.
   5) Original payback terms for the Irvington Pump Station Solar Facility and Cogeneration Facility were calculated during the design phase.  A payback period was not calculated for the Alvarado WWTP Solar Carport at the time the 
project was designed.

94 of 122



 

  
 

Summary of the EBDA Commission Meeting 
Thursday, December 21, 2017, at 9:30 a.m. 

Prepared by: P. Eldredge 
 
• Commissioners Johnson, Cutter, Toy, Becker, and Peixoto were present. 

 
• The Consent Calendar was approved unanimously and included the Commission Meeting 

Minutes, List of Disbursements, and Treasurer’s Report.  
 

• The Commission unanimously approved the reports from the Managers Advisory, Financial 
Management, Regulatory Affairs, Operations & Maintenance, and Personnel committees. The 
following items were discussed: 

 
• General Managers Report - The Commissioners decided that the January 18, 2018, meeting 

should begin at 9:00 a.m. to accommodate the General Manager Candidate interviews taking 
place that day. The General Manager deferred his comments to specific agenda items. 

 
• Managers Advisory Committee (MAC) – The MAC met with the General Manager on December 

20, 2017 and discussed the status of the transport system inspection, the hydraulic model 
calibration, and the General Manager recruitment. In addition, the MAC toured Hayward’s MABR 
(Membrane Aerated Biofilm Reactor) pilot test which is a new treatment technology. 

 
• Financial Management Committee met with the General Manager on December 19, 2017, and 

reviewed the November List of Disbursements and Treasurer’s Report. The Committee 
recommended Commission approval of the resolution for Amendment No. 1 to the Grant of 
Easement agreement with Hayward Cabot Limited Partnership. 

 
• Regulatory Affairs Committee met with the General Manager on December 19, 2017 and 

reviewed permit compliance. The Committee reviewed a BACWA proposed scope for EOA, Inc. 
for assistance with amending the Basin Plan for Total Chlorine Residual. 

 
• Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Committee met with the General Manager on December 

18, 2017 and discussed the status of EBDA facilities. The ongoing facility projects discussed 
included AEPS No. 1 and No. 6 effluent pumps; Hayward MCC replacement project and No. 2 
effluent pump; OLEPS fuel tank replacement and Pumps 1 and 4 replacement projects; and the 
MDF water champ. The Committee was updated on the status of special projects including the 
Transport Pipe Condition Assessment and System Flow Master Plan Modeling. The O&M Manager 
reviewed EBDA’s Asset Management Plan (AMP) mid-year recap for FY 2017/2018. Current 

95 of 122



 

spending is about 7% ($65,221) of the approved FY 2017/2018 RRF schedule. In addition, 
contingency fund costs are estimated to be at $40,500 (41%). The Commission asked staff to 
provide a list of the high risk items in the FY 2017/2018 Risk Profile by project and cost.   

 
The Committee recommended Commission adoption of a resolution authorizing a change order 
to the Silman agreement in the amount of $13,839 for sidewalk repairs associated with the OLEPS 
fuel tank project. 

 
• The Personnel Committee met on December 18, 2017. The Committee discussed new 

assumptions that must be selected to comply with GASB 75. For the GASB 75 actuarial report, the 
Committee recommends using the following assumptions: 1) S&P Municipal Bond 20 Year High 
Grade Rate Index; 2) 6% long-term rate of return for the Authority’s CERBT fund; and 3) EBDA will 
continue the current funding policy of paying premiums as they come due, plus an additional 
annual contribution to the CERBT fund. The Personnel Committee recommends the Commission 
adopt a resolution of appreciation to David A. Stoops.  
 
The Committee recessed to closed session at 9:20 a.m. to discuss the General Manager 
recruitment. The Committee returned from Closed Session at 10:00 a.m. Committee Chair Pauline 
Cutter stated that there was no reportable action from the Closed Session. 

 
• Resolution Approving Amendment No. 1 to Agreement Authorizing Construction Over Real 

Property Subject to Grant of Easement by and Between East Bay Dischargers Authority and 
Hayward Cabot Limited Partnership  

 
Commissioner Cutter moved to adopt the resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the 
Agreement between EBDA and Hayward Cabot Limited Partnership for a grant of easement. The 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Johnson and carried unanimously (Johnson, Cutter, Toy, 
Becker, Peixoto; ayes). 
 

• Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to Issue a Change Order to the Contract with 
SilMan Construction Dated September 21, 2017, in the Amount of $13,839 for a Total not to 
Exceed Amount of $211,585 for the Sidewalk Improvement at the Oro Loma Effluent Pump 
Station 

 
Commissioner Becker introduced the resolution authorizing a change order to the agreement 
with SilMan Construction in the amount of $13,839 for the sidewalk improvements on the OLEPS 
fuel tank project. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Cutter and carried unanimously, 5-
0. 

 
• Resolution of Appreciation to David A. Stoops 

 
Commissioner Toy introduced the resolution of appreciation to David A. Stoops for his years of 
service to the Authority. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Cutter and carried 
unanimously. 

 

96 of 122



 

• Closed Session 
 
The Commission recessed to closed session at 9:55 a.m. to discuss the recruitment of the General 
Manager position.  The Commission returned from closed session at 10:45 a.m.  Commission Chair 
Peixoto stated there was no reportable action from the closed session. 
 

• Items from the Commission and Staff 
 
Chair Peixoto expressed his gratitude of David Stoops for his five years of services to the Authority 
and wished him well.  Mr. Stoops thanked the Commission, Managers, and Staff for their support. 

97 of 122



Check No. Date Invoice No.

166561 1/11/2018 20171128.1

166485 1/4/2018 20171128

166527 1/11/2018 800394.34

166455 1/4/2018 9042

1/4/2018 9045

166516 1/11/2018 903370609

1/11/2018 903357503

1/11/2018 903369178

1/11/2018 903369147

166472 1/4/2018 104010

1/4/2018 104009

166559 1/11/2018 2033890

1/11/2018 2033733

1/11/2018 2033759

1/11/2018 2033889

166560 1/11/2018 126558

1/11/2018 126563

1/11/2018 126617

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

12/30/2017-01/12/2018

Vendor

SWRCB - STATE WATER RESOURCES

SWRCB - STATE WATER RESOURCES

GSE CONSTRUCTION CO INC

DW NICHOLSON CORP

EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES

MUNIQUIP, LLC

WEST YOST ASSOCIATES

SWRCB - STATE WATER RESOURCES

Description

SRF LOAN #C065085110 • NEWARK PS

SRF LOAN #C065219110 - PRIMARY CLARIFIER

THICKENER CONTROL BLDG IMPROV PHASE II

NEWARK PS MOD VALVE & BOOST LINE MODS

HYPO TANKS AND PIPING REPLACEMENT

2479 GALS HYDROGEN PEROXIDE

Dl WATER SYSTEM

4100 GALS HYDROGEN PEROXIDE

4506 GALS HYDROGEN PEROXIDE

IPS PUMP 3 REBUILD PARTS KIT MUNIQUIP

IPS PUMP 1 REBUILD PARTS KIT MUNIQUIP

3RD SLUDGE DEGRITTER SYSTEM

HYPO TANKS AND PIPING REPLACEMENT

3RD SLUDGE DEGRITTER SYSTEM

FORCE MAIN CORROSION REPAIRS - WEST

FY18 ANNUAL WDR FEES

FY18 ANNUAL WDR FEES

FY18 ANNUAL WDR FEES

Page 1 of 14

Invoice Amt

$685,404.62

$589,782.72

$89,027.00

$65,375.44

$14,867.57

$11,889.47

$385.50

$19,663.91

$21,611.11

$18,441.91

$18,441.91

$3,209.83

$1,068.75

$20,856.26

$10,206.50

$20,000.00

$10,000.00

$2,062.00

Check Amt

$685,404.62

$589,782.72

$89,027.00

$80,243.01

$53,549.99

$36,883.82

$35,341.34

$32,062.00

98 of 122



Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

166450 1/4/2018 163052 CAROLLO ENGINEERS

1/4/2018 163046

1/4/2018 162998

166504 1/11/2018 220569 BURKE. WILLIAMS & SC

1/11/2018 221389

1/11/2018 221388

1/11/2018 220572

1/11/2018 220568

1/11/2018 220409

1/11/2018 220571

1/11/2018 221270

1/11/2018 221392

1/11/2018 221387

166492 1/10/2018 2601160A DELTA DENTAL SERVIC

1/10/2018 2601160C

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

12/30/2017-01/12/2018

Description

RAS CONTROL INTERIM IMPROVEMENTS

PLANT SOLIDS SYSTEM/CAPACITY ASSESSMENT

FREMONT & PASEO PADRE LS IMPROVEMENTS

COGEN - OCTOBER 2017

FORCE MAIN RELOCATION - NOVEMBER 2017

LEGAL SERVICES INSURANCE CLAIM - NOVEMBER 2017

FORCE MAIN RELOCATION - OCTOBER 2017

CIP-OCTOBER 2017

GENERAL LEGAL • OCTOBER 2017

VEASY STREET PROJECT - OCTOBER 2017

COGEN - NOVEMBER 2017

VEASY STREET PROJECT - NOVEMBER 2017

GENERAL LEGAL - NOVEMBER 2017

DECEMBER 2017 DENTAL

DECEMBER 2017 DENTAL

Page 2 of 14

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$29,307.81$7,621.76 *«'.o"'-°'

$21,555.70

$130.35

$5,198.50

$1,310.40

$229.32

$3,341.52

$196.56

$3,073.21

$5,274.36

$1,277.64

$1,572.48

$1,916.20

$2,508.06

$18,957.40

$23,390.19

$21,465.46

99 of 122



Check No. Date Invoice No.

166540 1/11/2018 666720171229

1/11/2018 096020171229

1/11/2018 892820171229

1/11/2018 013720180104

1/11/2018 140120171221

1/11/2018 224720171221

1/11/2018 898220171229

1/11/2018 140120180104

1/11/2018 761520171223

1/11/2018 380420171229

166451 1/4/2018 2018001001

166447 1/4/2018 32037

1/4/2018 32251

1/4/2018 32270

1/4/2018 32219

Vendor

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

12/30/2017-01/12/2018

CASA

CALIFORNIA WATER TECHNOLOGIES

Description

SERV TO 12/28/17 PASEO PADRE PS

SERV TO 12/28/17 CATHODIC PROJECT

SERV TO 12/28/17 HAYWARD MARSH

SERV TO 01/03/18 BOYCE RD PS

SERV TO 12/03/17 IRVINGTON PS

SERV TO 12/20/17 CS TRAINING TRAILER

SERV TO 12/28/17 FREMONT PS

SERV TO 01/02/18 IRVINGTON PS

SERV TO 12/22/17 NEWARK PS

SERV TO 12/28/17 CHERRY ST PS

2018 CASA MEMBERSHIP DUES

42.840 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE

43.940 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE

41,340 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE

42,180 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE

Page 3 of 14

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$271.60
$20,337.33

$50.50

$54.20

$2,448.13

$26.60

$25.41

$218.66

$25.74

$17,029.73

$186.76

$19,282.00
$19,282.00

$4,450.05
$17,730.31

$4,564.31

$4,281.18

$4,434.77

100 of 122



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

12/30/2017-01/12/2018

Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

166541 1/11/2018 8784 PRO-PIPE SERVICES

1/11/2018 8410

1/11/2018 8360

1/11/2018 8359

1/11/2018 8404

1/11/2018 8956

166520 1/11/2018 207 FORMULA DESIGN

166550 1/11/2018 20171221 THE BODINE GROUP

166548 1/11/2018 130912 SWRCB • STATE WATER RESOURCES

166479 1/4/2018 25205 RMC WATER AND ENVIRONMENT

166553 1/11/2018 855362 UNIVAR USA INC

1/11/2018 855347

1/11/2018 855483

1/11/2018 855732

166503 1/11/2018 11307144 BROWN & CALDWELL CONSULTANTS

166495 1/11/2018 166616 ADVANCED CHEMICAL TRANSPORT

1/11/2018 162958

166534 1/11/2018 137157 KNAPP POLLY PIG INC

166459 1/4/2018 415072017 FRANK A OLSEN COMPANY

Description

REFUND #20619

REFUND #20620

REFUND #20622

REFUND #20623

REFUND #20621

REFUND #20618

PUBLIC WEBSITE MAINTENANCE OCT 2017 - SEP 2018

NEGOTIATION FACILITATION

FY18 ANNUAL WDR FEES

HEADWORKS SCREEN NO. 3

4997 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5000 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

4850 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5001 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

PRIMARY DIGESTER NO. 7

HAZARDOUS MATERIAL MANAGEMENT

HAZARDOUS MATERIAL MANAGEMENT

1PIG

7 PLUG VALVE REPLACEMENTS

Page 4 of 14

Invoice Amt

$2,500.00

$2,500.00

$2,500.00

$2,500.00

$2,500.00

$2,500.00

$12,600.00

$12,000.00

$11,195.00

$10,336.75

$2,451.44

$2,452.92

$2,379.33

$2,453.41

$9,318.25

$3,849.12

$4,753.08

$8,053.35

$7,540.74

Check Amt

$15,000.00

$12,600.00

$12,000.00

$11,195.00

$10,336.75

S9.737.10

$9,318.25

$8,602.20

$8,053.35

$7,540.74

101 of 122



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

12/30/2017-01/12/2018

Check No. Date

166493 1/10/2018

Invoice No. Vendor

37432220180101 LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS COMP

NICHOLAS J PEROS

SAN LEANDRO ELECTRIC SUPPLY

Description

LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE - JAN 2018

NETWORK MASTER PLAN CONSULTING

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES

5 FLOWMETERS

ASTD PVC PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PVC PARTS & MATERIALS

1-1 1/2 STRAINER BASKET DUPLEX

4797 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

4699 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

43.060 LBS CLARIFLOC WE-539 %

166475 1/4/2018 17051

166483 1/4/2018 1822764001

1/4/2018 1821168002

1/4/2018 1825003001

1/4/2018 1818202003

1/4/2018 1822764002

1/4/2018 1818202004

1/4/2018 1822758001

1/4/2018 1821168001

1/4/2018 1818202005

1/4/2018 1822764003

166529 1/11/2018 3L6860

1/11/2018 3L6798

1/11/2018 3L6990

1/11/2018 3L6859

166488 1/4/2018 854158

1/4/2018 854095

166477 1/4/2018 1196523

HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS

UNIVAR USA INC

POLYDYNEINC

Page 5 of 14

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$7,374.20
$7,374.20

$5,288.00
$5,288.00

$1,611.61
$4,720.59

$466.03

$1,370.68

$251.86

$57.86

$52.20

$262.63

$554.00

$48.72

$45.00

$1,340.50
$4,675.37

$454.67

$69.91

$2,810.29

$2,353.33
$4,658.58

$2,305.25

$4,084.22
$4,064.22

102 of 122



Check No. Date Invoice No.

166474 1/4/2018 29597716

166453 1/4/2018 10206552488

166526 1/11/2018 9631682870

1/11/2018 9636240518

1/11/2018 9638038696

1/11/2018 9635352793

1/11/2018 9631682862

1/11/2018 9636240526

166542 1/11/2018 916003292805

166551 1/11/2018 131019

166523 1/11/2018 9272

166494 1/10/2018 20180101

166448 1/4/2018 18097254

166538 1/11/2018 101700357

166446 1/4/2018 41435

166466 1/4/2018 9413

166487 1/4/2018 9396

166437 1/4/2018 67474

1/4/2018 67475

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

12/30/2017-01/12/2018

Vendor

PAN PACIFIC SUPPLY COMPANY

DELL MARKETING LP C/O DELL USA

GRAINGER INC

REPUBLIC SERVICES #916

TOTAL WASTE SYSTEMS INC

GIDEL & KOCAL CONSTRUCTION

VISION SERVICE PLAN - CA

CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA INC

NBS

CALCON SYSTEMS

HORIZON CONSTRUCTION COMPANY

THE PLUMBING MINISTRY

3T EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC

Description

3 CHESTERTON SPLIT SEAL KITS

10 DELL ULTRASHARP U2415 MONITORS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

1 RELATIVE HUMIDITY METER

20 REPLACEMENT FILTERS

2 ENCLOSURES

2 ENCLOSURES

1 HEX REDUCING BUSHING

RECYCLE & ROLL OFF - JAN 2018

DECEMBER 2017 GRIT DISPOSAL

REFUND #20631

JANUARY 2018 VISION STMT

MONTHLY LEASE 6 CANON COLOR COPIERS

SEWER SERVICE CHARGE DATA SERV JAN • MAR 2018

HEADWORKS FLOW CALIBRATION & CERTIFICATION

REFUND #20588

REFUND #20595

1 PIPE PATCH KIT

1 RAPTOR NOZZLE

Page 6 of 14

Invoice Amt

$3,795.37

$3,480.67

$1,467.56

$200.03

$105.15

$885.11

$732.56

$75.64

$3,372.37

$3,305.17

S3.300.00

$3,243.17

$3,154.15

$3,051.90

$2,850.00

$2,500.00

$2,500.00

$1,088.74

$1,411.66

Check Amt

$3,795.37

$3,480.67

$3,466.05

$3,372.37

$3,305.17

$3,300.00

$3,243.17

$3,154.15

$3,051.90

$2,850.00

$2,500.00

$2,500.00

$2,480.40

103 of 122



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

12/30/2017-01/12/2018

Jheck No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

166556 1/11/2018 9798462019 VERIZON WIRELESS

166502 1/11/2018 796500 BRENNTAG PACIFIC, INC.

1/11/2018 796501

166443 1/4/2018 10628147 AT&T

166463 1/4/2018 3L6633 HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS

1/4/2018 3L5827

1/4/2018 3L6499

1/4/2018 3L6664

1/4/2018 3L6S32

1/4/2018 3L5695

166512 1/11/2018 97612 DEGENKOLB ENGINEERS

166460 1/4/2018 13001100010885 GE DIGITAL LLC

166445 1/4/2018 12336040 BLAISDELL'S

1/4/2018 12336990

1/4/2018 12340680

1/4/2018 12342890

1/4/2018 12344410

1/4/2018 12340890

1/4/2018 12342170

Description

WIRELESS SERV 11/21/17-12/20/17

2564 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE

5128 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE

SERV: 11/10/17-12/09/17

ASTD PVC PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PVC PARTS & MATERIALS

5 FLOWMETERS / 3 VALVE GAS AUTO VENT

ASTD PVC PARTS & MATERIALS

10-1" VALVE BALLS

ASTD PVC PARTS & MATERIALS

SEISMIC STUDY

PROFICY PORTAL ANNUAL SUPPORT

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

1 PK NOTEBOOKS

3-PRINTER TONER CARTRIDGES

3 RM PAPER

1 BOOKCASE

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

Page 7 of 14

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$2,393.52
$2,393.52

$695.90
$2,081.36

$1,385.46

$2,057.50
$2,057.50

$226.42
$2,041.36

$133.62

$980.02

$27.29

$612.89

$61.12

$1,765.00
$1,765.00

$1,745.76
$1,745.76

$71.14
$1,669.68

$10.42

$952.16

$19.72

$384.11

$140.81

$91.32

104 of 122



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

12/30/2017-01/12/2018

Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

166473 1/4/2018 100073986 OPTTV SECURITY INC

166517 1/11/2018 16565 FARWEST CORROSION CONTROL CO.

166498 1/11/2018 502351 ARCHER NORRIS

166442 1/4/2018 10225 AMERICAN DISCOUNT SECURITY

166537 1/11/2018 20171231 NAPA AUTO PARTS

166467 1/4/2018 PMB5935 IRON MOUNTAIN

1/4/2018 PLW3575

166536 1/11/2018 124498 MUNICIPAL MAINT EQUIPMENT INC

1/11/2018 124497

166505 1/11/2018 381129235 CH2M HILL INC

166521 1/11/2018 398992017 FRANK A OLSEN COMPANY

166558 1/11/2018 8080809394 VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC

1/11/2018 8080837070

1/11/2018 8080875368

166458 1/4/2018 206 FORMULA DESIGN

166486 1/4/2018 9415 THE EXPERT PLUMBER

1/4/2018 9415.1

Description

KNOWBE4 RENEWAL AND TRAINING

CATHODIC PROTECTION TROUBLESHOOTING

LEGAL SERVICES SEPT - OCT 2017

11/01/17 -11/30/17 GUARD AT DISTRICT GATE

MONTHLY AUTO PARTS STMT - DEC 2017

OFF-SITE STORAGE AND SERVICE - NOVEMBER 2017

OFF-SITE STORAGE AND SERVICE - NOVEMBER 2017

REPAIR: 2 BULLDOG NOZZLES

REPAIR: 2 BULLDOG NOZZLES

ODOR CONTROL ALTERNATIVES STUDY

START UP SERVICE FOR ROTORK ACTUATORS

1 HAND PUMP

12 PKS FILTER GLASS FIBR 4.25CM

LAB SUPPLIES

USD PUBLIC WEBSITE SCHEDULE APPLICATION-2ND PAYMENT

REFUND #20597

REFUND #20596

Page 8 of 14

Invoice Amt

$1,650.00

$1,500.00

$1,498.50

$1,380.00

$1,371.90

$325.94

$993.83

$703.28

$546.67

S1,212.38

$1,100.00

$133.93

$750.69

$200.75

$1,000.00

$500.00

$500.00

Check Amt

$1,650.00

$1,500.00

$1,498.50

$1,380.00

$1,371.90

$1,319.77

$1,249.95

$1,212.38

$1,100.00

$1,085.37

$1,000.00

$1,000.00

105 of 122



Check No. Date

166499 1/11/2018

1/11/2018

1/11/2018

1/11/2018

166532 1/11/2018

166535 1/11/2018

1/11/2018

1/11/2018

1/11/2018

1/11/2018

166501 1/11/2018

166482 1/4/2018

1/4/2018

166555 1/11/2018

166543 1/11/2018

166449 1/4/2018

Invoice No.

10657878

10657882

10657881

10657880

1055025

53459520

53469852

53354221

52817770

53424988

20180108

3123507002

3123507001

903300

25176

21518781

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

12/30/2017-01/12/2018

Vendor

AT8T

INDUSTRIAL SAFETY SUPPLY

MCMASTER SUPPLY INC

CURTIS BOSICK

S & S SUPPLIES & SOLUTIONS

VALLEY OIL COMPANY

RMC WATER AND ENVIRONMENT

CARBOLINE COMPANY

Description

SERV: 11/13/17-12/12/17

SERV: 11/13/17-12/12/17

SERV: 11/13/17-12/12/17

SERV: 11/13/17-12/12/17

2 CYL ASTD CAL GASES

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

2 MULTI PLANE PRECISION LEVEL

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

TUITION REIMB - FALL SEMESTER 2017

20 PRS SCISSORS/FORCEPS

ASTD SAFETY SUPPLIES

200 GALS DYED DIESEL

LOCAL LIMITS STUDY 2017

PAINT & RELATED PAINT SUPPLIES

Page 9 of 14

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$757.02
$952.54

$87.12

$65.69

$42.71

$917.70
$917.70

$73.07
$903.02

$61.90

$355.63

$198.46

$213.96

$708.11
$708.11

$29.19
$705.25

$676.06

$700.45
$700.45

$683.25
$683.25

$667.57
$667.57

106 of 122



Check No. Date Invoice No.

166508 1/11/2018 54K100306

1/11/2018 54K101182

1/11/2018 54K100311

1/11/2018 54K101180

166530 1/11/2018 602813331

166456 1/4/2018 8914

166531 1/11/2018 944720171228

166476 1/4/2018 20180103

166539 1/11/2018 21990

166441 1/4/2018 9388

166452 1/4/2018 9387

166454 1/4/2018 9410

166468 1/4/2018 9420

166481 1/4/2018 9369

166484 1/4/2018 9383

166506 1/11/2018 9421

166511 1/11/2018 8914

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

12/30/2017-01/12/2018

Vendor

CINTAS CORPORATION NO. 2

HILLYARD/SAN FRANCISCO

EAST BAY MUNI UTILITY DISTRICT

HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

PETTY CASH

NIXON-EGLI EQUIP OF S. CAL

ALL STAR TELECOM, INC.

MICHELLE CHUCK

ANHDO

RACHNA JAIN

ROOTER HERO

STAR ROOTER AND PLUMBING

CHANDLER BUILDING DEVELOPMENT

DANIEL DALAROSSA

Description

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY TOWEL

ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY TOWEL

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

JANITORIAL SUPPLIES

11 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

MONTHLY HARDWARE STMT - DEC 2017

PETTY CASH REPLENISHMENT

2 SEAL KITS/ 3 6" SKIDS

REFUND #20609

REFUND #20606

REFUND #20593

REFUND #20594

REFUND #20607

REFUND #20608

REFUND # 20630

REFUND #20639

Page 10 of 14

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$285.46
$606.36

$17.22

$17.22

$286.46

$574.40
$574.40

$543.00
$543.00

$526.23
$526.23

$515.20
$515.20

$504.86
$504.86

$500.00
$500.00

$500.00
$500.00

$500.00
$500.00

$500.00
$500.00

$500.00
$500.00

$500.00
$500.00

$500.00
$500.00

$500.00
$500.00

107 of 122



Check No.

166462

166549

166497

166522

166524

166471

166525

166557

166469

166491

166464

Date

1/4/2018

1/4/2018

1/4/2018

1/4/2018

1/11/2018

1/11/2018

1/11/2018

1/11/2018

1/11/2018

1/11/2018

1/4/2018

1/4/2018

1/4/2018

1/4/2018

1/11/2018

1/11/2018

1/4/2018

1/4/2018

1/4/2018

Invoice No.

9626508320

9627689160

9629065716

9630383140

17121503

5175750

6083175763

6083175762

6700139874

1841081788

53000803

52984214

53052405

53042491

84475

20180105

20171228

3054356

339095

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

12/30/2017-01/12/2018

Vendor

GRAINGER INC

TELOG INSTRUMENTS INC

ALL INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY

G&K SERVICES CO

GOODYEAR COMM TIRE & SERV CTRS

MCMASTER SUPPLY INC

GORILLA METALS

AUDREY VILLANUEVA

ARMANDO LOPEZ

ZEMARC CORPORATION

CITY OF HAYWARD

Description

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

1 FOLDING STEP

1 IEC MAGNETIC CONTACTOR

4 EMERGENCY SHOWER SIGNS

4 BATTERY PACK, ALKALINE, 6V, 80AH, ASSY

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY TOWEL

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

1 USDJACKET-AGBUYA

1TIRE

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

1 PK STAINLESS STEEL HEX SCREWS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

2 PK STAINLESS STEEL SCREWS

ASTD METAL, STEEL, STAINLESS & ALUMINUM

EXP REIMB: EC TEAM RECOGNITION

EXP REIMB: AIRFARE, AIRFARE CHANGE FEE-CASA 2018

2 NPS HYD UNIT RESERVOIR FILLING PUMP

2018 ALAMEDA CTY SCIENCE & ENGR FAIR SPONSORSHIP

Page 11 of 14

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$271.80
$457.43

$64.42

$79.42

$41.79

$433.88
$433.88

$412.26
$412.26

$17.22
$411.87

$336.48

$58.17

$380.20
$380.20

$232.94
$379.21

$14.05

$109.55

$22.67

$339.51
$339.51

$330.58
$330.58

$316.40
$316.40

$308.24
$308.24

$300.00
$300.00

108 of 122



Jheck No. Date Invoice No.

166552 1/11/2018 9011

166513 1/11/2018 379461

166545 1/11/2018 85340220171221

166480 1/4/2018 20171227

166490 1/4/2018 20171228

166507 1/11/2018 20180108

166519 1/11/2018 137877

166546 1/11/2018 20171130

166457 1/4/2018 2017165

166509 1/11/2018 45474090001

166518 1/11/2018 1333981

166478 1/4/2018 338466

166465 1/4/2018 602809745

166440 1/4/2018 5175301

1/4/2018 5175302

1/4/2018 5175404

166461 1/4/2018 2773734808

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

12/30/2017-01/12/2018

Vendor

TURNER RISK CONSULTING INC

DLT SOLUTIONS. LLC

SAN FRANCISCO WATER DEPT

JOSE RODRIGUES JR

WEF-WATER ENVIRONMENT FEDERATI

RAYMOND CHAU

FITGUARD. INC.

SPOK INC

FARALLON GEOGRAPHICS INC

CRESCO EQUIP RENTALS & AFFIL

FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, INC.

RKI INSTRUMENTS INC

HILLYARD/SAN FRANCISCO

ALL INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY

GLACIER ICE COMPANY INC

Description

TRENCH SHORING TRAINING - S. BULLIS

AWS CLOUD STORAGE • NOVEMBER 2017

SERVICE 11/20/2017 TO 12/19/2017

EXP REIMB: CS SAFETY RECOGNITION BREAKFAST

WEF MEMBERSHIP A LOPEZ

EXP REIMB: TEAM RECOGNITION LUNCH

PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE - EXERCISE CLUB EQUIPMENT

DECEMBER 2017 PAGER SERVICE

PLANT GIS UPGRADE

EQUIP RENTAL & MATERIALS

1-4" FEBCO RUBBER KIT

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

2 4-GAL FOAM SOAPS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

132 7-LB BAGS OF ICE

Page 12 of 14

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$300.00
$300.00

$281.09
$281.09

$266.78
$266.78

$261.29
$261.29

$255.00
$255.00

$251.78
$251.78

$249.00
$249.00

$239.57
$239.57

$220.00
$220.00

$217.83
$217.83

$214.01
$214.01

$205.78
$205.78

$204.31
$204.31

$41.04
$194.96

$92.89

$61.03

$194.04
$194.04

109 of 122



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

12/30/2017-01/12/2018

Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

166500 1/11/2018 12350890 BLAISDELL'S

1/11/2018 12342171

1/11/2018 12350060

166444 1/4/2018 20790000 BECK'S SHOES

166470 1/4/2018 20171222 ANTHONY LULLO

166544 1/11/2018 3123507003 S & S SUPPLIES & SOLUTIONS

166528 1/11/2018 10696993 HACH COMPANY

166533 1/11/2018 62600000118008 KELLY-MOORE PAINT COMPANY

166514 1/11/2018 1086298 ENTHALPY ANALYTICAL LLC

166496 1/11/2018 4088644120171220 ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

166510 1/11/2018 20180108 CWEA

166438 1/4/2018 5041C13411 ACCESS OMNICARE

166489 1/4/2018 8080760512 VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC

166439 1/4/2018 1479 ALAMEDA COUNTY TREASURER

166515 1/11/2018 20180108 BRIENNE ESTRADA

166554 1/11/2018 98XW53507 UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE

Description

1 HP TONER CARTRIDGE

ASTD OFFICE SUPPUES

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

SAFETY SHOES: D JACKSON

EXP REIMB: TEAM SAFETY RECOGNITION DINNER

48 EA SAFETY GLASSES

2 NITRATE TNT835

ASTD PAINT SUPPLIES

2 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

SERV TO: 12/20/17 - BOYCE ROAD

SEMINAR REG: GRILLO, T

DOT PHYSICAL & MEDICAL CERTIFICATE

LAB SUPPLIES

9 ASSESSOR MAPS

EXP REIMB: LIVESCAN FEE

SHIPPING CHARGES W/E 12/16/17

Page 13 of 14

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$153.55
$190.24

$6.34

$30.35

$157.86
$157.86

$149.29
$149.29

$140.66
$140.66

$114.26
$114.26

$90.80
$90.80

$80.00
$80.00

$66.03
$66.03

$60.00
$60.00

$50.00
$50.00

$35.49
$35.49

$27.00
$27.00

$20.00
$20.00

$14.00
$14.00

110 of 122



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

12/30/2017-01/12/2018

Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

Invoices:

Credit Memos: 0

$0-$1,000: 136 38,453.19

$1,000-$10,000: 69 213,943.65

$10,000-$100,000 19 433,337.66

Over $100,000: 2 1,275,187.34

Total: 226 1,960,921.84

Page 14 of 14

Description Invoice Amt Check Amt

Checks:

$0-$1,000: 64 24,328.59

$1,000-$10,000: 41 141,653.90

$10,000 - $100,000: 17 519,752.01

Over $100,000: 2 1,275,187.34

Total: 124 . 1,960,921.84

111 of 122



 

 
Flushing millions down the toilet?  Sewage plant rebuild 
cost projection tripled to $275M 
Jeff Platsky, jplatsky@gannett.com 

January 4, 2018 

Be prepared for sewage bill sticker shock. 

A four-year total rebuild of the main treatment facility for Broome County, with an original cost 
projection of $90 million, has tripled to $275 million, and possibly more. 

Bills for the mega engineering project will soon start coming due. 

What that means for you:  a near doubling of sewer bills, to be phased in starting next year. 

The hefty cost and the inflated bills may come as a surprise to customers, but not to the board of 
directors, which has been closely monitoring progress since the project began nearly two years ago. 

Each day, 375 construction workers troop to a 10-acre site on the Susquehanna River’s south shore in 
Vestal, many transported by shuttle-bus from a remote parking lot. 

They arrive early.  They work late. 

The low-hummed drone of concrete trucks is nearly constant.  Over four years, 35,000 cubic yards of 
concrete will have been poured for 20-foot-high holding tanks, 1,000 feet of flood walls and 
foundations. 

The massive rebuild of the Birminghamton-Johnson City Joint Sewage plant may qualify as one of the 
largest construction projects in the Southern Tier, almost equaling the estimated $290 million, eight-
year Prospect Mountain Interstate 86, Interstate 81 interchange replacement.  No question, the work 
off Vestal Road represents the state’s costliest sewage plant project north of the Bronx in New York 
State. 

112 of 122

mailto:jplatsky@gannett.com


 

Two large cranes are utilized to move large equipment and components at the Birminghamton Johnson City 
Wastewater Treatment Plant in Vestal on Thursday, December 14, 2017. 

For most residents, the work behind the barriers on Vestal Road is a mystery.  The only outward 
inconvenience is the choke point that blocks westbound traffic from proceeding farther than the Murray 
Hill Road intersection, diverting cars to the Vestal Parkway, as construction trailers and heavy 
equipment take up a lane that once provided an alternate route to the 201 bridge or Endicott. 

But others, notably the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation, are closely 
monitoring the project as owners attempt to repair a plant that has been only lightly treating sewage 
from several Broome County communities for at least six years.  As the largest New York treatment plant 
on New York’s portion of the Susquehanna River – 12 million gallons of wastewater is treated on an 
average day – many eyes are intensely focused on the progress of this extensive rebuild. 

113 of 122



 

Scaffolding outside a building at the Birminghamton Johnson City Wastewater Treatment Plant in Vestal on 
Thursday, December 14, 2017. 

At a price tag now approaching $300 million, the sewage plant project already has a legacy of failed 
fixes. 

Forty million dollars was spent in the mid-90’s to improve plant efficiency and end foul odors that drew 
a chorus of complaints.  And $65 million was spent in 2002 to install a filter system – a project now 
subject to a multi-million-dollar lawsuit pitting contractors against owners, with allegations of shoddy 
construction practices and a lemon of a treatment system. 

As current work continues, bills mount. 

Monthly progress payments for November alone totaled $10 million, based on an estimate from the 
construction manager. 

Who will ultimately pay the cost? 

As in years past, users will get stuck with the bill – thousands of residential, commercial and industrial 
customers who count on the plant to process wastewater 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. 

114 of 122



 

A pool of water at the Birminghamton Johnson City Wastewater Treatment Plant in Vestal on Thursday, December 
14, 2017.  This is the final step before water is released in the Susquehanna River.  The plant is still treating water 
while it undergoes rebuilding and upgrading. 

Payments on the extensive rebuild of the Birminghamton Johnson City Joint Sewage Treatment plant 
will soon come due.  It will be up to the customers to foot the eye-popping tab that will have the sewage 
plant writing $1 million monthly checks for as long as 30 years to those who financed the project. 

How much will you, the average sewage plant customer, pay? 

Sit down. 

In the Town of Union, sewer fees could rise by 118 percent, Johnson City, 92 percent, and Binghamton, 
84 percent, based on estimates prepared at the start of the project.  On the lower end of the scale is the 
Town of Dickinson, a 62 percent increase, and the Town of Vestal, 54 percent. 

“I know you are borrowing a lot of money, and I know you are spending a lot of money,” Michael Lisson, 
a partner with Grossman St. Armour, a Syracuse-based accounting firm auditing the project, told the 
sewage board during a fall meeting. 

The cost of the project has been ballooning for the problem-plagued plant, originally estimated at $90 
million, then $130 million, then $160 million, until a final projection of $200 million when construction 
contracts were first placed out for bid. 

The $275 million price won’t be the final cost for users.  After 30 years of principal and interest 
payments, the actual cost will total at least $350 million, a figure dependent on the interest rate of 
sewage plant debt. 

Bottom line:  Every flush will become far pricier. 

Expect those higher bills to kick in next year.  Plant owners, the mayors of Johnson City and Binghamton, 
say the increase will be phased in, but most certainly those bills will rise significantly over a period of 
years. 

115 of 122



“We knew this was coming we just didn’t know when,” said Michael Marinaccio, Town of Dickinson 
supervisor. 

Quarterly sewage bills average $125 for the average residential users in the Town of Dickinson.   When 
the full impact of the rate increase hits, the average user will be paying nearly $60 more every three 
months, $235 more each year. 

“That’s really a killer,” Marinaccio said.  “And the sewage treatment plant doesn’t get the phone calls, 
we do.” 

In Binghamton, where a typical residential sewage bill totals about $110 every four months, the bill 
could rise nearly $280 annually, or more than $90 each billing period. 

At least the towns have a hint of the impact; others, however, are unaware, including many in the 
business community. 

“We haven’t really thought about the end result of it,” said Joe Mirabito, president of the Greater 
Binghamton Chamber of Commerce. 

How did we get to the point where a $275 million fix was necessary? 

“Years of mismanagement complicated by a cumbersome management structure,” said George Kolba, 
chairman of the sewage treatment facility board, an independent body that oversees plant operations.  
“Now, it’s catch-up time.” 

Dual catastrophes only exacerbated an already frenzied situation.  The collapse of an exterior wall in 
May 2011 made clear that a 60-year-old sewage plant that had been the subject of tens of millions of 
dollars in renovations in past years was in desperate need for a top-to-bottom overhaul.  Then the 
massive 2011 flood swamped the site in September, leaving it largely inoperable. 

“The problems are not new; they have existed for a long time” Binghamton Mayor Richard David said. 

He, along with Johnson City Mayor Greg Deemie, termed past repairs merely Band-Aids, temporary fixes 
that masked more serious issues that had long plagued the plant. 

“The plant was always in a state of flux,” David said. 

Kolba agrees. 

“I’ve been angry with this for an awful long time,” Kolba said. “Everyone ignored it for a very long time.  
Everything got pushed aside.  They Ignored it when it was running.  As long as they were collecting fees, 
they were satisfied.” 

Attitudes on the sewage plant fix have changed, Deemie said. 

“We’re looking long-term because everyone else was looking at the short-term,” he said. 

“We have no other option,” said Bruce King, a Johnson City trustee who monitors the sewer board for 
the village. 

Three cranes rise high above the sewage plant, lifting equipment and supplies to the far corners of this 
massive construction project. 

Virtually no part of the facility will be left untouched by the expected four-year renovation project. 

Following the 2006 and 2011 floods that swamped the plant and put it out of commission, flood walls – 
one and a half feet above the crest of the 2011 event – will encapsulate the facility in the event of 

116 of 122



another catastrophe.  Massive diesel-fueled generators are being placed on site to kick in when power 
fails. 

Project and task scheduling books for the project are nearly 170 pages long.  Although the construction 
was said to be two to three months behind schedule in the fall, the project manager assured those 
touring the site during a recent visit that most of the work is now within the projected timetable. 

There’s still two long years left before completion.  And if the first two years are any indication of the 
next two years, schedule surprises may be in store. 

“Every day we run into something interesting,” Ken Di Bianco, project manager for the City of 
Binghamton, told the sewage board in the fall. 

A six-year-old civil suit filed in Broome County Supreme Court illustrates just how deep the problems 
were at the sewage treatment plant. 

A $65 million installation of a new biologic filter system failed from the start.  The project, begun in 2007 
and put into service in 2009, “never achieved a state where all systems were operational,” the lawsuit 
alleges. 

“From the beginning, of plant operations, defects and deficiencies began to appear in various plant 
systems and structures,” the lawsuit reads.  “The observed problems included, but were not limited to, 
numerous leaks at intersecting wall joints … multiple leaks at pipe penetrations … inadequate heating, 
ventilation and air conditioning output, frequent mechanical failures.” 

It is this very lawsuit, along with government grants and money from the floor damage from the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency, that Deemie and David are hoping will soften the blow to ratepayers. 

If they win a favorable judgement, they can put the money to paying down principal on the loans for the 
sewage plant rebuild.   

Issues with the $67 million renovation began appearing shortly after the project was complete. 

Lawsuits claim that project was botched.  The suits, however, is still a long way from being settled. 

Nine months before the infamous wall collapse on May 16, 2011, officials noted the 18-inch thick 
concrete wall bordering four treatment cells on the western edge of the plant’s biological aerated 
filtration system was separating at the seams. 

Photographs detailing plant issues showed sewage pouring from one treatment cell into another 
through an open gap.  In other photos, the newly built wall appears as an ancient relic, with chipped-
away concrete giving way to views of iron reinforcement bard underneath. 

Neither Deemie nor David are unwilling to say who is to blame for the shortcomings in past plant 
restorations, citing active litigation. 

Professional oversight of the current project, they say, will prevent issues that have plagued the plant in 
the past.   

“One of the reasons we want to resolve this is because I don’t want future mayors dealing with this,” 
David said.  “It’s time to fix this once and for all.” 

Though the final price is expected to come in under $280 million for the entire project – a figure three 
times as high as early estimates – David said in the final analysis the community will be delivered a plant 
that will take care of current and future sewage treatment needs. 

117 of 122



Though the first two years, the sewage plant has received a total of$15 million in grants from the state’s 
Environment Facilities Corp.  Additional Assistance will likely be requested, and money from the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency will could also lower the final cost to users. 

“We are very conscious of the ratepayers,” David said. 

118 of 122



Working with nature to solve bay water rise
Vulnerable sites throughout area addressed in design competition
By John King

Michael Macor / The Chronicle

Islais Creek Channel, near Third and Cesar Chavez streets in San Francisco, is being studied for solutions to sea-
level rise.

MORE ONLINE
RISING REALITY: Read The Chronicle’s 2016 
series: projects.sfchronicle.com/2016/sea-level-rise.

RESILIENT BY DESIGN: For full details on the 
project, along with a video from each team, go to: 
www.resilientbayarea.org.

Channelized creeks opened up so that sediment can 
spill into the bay and bring marshes back to life. 
Landscaped waterways lined by high-rise housing. 
Floating buildings grouped inside new lagoons along 
the shore.

Page 1 of 4Working with nature to solve bay water rise - San Francisco Chronicle, 2018-01-11

1/11/2018http://digital.olivesoftware.com/Olive/ODN/SanFranciscoChronicle/PrintArticle.aspx?doc=HSFC...

119 of 122



Michael Macor / The Chronicle

One design plan calls for the Islais Creek Channel, near Third and Cesar Chavez streets in 
San Francisco, to be enlarged by 300 acres to create shorelines to absorb water from 
higher tides.

These visions, of a region where cities and nature are 
entwined more closely than ever before, aren’t the 
work of idle dreamers. They’re responses to the 
likelihood that sea level rise in coming decades will 
transform the body of water that gives the Bay Area 
its name — and part of a design competition that is 
about to enter its final lap.

“It’s been refreshing to start focusing on one 
location,” said Richard Mullane, a principal at 
Hassell, an Australian firm. “Looking at the entire 
bay is different than working with and listening to 
actual communities.”

Hassell leads one of the 10 teams taking part in the 
Bay Area Challenge being held by Resilient by 
Design, which on Thursday will announce the nine 
sites around the region where design efforts will be 
focused during the next four months. The design 
proposals are expected in mid-May.

The challenge, which is being funded by local 
governments and the Rockefeller Foundation, is 
modeled on New York and New Jersey’s rebuilding 

effort after Hurricane 
Sandy in 2012.

That competition had 
federal funding and 
was a response to 
calamitous damage. 
Here, there’s no 
obvious pot of money 
to draw on down the 
road. And the point of 
the challenge is to 
prepare for what might 
lie ahead, a much less 
obvious threat.

“What we’re looking at 
is a slow and invisible 
risk,” said Gena Wirth, 
a design principal at 
Scape, a New York 
landscape architecture 
firm that’s part of the 
team Public Sediment. 
“But we can do small 
tweaks today to begin 

making a difference.”

Page 2 of 4Working with nature to solve bay water rise - San Francisco Chronicle, 2018-01-11

1/11/2018http://digital.olivesoftware.com/Olive/ODN/SanFranciscoChronicle/PrintArticle.aspx?doc=HSFC...

120 of 122



Kat Wade / Special to The Chronicle 2010

Friends fish for striped bass as the tide retreats from San 
Leandro Bay near the San Leandro Creek bridge.

Public Sediment has been assigned Alameda 
Creek, a tributary that enters the bay near the 
Dumbarton Bridge after gathering water from 
small streams in southern Alameda and eastern 
Santa Clara counties. Much of it is tightly 
channeled, including the final approach through 
salt ponds.

The design team, which includes several 
academic programs and the Netherlands 
engineering firm Arcadis, intends to pursue a 
conceptual design where the channel would be 
pierced in spots to aid the revival of the 
surrounding wetlands. Dams would be removed 
farther upstream to allow fish to find their way to 
historic spawning grounds.

“We don’t typically think of sediment as a 
planning tool, but that’s the idea here,” Wirth said.

Variations of this approach — threading nature back into an urbanized terrain, so to speak — are seen in 
the early work of other teams.

In San Francisco’s Bayview district, a design team that includes the high-profile Danish architectural firm 
Bjarke Ingels Group, will focus on Islais Creek. The waterway would be enlarged by 300 acres to create 
semi-natural shorelines to absorb the impact of higher tides and stronger storms.

This would take away existing land and give it back to the bay. But dense development would be allowed 
along the edge as a trade-off — part of an effort, Ingels intones in a video, to break down “traditional silos 
of city-making.”

The 10 teams won’t be starting from scratch.

The competition kicked off in June and the winners were selected in September, with each receiving 
$250,000. Three months were spent on visits to potential sites.

The months ahead will be spent burrowing into the specific locations, and reaching out to the surrounding 
communities to make sure there’s widespread participation in the final proposals.

“What we do next is expand the circle,” said Nicholas de Monchaux, an associate professor at UC 
Berkeley’s College of Environmental Design. He’s part of the All Bay Collaborative, which includes 
design firms AECOM and CMG Landscape Architecture as well as students from Cal and the California 
College of the Arts.

This team’s focus will be San Leandro Bay and its neighbors, such as the Oakland Coliseum. One idea it is 
exploring involves “tidal cities,” where new horizontal levees would shield existing neighborhoods — and 
include clusters of floating structures within lagoons that could help absorb groundwater that might 
otherwise flood inland areas during the winter.

San Rafael and East Palo Alto also drew attention from the collaborative during the fall. But they were 
assigned to other teams.

Page 3 of 4Working with nature to solve bay water rise - San Francisco Chronicle, 2018-01-11

1/11/2018http://digital.olivesoftware.com/Olive/ODN/SanFranciscoChronicle/PrintArticle.aspx?doc=HSFC...

121 of 122



“I wouldn’t have wanted that job,” de Monchaux said. “There were a lot of good ideas for a lot of places 
kicking around.”

So far, local politicians seem comfortable with the idea that teams of architects and planners and engineers 
— some from outside the region, others from out of town — will be offering elaborate suggestions on 
what shape the local communities’ futures might take.

“Having the opportunity for a world-class team to look at our shoreline, that’s not something we would 
want to pass up,” said Richmond Mayor Tom Butt.

Butt is on Resilient by Design’s executive board. Richmond was selected as one of the sites even though it 
passed its own adaptation plan in 2016.

“They might bring us something out of the box,” Butt explained. “Something we haven’t thought of 
before.”

John King is The San Francisco Chronicle’s urban design critic. Email: jking@sfchronicle.com Twitter: 
@johnkingsfchron

Page 4 of 4Working with nature to solve bay water rise - San Francisco Chronicle, 2018-01-11

1/11/2018http://digital.olivesoftware.com/Olive/ODN/SanFranciscoChronicle/PrintArticle.aspx?doc=HSFC...

122 of 122


	1 01222018_Agenda
	1. Call to Order.
	2. Pledge of Allegiance.
	3. Roll Call.
	7. Oral Communications.
	Motion 8. Consider a Motion to Cancel the May 28, 2018, Board of Directors Meeting.
	Motion 9. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 with RMC Water and Environment for the Plant Master Plan (to be reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee).
	Motion 10. General District Election (to be reviewed by the Personnel Committee).
	a) Consider a Resolution Ordering, Calling, Providing For, and Giving Notice of a General Election to be Held in Union Sanitary District, Alameda County, California, on June 5, 2018, for the Purpose of Electing Two Directors.
	b) Consider a Resolution Ordering the Consolidation of the Union Sanitary District General Election on June 5, 2018 with the Direct Primary Election to be Held on June 5, 2018 and Requesting the Board of Supervisors of the County of Alameda to Consoli...
	Direction 11. Receive USD Branding Initiative Update and Provide Direction (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee).
	Information 12. Cal-Card Quarterly Activity Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee).
	Information 13. Update on the Subsurface Investigation at the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant (to be reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee).
	Information 14. Solar and Cogeneration Facilities Operational Update (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee).
	Information 15. Report on the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) Meeting of December 21, 2017.
	Information 16. Check Register.
	a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District business and are welcome to request information from staff.
	b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.
	20. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the Boardroom on Monday, February 12, 2018, at 7:00 p.m.

	2 01222018 BOD Mtg Cmte Ags - REVISED
	01182018 EIT Cmte Ag
	01182018 Legal Comm Affairs Cmte Ag
	01192018 Budget and Finance Cmte Ag
	01192018 Personnel Cmte Ag - REVISED

	4 01082018 Regular Meeting Minutes
	5.1 December 2017 Monthly Ops Summary
	5.2 December 2017 Odor Report
	5.3 Odor Report Map - December 2017
	5.4 BS Monthly Ops Report
	1. Hours Worked
	Charts122717
	Report122717

	2. Budget & Finance Report
	Dist Summary

	3. Revenues & Expenses
	Charts

	4. Business Services Group Activities Report
	5. Portfolio Holdings Charts
	6. Portfolio Holdings Report
	7. Portfolio Activity Report
	Report


	5.5 TS 2017DecOpsRpt
	Construction Projects
	Thickener Control Building Improvements Project – Curtis
	Fremont and Paseo Padre LS Improvement - Derek
	Chemical Tanks and Piping Replacement Project – Thomas
	Sludge Degritter System Project – Kevin
	Force Main Corrosion Repairs Phase 1 – Chris
	Newark Pump Station Wet Well Improvements - Thomas
	Cast Iron/Piping Lining Phase VI – Andrew
	Design/Study Projects
	Plant Solids System / Capacity Assessment Phase 2 – Curtis
	Local Limits Study – Chris
	Force Main Corrosion Repairs Phase 2 – Chris
	Cathodic Protection System Project - Chris
	Standby Power Generation System Upgrade Project – Raymond/Kevin
	Force Main Condition Assessment – Andrew
	Emergency Outfall Improvements Project – Andrew 
	Primary Digester No. 7 Project – Curtis
	Plant Master Plan – Raymond
	Effluent Management Study – Curtis
	Odor Control Alternatives Study - Kevin
	Headwork Screen No. 3 Project - Thomas
	Alvarado Influent Pump Station Improvements Project - Thomas

	5.6 CS December 2017 Ops Rpt
	CS December 2017 Ops Rpt1
	CS December 2017 Ops Rpt
	Dec-2017 Performance Graphs


	5.7 FMC 1217_Ops_Report_December_2017
	5.8 _TD_Ops_Dec_2017
	8 Consider a Motion to Cancel the May 28, 2018 Board Meeting
	9.Amend2TO2RMC
	Board-RMC_PMP_AMDT2.TO2
	AMDT2_TO2_RMC_PMP

	10.1 SR General District Election
	10.2 Resolution - Notice of Election 2018
	10.3 Resolution - Election Consolidation 2018
	11.1 Branding Update_January 2018
	11.2 Attachments to Branding Staff Report
	2_Pier 2 Preliminary Project Timeline_Jan 22 mtg
	3_Pier 2 Past Project Samples

	12 FY 2018 Q2- Cal-Card Quarterly Merchant Activity Report
	13.SubsurfaceInvestigationUpdateAWTP
	Bd_Info_GW2017
	Table 2
	Figs
	Alvarado WWTP Figure 4 - Rev 20080902


	14.SolarCogenUpdate
	Solar Cogen Facilities Update
	Table 1

	15 EBDA Meeting of December 21
	16 Bd Ck Reg Rpt01122018
	01222018 BOD Mtg Pkt Articles
	01042018 Flushing millions down the toilet
	01112018 Working with nature to solve bay water rise

	Blank Page


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




